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Like {of line sales. Like-for like sales are Easter adjusted for comparative purposes 200708 nciuded two Geod Friday trading weeks and one Easter Monday trading week
2006/0 mchuded ene Good Fricay Irading wees and one Easter Monday Lrading week 2008/09 wil mchxde one Easter Monday tracng week onty

Underlying prolit betore tax Profit betore tax from continuing operations betors any gam or loss on the sale of properties, /mpairment ol goodwifl, impairment of properties
heid withun joint ventures, linancing fair value movements and one-off items that are materlal and infrequent in nature Inthe current financiat year ihese one-otl items were
the costs retating to approach from Detta Two, the costs 2ssoclated with Difice of Falr frading dary mquiry and [ar value gan on other hnanclal asset in the prior tnancial
year thess one-off stemns were the profit on part disposal of Sansbury’s Bank and past service gans on delined benefid schemes.

Underlying basic earnings per share Profit after 1aa from continulng operations attributable to equity holders before 2ny gam or loss on the sale of preperties imparment
of goodwi, impairment of properties beid within jeint ventures, inancing {awr value mavements and one off dems that are materlal and mirequent in nature divided by the
weinhited sverage number of ordmary shares in issue durang the year, exciuding those held by the ESOF truaty, which are treated a3 cancelled.

MSGA sakes are defined as retaifing sates including VAT exchuding fuel

E£238 mallion was 1he Groud's underiying profit before Lax s 2004005,

Customer numbers. Are qutled on 4 consisient basis, but exchude the Bells and Jacksons e stores of appr 13 mitlion.

Since March 2007 the Group has uncertaken E2 billion of asyet management activity This inciudes two jon! ventures, the acquisition of freehokis and the dsspasal of surphs
and malure 33318 This actinity has not all been cormpleted within the 200708 financial year

Cerlam stalements made m thes announcement are lorward jooking statements, Such statements are based on current expectations and are sublect to a number of risks and
untectantles that could cause actual svents or results 10 differ materlally Irom any expected lulure events or results ceferred to inthese forwart-looking statements. Unless
otherwise requicec by apolicable aw regulation or acommting we do not undertake any obfigation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as

3 result of new Information, future devrloprents o otherwise
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This year we decided to try
something new.

Sainsbury's is delivering an illustrated review of
the 2007/08 year online at its corporate website
www.j-sainsbury.co.uk/illustratedreview rather
than in print.

This decision is in keeping with our corporate
responsibility principle of ‘respect for our
environment'. By providing information online we
have significantly reduced the amount of paper
printed and distributed to shareholders. We hope
yvou will agree that this is a change for the better.

This annual report can also be accessed online
at our website.

d, We Are What We Do { WAWWD ) and Antidote for the inspiration

m NOT for the cover of this report and our online review of the year

A ?rm sainsbury’s teamed up with Anya Hindmarch ang WAWWD
in April 2007 to launch the 'l m NOT a plastic bag re-usable

W shopping bag as part of its efforts to raise awareness of
alternatives to disposable plastic bags 20,000 bags sold out

across the UK in under an hour Sainsbury s aims to halve the
number of iree one use disposable plastic bags 1ssued at its
-l stores by April 2009

%

www.j-sainsbury.co.uk/illustratedreview
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With thanks te Anya Hindmarch, global social thange movement
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Chairman's statement

This year has been parhcularly significant for Sainsbury’s since it marked the completion of the Making
Sainsbury's Great Again ("MSGA™) recovery plan announced in Qctober 2004 The plan was based on improving
our customer offer and operational efficiency to achieve sustained improvement in our fevel of sales and profit
growth | am happy to report that actual sales growth in the last three years exceeded our expectations with

E2 7 billion additional sales by March 2008 against the original stretching target of £2 5 bilion This is a great
achievement in a challenging market Our sales growth is also reflected in substantally improved profits Qur
underlying profit before tax for the year was up 28 4 per cent to £488 milhon, more than double the £238
milion reported for the year to March 2005, prior to our recovery plan

The Board i1s recommending a final dividend of 9 00 pence per share, making the full year dividend 12 00 pence,
an increase of 231 per cent compared to last year This 1s covered 1 63 times by earnings which i1s in line with
our stated policy of dividend cover 1n the range of between 15 times and 175 times

It 15 a credit to the management team and colleagues at Sainsbury's that our performance over the past

12 months was delivered against an extended backdrop of speculation concermng the potential take-over of
the Company which lasted for the majonty of 2007 In April 2007 a private equity censortium, led by CVC,
decided not to proceed with plans to make an offer for the Company, as the pre-conditions to their financing
arrangements, which were outside the control of the Board, could not be satisfied In November 2007, Delta
Two's plans to make an offer were also withdrawn following a final review by them of thesr financing plans
Throughout this period the business continued to perform, well reflecting the exceptional leadership and
commitment from the management team

We have alsc made progress In managing our property assets with the creation of two strateqic joint ventures
These unlock the opportunity to develop stores significantly and improve customers’ shopping expenience and
support our belief that effective property management ts closely aligned to bullding shareholder value

We have a strong heritage and brand which 1s proving to be both resitient and increasingly refevant as
consumers and shareholders are becoming more concerned with the social, environmental and ethical
backdrop against which companies now have to operate It 1s however, also evident that business conditions
have beceme tougher in the last nine months as a result of the consumer slowdown now in evidence in the UK
The causes of the slowdown appear largely inked to the weaker prospects for economic growth in the light

of the credit squeeze which gathered pace in the second half of 2007 The grocery retail sector 1s extremely
competitive but the improvement in our performance in the last few years, together with 139 years of high
quality and great vatue for customers, leaves us well placed to deal with these tougher conditions

The findings pubhshed by the Competition Comrmssion (“CC") at the end of April 2008 brought 1ts
investigation to a cenclusion We welcomed its finding that the UK groceries market 1s “delivering a good deal
for consumers’ This is consistent with the significant improvements Sainsbury’s customers have experienced
in product quahty, availability, serviceé and price over recent years The CC recommended that a competibion
assessment should be introduced inte the planning system We argued for this for new stores throughout the
inquiry to protect local markets from exploitation in the future The CC also stated its intention to require more
retallers to adhere to a new Grocery Suppliers' Code of Practice, a proposal weicomed by Sainsbury's However,
we believe the creation of an ombudsman to look into aspects of relationships between suppliers and grocery
retailers 1s unnecessary We will continue to play a full part in discussions with the CC and other parties, to
ensure remedies are implemented in the most effective and efficient way to improve choice for UK consumers
The OFT s currently investigating a possible competition imfringement in the tobacco industry and also making
early enquiries into the pricing of a number of other products seld by supermarkets Sainsbury's has stnct
guidelines for compliance with competition law and 1s cooperating with the OFT tn each of its enquinies

In August we welcomed Mary Harns and Mike Coupe to the Board Mary jotned as a Non-Executive Director
She has previously spent much of her career with McKinsey, most recently as a partner, and has extensive
strategic experience 1n consumer goods industries including retal Mary will also be a member of Sainsbury's
Audit, Corporate Responsibibty and Nomination Committees Mike joined as Executive Director He has been
with Sainsbury’s since 2004 as trading director on our Operating Board With over 20 years’ experience in the
retail industry includmg senior roles at Big Food Group, Asda and Tesco, Mike's range and depth of knowledge
of the UK retall market bring real value to our Board

| am dehighted that we have successfully delivered agatnst the MSGA targets set in October 2004 and that

our business is a fundamentally more stable and robust business than it was when the recovery was launched
We are now focused on delivering the Recovery to Growth targets cuthned in May 2007 These are summarised
on pages 4 and 5 and were covered (n detail in last year's annual report

M Ao

Philip Hampton
Chatrman

J Sainsbury plc Annual Repert and Financial Statements 2008




hazel jarvis

Business review

Continulng operations 2008 2007
Sales (Inc VAT) (Em) 19,287 18,518
Sales (ex VAT) (Em) 17,837 17,151
Underlying operating proht (Em) 535 431
Underlyrng profit before tax {(£m) 488 380
Profit before tax (Em) a79 477
Prohit after tax (Em) 329 324
Underlying basic earnings per share (p) 19 6 147
Basic earntngs per share {(p} 191 192
Proposed dividend per share (p} 12 00 975

Our business and i1ts markets

J Sainsbury plc consists of Sainsbury's — a chain of
504 supermarkets and 319 convenience stores and
Sainsbury's Bank

Sainshbury’s Supermarkets 1s the UK's longest
standing major food retaiing chain, having opened
its first store in 1869 The Sainsbury's brand 15
built upon a hentage of providing customers

with healthy, safe, fresh and tasty food Today it
differentrates itself by offering a broad range of
great quahty products at far prices with particular
emphasis on fresh food, a strong ethical approach
to business and continuous leadership and
innovation Products are improved and developed
to ensure the company leads in terms of the
ingredients used and integrity of sourcing A large
Sansbury's store offers around 30,000 products
and an increasing number of stores also offer
complementary non-food producis and services
147 stores also operate an internet-based home
delivery shopping service Sainsbury's Bank 1s
jointly owned by J Sainsbury plc and HBOS With
access to 16 5 milion Sainsbury's customers

each week, operating costs are low allowing it to
offer excellent value products with extra benefits,
delivered in a simple and accessible way

Market share by region zuu: 2007
Scotland 61 61
North East 85 77
Lancashire 95 93
Yorkshire 106 92
Mudlands 155 158
Wales & West 95 98
East England 143 145
London 248 244
South 191 205
South West 138 153
Nerthern Ireland 161 152

1 The Institute of Grocery Distribution (1GD) mast up to date miormation available
2 The IGD's mid-tase scenarit forecast mest up to date inlormation available
3 Meawredby THS

The UK grocery retail market

The UK grocery retailhing market was valued

at £123 5 bullion 1n 2005/06' and 1s forecast to
grow at an average annual increase of 2 8 per
cent to £1415 billion by 201? Over the past year,
Sainsbury’s strengthened its overall market share
position to over 14 8 per cent although the market
can also be divided a number of different ways
Excluding non-food, Sainsbury’s has the number
two position in the market

Sainsbury's growth will be affected by general
market 1ssues such as the impact of regulatory
and planning regaimes on store development and
economic factors such as the level of household
disposable income However, Sainsbury’s strategy
is aligned with factors such as customers’
preferences for the products they buy A range

of own label products offer a range with universal
customer appeal and the company monitors
prices on a weekly basis to ensure it maintains

its competitive price position The company

1s well positioned to anticipate and meet the
increasing focus on fresh, healthy, quahity foods
The development of Sainsbury's complementary
non-food offer addresses its customers' desire to
buy a greater range of non-food products along
with their weekly grocery shop and the continued
development of its convenience stores also takes
into account of the faster pace of people’s hfestyles
and the trend towards more frequent top-up
shopping trips

Annuat Repert and Financial Statements 2008 J Sainsbury ple

The purpose of this
Business review 15 to
provide information
on Sainsbury s
strategy and corporate
objectives, and the
market in which it
operates together
with a review of
progress during

the year ended

22 March 2008 It
inctudes an analysis
of key performance
indicaters and an
assessment of the key
risks and uncertainties
facing the Group

30,000

products in a large
Sainsbury's store

16.5 million

customers each week

14.8%

Total market share
Source TNS
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Corporate objectives

Justin King
Chief Executive

When | joined Sainsbury's we
undertook a complete review of

the business and outlined a plan

for Making Sainsbury’s Great Again
{("MSGA™) In October 2004 The

plan was based on delivering great
quahty food at fair prices. To achieve
this on an ongoing basis we needed
to fix many fundamental parts of
our operation

Only by satisfying customers and improving sales
could we return to sustainable growth in both sales
and profitabihty and this has driven everything we
have done over the past three and a half years

Over the past 12 months we have continued
to make good progress, growing hke-for-like
sales (excluding fuel) by 39 per cent and 'm
delighted that the year culminated in fulfilling
the commitments made 1n October 2004

We have now reported 13 consecutive quarters of
like-for-like sales growth and achieved £27 tillion
additional sales by March 2008 against the oniginal
stretching target of £2 5 tulhon This 1s a great
achievement in a challenging market

Our sales growth s also reflected in substantially
improved profits and operational gearing 1s
coming through We have good momentum as we
now focus on taking Sainsbury’s from recovery
to growth This is an outstanding achievement
and | would like to thank all 150,000 Samsbury’s
colleagues for the part they played

Making Sainsbury’'s Great Again
Targets exceeded

Agqainst our clearly defined key performance
indicators we have

Grown sales by £2 7 billion exceeding plan to
reach £2 5 bullion sales growth by March 2008

+ Over £E450 million invested 1n customer offer
delivering best price positton for many years

+ Achteved our cost savings target of £440 milion
Delivered a neutral underlying cash flow position
In addition we have also achieved
13 quarters of consecutive hke-for-ike sales growth

+ Profit more than doubled (£488 mitlion vs £238
milhon) demonstrating strong operational gearing

+ 25 milhon additional customers now over
16 S millhion a week compared to 14 million a week
i 2005

+ Transacted around £2 billion of asset management
actiwty including two property jont ventures since
March 2007

Our passton for healthy, safe, fresh and tasty food,
our value, innovation and strong ethical approach
to business provides differentiation between us
and our major compelitors and are what customers
want and expect from Sainsbury's

We remain focused on building and stretching our
lead in food and are committed to providing great
quality food at far prices whatever our customers’
budgets We're accelerating the development of
our complementary non-food offer to provide
customers with a broader shopping experience and
our abihty to do this 1s being driven by the addition
of sales space through both extensions and new
store developments

We also continue to extend our relationship with
customers beyond the traditional supermarket
environment through the growth of our convenience
store operation, our online offer and Sainsbury’s
Bank We have als¢ announced plans to launch a
non-food online business In the first half of 2009/10

FROM RECOVERY TQ GROWTH»

[ Mar 2005 I mar 2008 I'ar zoo7

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report and Financlal Statements 2008
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Business review continued

From recovery to growth

2007 to 2010 plan

+ Space growth — ten per cent new space by
March 2010

« Development of grocery and non-food ranges

+ Costs — 2007/08 cost savings of E155 million,
thereafter ongoing cost savings to offset half
our aperating cost inflation

+ Channel growth through online and
convenience expansion

Profit — profit growth flowing through at
a percentage rate in high single digits

Annual investment 1n price and quality of
100 — 150 bps

Sales growth — total additionat sales of
£3 5 billion by March 2010

« Capital expendsture of £2 5 billion by March 2010
= Cash flow neutral over three years

Qur active property management 15 enabling us
to retain operational flexibility while exploiting
the development potential of our property assets
and maximise value Since March 2007 we have
undertaken £2 billion of asset management
activity, including two joint ventures

in May 2007 we outlined a number of new targets
which build on our recovery to date to expand and
drive further growth These are ambitious plans
that bring together the ongoing improvements we
are making tn efficient operational performance
with the work we have already completed on
developing a universal customer offer

Achieving the MSGA targets has provided a firm
base for ongoing sales and profit growth and
new space development However, as we said
throughout the second half of 2007/08, consumer
budgets are clearly under pressure and we expect
the market to remain intensely competitive

Sainsbury's 1s now a much better business, able to
compete and grow in this challenging environment
We will continue to focus on developing our offer in
line with changing customer requirements and on
driving further operational savings This will ensure
we continue to make progress in the year ahead

Over the past three years significant improvements
have been made to the company’s operation

In May 2007 we outiined a number

of new targets which build on our
recovery to date to expand and drive
further growth. These are ambitious
plans that bring together the ongoing
improvemenis we are making in
efficient operational perfoermance with
the work we have already completed on
developing a universal customer offer.

providing a firm base for future growth The task,
encompassing fixing many basics, from product
range and pricing to supply chain and IT, was

a huge undertaking for a business the size of
Sainsbury's and, as acknowledged at the time,
was a Job for the medium to long-term

A good example of the progress that has been
made 15 1n product availability, cited in 2004 as
our number one performance issue The depot
network has been successfully reorganised
improving service to stores and today availability
15 the highest it has been since our records began

A significant amount of work has been undertaken
inimproving customer service and the product
offer and customer transactions have now risen
from around 14 mulhion in 2004 to over 16 5 million
a week Qver £450 million has been invested in
price and quahty and our price competitiveness

15 the best it has been for many years

We have achieved over £E440 milhon of cost savings
since March 2005 despite the fact that some of

the original intended areas of saving, such as
marketing, were re-assessed due to the changing
competitive conditions

Overall, the first three years of MSGA have been

successful and all the inihial retailing targets set
in October 2004 have been achieved

Annuat Repert and Financial Statements 2008 J Salnsbury ple
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Business review continued

Recovery to growth

In May 2007 we set new three-year targets that
build on the strong progress made to date and
drive further growth n the business Five areas
of focus have been identified to take Sainshury's
from recovery to growth

- Great food at fair prices: To build on and stretch
the lead in food By sharing customers' passion
for healthy, safe, fresh and tasty food Sainsbury’s
will continue to innovate and provide leadership
In dehvering quahty products at fair prices,
sourced with integrity

Accelerating the growth of complementary
non-foed ranges: To continue to develop

and accelerate the development of non-food
ranges following the same principles of quality,
value and innovation and to provide a broader
shopping experience for customers

* Reaching more customers through additional
channels: To extend the reach of Sainsbury’s
brand by opening new convenience stores,
developing the onhine home delivery operation
and growing Sainsbury’'s Bank

« Growing supermarket space: To expand
the company's store estate, actively seeking
and developing a pipeline of new stores and
extending the largely under-developed store
portfolio to provide an even better food offer
while also growing space for non-food ranges

Active property management* The ownership
of property assets provides operational flexibility
and the exploitation of potential development
opportumties will maximise value

To help lead the company through this next stage
of its development we have strengthened our
operating board with the addition of four new
directors to oversee IT and change, commercial
services, property and strategy The changes are
effective from mid June 2008 and give greater
representation on the board for key areas of
increasing significance as our business moves
from recovery to growth

In addition the company has strengthened its
property team as the natural next step inits

active property management A new division has
been created to dedicate resource to the ongoing
management of Sainsbury’s property joint ventures
and potential development opportunities to
maximise value of the assets

Operational efficiency

The 2007-2010 targets are underpinned by ongoing
operational efficiencies The cost savings achieved

over the last three years have delivered significant

progress and there are further plans to reduce the

cost base over the coming years, with the target to
offset at teast half of operating cost inflation

J Salnsbury pic Annual Repert and Financial Statements 2008

Creating operational efficiencies 1s now embedded
within the various functions of the business
including the store estate, the distnbution network,
property development and central functions

In stores, night shuft operations have been
improved and bi-optic scanners and self checkouts
are bemng introduced to help drive efficiency
Shelf-ready packaging continues to be rolled out
to improve replenishment further and additional
enhancements to in-store labour management

are planned for the year ahead

Within the distribution network there has been
significant improvement to depot productivity

and store deliveries These have been driven by
new processes, network re-organisation, a new
transport management system and the introduction
of new facihities such as a new 530,000 sq ft depot
at Northampton, built under carbon-negative
conditions, which opened in November 2007

In Aprit 2008 we announced the appointment of
Roger Burnley, previously supply chain director,
into the new role of retad and logistics director on
our operating board This reflected in part that the
task had changed from fixing the basics to ongoing
operatianal improvements by consolidating the
responsibility for both store and depot operations

A 355,000 sq ft ambient facihty was acquired in
Staffordshire in March 2008 and a 550,000 sq ft
centre in North Yorkshire, to be operated by
logistics specialist Wincanton, will be used to
consohdate the converence store supply chain
operation currently based in two centres at
Maltby and Skelton These will close later this
year The new depot will also provide relief for the
supermarket estate this Christmas and when fully
operational will employ around 500 colleagues At
Waltham Point, some of the automated equipment
has been removed and similar refurbishment s
planned at Hams Hall {ater this year

Cost savings within the central functrons are being
dehvered through more cost effective solutions,
such as the recent creation of a shared services
support centre in Manchester, the ongoing
improvements to data analytics from the Nectar
card loyalty scheme for targeting marketing spend
and the future planned relocation of the central
store support centre in Holborn, London te Kings
Cross in 201

With the renewed focus on growing supermarket
space, an enhanced store opening plan 1s now In
place We have developed our capability in this
area to deliver more efficient capital spend from
the recently strengthened store development and
property team This team 1s focused on bulding
and renovating for less by bringing in-house
many of the procurement and planming funchions
previously contracted outside the business




Operating review

The Sainsbury's brand

‘Different values'

The values of the Sainsbury's brand the passion
for healthy, safe, fresh and tasty food, our focus on
delivering great products at fair prices, a history of
innovation and leadership and a strong regard for
the social, ethical and environmental effect of our
operation, have continued to stand the test of time
Since we opened our Tirst shop in 1869, Samnshury's
has informed debate and led on 1ssues of the day
With customer numbers now at over 16 5 milion
each week, inibiatives we ntroduce can have a

real impact on UK consumers and 1n particular the
food they eat 1s a responsibility we take seriously

A number of awards and audits over the past year
recognised our achievements In October 2007
Sansbury's was voted 'Supermarket of the Year’
at the Retail Industry Awards for the second year
running Other accolades include the highest
mark awarded for environmental performance in
the National Consumer Council’s ‘Green Grocers'
report, the only ‘A’ awarded to a major supermarket
by Greenpeace and ‘best volume retailer’ and
‘most improved supermarket’ by Compassion in
World Farming for our commitment to improving
animal welfare

We publish a separate report on our corporate
responsibility performance on our website at
http //www |=sainsbury co uk/cr Five principles
are at the core of the brand to be ‘the best for
food and health’, 'sourcing with integrity’, to have
‘respect for our environment’, ‘making a positive
difference to our commumity’ and to be ‘a great
place to work' They provide differentiation from
major competitors and define and direct all

our activities

Best for food and health

Over recent years customers have become
increasingly concerned with the nutritional benefit
of indmidual foods as well as eating a better and
more healthy diet Providing innovation and clear,
honest information helps customers choose a
healthier diet and the rnight food for their hifestyles
We were the first supermarket to put nutritional
labels on the front of products when we introduced
our Wheel of Health multiple traffic hght labet

1n 2005 This 15 now on around 5,000 products
Continuing cur innovation in healthy products,

we launched the first own label 1 per cent fat
millin April 2008 This contains arcund half the
tat of sermi-skimmed milk but retains the flavour
and same amount of calcium and vitamin B |f

UK consumers switched from semi-skimmed

milk to the new 1 per cent milk they could more
than halve their saturated fat intake from milk
each year

Sourcing with integrity

The company believes in sourcing and producing
products tn a responsible manner In November
2007 we announced that palm o1l used 1n our
own brand food would come from certified
sustainable sources as increased demand s having
a significant environmental impact The first food
on UK supermarket shelves to contain certified
sustainable palm ol will be Sansbury’s ‘basics’
Fish Fingers later this month, making an everyday
food more ethical This will equate to around
eight million fish fingers this year which are also
Marine Stewardship Council (“MSC") approved

By July 2008, Sainsbury’s soap will also contain
certified sustainable palm o1l Providing honest
and transparent labelling, we will also be the first
supermarket to label the use of palm ol in our
food with the first range labelled by July 2008

Respect for our environment

Much of our wark in respecting the environment
15 about good housekeeping to improve efficiency
and further reduce energy consumption In Aprii
2007 we launched ‘Make the difference days’
("Mtdd") to raise awareness and action around
different social, environmental and ethical 1ssues
and work In partnershup with customers to make a
sustained difference The first day highhghted the
1ssue of free one-use disposable plastic bags Over
three Mtdds in total we gave away 15 million free
'‘Bags for Life’ made from 100 per cent recycted
material We encouraged people to re-use these
bags and have since seen a 10 per cent reduction
in disposable bags used by customers In April
2008, to mark the first anmiversary of Mtdd, we
announced the ambition to halve free plastic

bag usage by April 2009 We are also Increasing
the recycled content of our single use bags from
33 per cent to 50 per cent, further reducing the
environmental impact, and will issue Nectar loyaity
points to customers re-using their own bags when
shopping In Sainsbury’s stores from June 2008

Making a positive difference to our community
Our stores are at the heart of the communities
they serve and duning the year, cash and in-kind
donations to charitable organisations and other
community projects totalled £7 6 million (2007

£6 6 milhon) Our colleagues, customers and
supphers raised £5 4 million (2007 £12 4 million
which included Comic Relief) for charities through
events supported by the company Achivities focus
on areas that matter most to colleagues and
customers such as food, family, health and children

The Active Kids programme 1s a great example of
this where customers earn vouchers against spend
in-store and online which ¢an then be redeemed by
schools, Scout and Guide groups agamnst activity

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2008 J Sainsbury plc
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Business review continued

and cookery equipment Since the launch in
2005, £52 mithon of sports equipment, kit and
coaching have been donated to over 26,000 UK
children’s groups and nearly 40,000 registrations
have been received for the 2008 scheme New to
this year's scheme 1s the opportunity for British
children to donate vouchers to schools In
developing countries

A great place to work

Most store colleagues ive within the communities
served by their store and many donate time and
effort to causes outside work Qur Local Heroes
scheme recognises and encourages colleagues who
do this with awards of £200 to £500 Providing a
great place to work and community involvement
are combined in activities such as sponsorship
Sainsbury’s has been the retail sponsor of Comic
Relief since 1999 and raised £2 3 million for Sport
Relief in March 2008 In October 2007, four
colleagues from our Scunthorpe store, which had
raised the single highest donation for Comic Relbef
in March 2007, went to India to see projects that
were benefiting from money raised, such as the
Railway Children project which helps support
some of the 18 millron children living on the

streets in india

117,000 colleagues will share a bonus of £47 million
this year bringing the total amount paid out over
the past three years to over £150 million The
bonus scheme Is linked to the delivery of great
service and product avarlability as well as overall
sales and profit measures The targets for the
one-off MSGA share plan have also been met in full
at the end of the three-year peniod meaning that
the first payment under the scheme, due in May
2008, will be made to around 1,000 managers The
second payment due in May 2009 will depend on
continued strong performance

Great food at fair prices

Samnsbury's customers expect quality to be
maintained in the delivery of competitive pricing
Even though consumers have had to manage their
expenditure more carefully over the past year they
shill want healthy, safe, fresh and tasty food as well
as far prices Sansbury's price competitiveness

15 currently the best it has been for many years
following the investment of more than £E450 million
over the last three years Around 15,000 prices are
checked every week to make sure our competitive
position 1s maintained and developed

In August 2007, we launched our ‘Different

values’ campaign to emphasise the higher quality
specifications and great value of our own brand
products In March 2008, our ‘Feed your family

for a fiver’ campaign showed customers how
affordable, healthy and nutnittous meals for a
farmuly of four could be prepared within a budget

of £5 Since the campaign began sales of featured
ingredients have shown a marked increase Sales of
the minced meat featured in the launch television
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advertisement thcreased by 200 per cent and
demand for ‘basics’ spaghettl and hinned tomatoes
also saw significant increases

The campaign has particular relevance as
consumers face increasing constraints on
household spending but clearly shows that at
Sainsbury’s they do not have to comprornise

on food qualty when shopping on & budget
Customers also respond very positively to the
tip cards which accompany the campaign We
first 1ssued the cards when we launched our *“Try
Something New Today' branding in September
2005 and since that ime 200 milhon cards have
been distributed, covering 350 different ideas

We have worked hard to restore the universal
appeal of the Sainsbury’s brand by developing
product ranges that meet a diverse range of
requirements There s a clear rise in the ‘savvy
shopper’ who buys both ‘basics' ingredients, where
an item's appearance 15 not @ primary concern,
alongside premium ‘Taste the difference’ products,
such as meat and fish, where strict quality and
taste standards are required

‘Taste the difference’ ("Ttd'")1s our biggest

sub brand at around £1 billion of sales a year It
compnises around 1,300 products and was our first
own brand range to be free of artificial colours,
flavours and hydrogenated fats In the autumn of
2007 we staged the UK's iggest ever taste test
with over five million samples of over 200 different
Ttd products tried in-store by customers Fresh
meat and fish have seen sigrmficant growth, driven
by both the increase in awareness of higher welfare
chicken and a strong promotional programme

Foltowing its reinvigoration 1n April 2007 and
significant range expansion, our entry level 'basics’
range had a strong year with growth, at 20 per
cent, significantly ahead of the market Compnising
around 500 products, it 15 our fastest growing sub
brand ‘Sainsbury's SO organic’ range has over 450
products All fresh organic meat, eggs and milk
come from British farms and 90 per cent of organic
fresh produce 15 1n home-compastable, recyclable
or recycled packaging

We have removed artihicial colours, flavour
enhancers, the sweeteners aspartame, saccharin
and acesulfame k, and the benzoate group of
preservatives from virtually all our 12,000 plus
own brand food and drink including market firsts
for cola and ime cordial The only exceptions are
where it compromises product quality and in these
cases there 1s clear labelling on product packaging
Sucratose 1s now the only sweetener used in
Sainsbury's own brand food and drink where, for a
variety of reasons, customers wish to avoid natural
sugars We have not permitted the use of specific
additives, as recommended for voluntary ban by
the Food Standards Agency in April 2007, to be
used in food and drink since 2005
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The company has a long history of supporting
British farmers Support goes beyond the stocking
of products to working with farmers to help raise
capacity, skills, and empowerning them to build
sustainable businesses In November 2007 we
became the first supermarket to use flour from
quaranteed traceable UK farms in our 360 in-
store bakeries by using top quality Bnitish wheat
grown in East Angha Via the ‘Year of Food and
Farming’ campaign, we are also helping to raise
the profile of British agriculture This s inked

to Sainsbury's Active Kids scheme by providing
information and equipment to schools and this
year we will be offering schools farm and store
tours in partnership with suppliers in each of our
key agricultural regions

Sainsbury's has sold Fairtrade goods since 1994
but the conversion of our bananas to Fairtrade,
completed in July 2007, has made an enormous
difference to Fairtrade farmers and their
communities By selling Fairtrade bananas at the
same price as conventional bananas Samnsbury's
and its customers have helped create a social
premium of circa £4 million in 2007 which will be
returned to the growers and their communities
This 1s the biggest conversion of its kind warldwide
and we now sell more Fairtrade bananas than all
other major UK supermarkets combined with a
market share in excess of 60 per cent

To celebrate the 100 per cent conversion, in
August 2007 we launched ‘The Sainsbury's Fair
Development Fund” Run by Comic Relief and
financed with an imttial commitment of £1 milhon
from Samsbury’s, the fund will be used to support
a number of Fairtrade initiatives over a four-year
period |t 1s hoped the fund will provide a major
boost to the livelihoods of producers, especially
in Africa, who will be supported in entering the
Fairtrade system

In September 2007, 14 'Local Hero' store colleagues
visited Sainsbury's Fairtrade producers in Kenya
and Tanzama as acknowledgement of their
charitable work and to gawn better understanding
of the products and the benefits provided to
farmers, workers and communities In October
2007, we announced that 100 per cent of our entire
own brand tea would become Fairtrade, followed by
roast and ground coifee This 1s expected to triple
the Fairtrade cerfified tea sold in the UK and create
an increased return of around £2 million each year
wn Fairtrade premiums for developing countries We
have more than doubled our Fairtrade sales over
the last year and when this move 1s completed at
the end of 2010, we will be the UK's largest retailer
of Fartrade tea and coffee

Accelerating the growth of
complementary non-food

Sainsbury's values are just as refevant in non-food
ranges as in food Non-food products foltow the
same principles of quahity, value and nnovation
and although food 1s at the heart of Sainsbury's

brand, the development of ranges such as clothing,
home, electricals and entertainment 15 enabting

us te complement the food shop and provide a
broader offer for our customers

TU, our own label clothing range which launched in
September 2004, continues to be a star performer
We are now the eleventh largest UK clothing
retaller by volume and during the past year sales
have grown by arcund 40 per cent taking TU
clothing to a £300 million brand TU clothing is
now 1n 270 of our stores but, with the full range
still only In 74, there 1s significant potential to grow
sales as TU s extended further across the store
estate TU's in-house designers follow the same
focus on quahty and value while tracking the latest
developments in fashion and clothing technology

in March 2006 we launched a range of Fairtrade
certified cotton clothing and sales of Farrirade
t-shirts are significantly ahead of our expectations
In March 2008 we launched two new TU clothing
ranges called 'Grace’ in $1zes 18 to 28 and ‘Petite’
catering for women 5ft 3in and under sized from
8 to 1B Each range consists of 45 items and s in
50 and 25 stores respectively

The TU brand 1s now well established with
Sainsbury's customers and just as the ‘basics’ and
‘Ttd" (via 'Different by design’} sub brands have
been appled to non-food products, a new 1,700
homeware range called 'TU home' was launched
In two stores in Sydenham (London) and Oldbury
{West Midlands) in Apnl 2008 This completes our
‘good, better, best’ range hierarchy in non-food, as
In our food ranges, and complements 1,700 home
and hfestyle products, such as storage, home office
and toys, already 1n our core non-food product
range This total offer of 3,400 items will be rolled
out to additional stores over the next year

We had a strong Christmas offer across gifts,

cards and wrapping and was our first to be sourced
direct by our in-house team It also included a
number of special buys and 'stunt’ deals of large
etectrica! products and we had a particularly strong
performance in games, small electrical apphances
and new technology such as MP3 players, digital
cameras and satelhte navigation systems More
recent product launches within our home and
lifestyle offer include a children’s cookware

range, designed to help encourage children to

get coolung, and the expansion of our premium
homeware range ‘Different by design’

Our Health and Beauty ranges had a good year
and 35 stores were refitted with a new look and
tayout for these products We increased our
promotional programme to include 'stunt’ deals
on products such as nappies and our Champneys
skincare range saw its third year of consecutive
growth with over two milhon products being sold
We had 222 pharmacies within our supermarkets
at the end of March 2008 We recruited additional
pharmacists to strengthen our team as well as
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assisting pharmacy colleagues to continue their
professional development to continuously improve
this area of service for customers The first General
Practitioners’ ("GP") surgery to be located ina
supermarket opened at one of our Manchester
stores in March 2008 Designed to give patients
convenient access to GP services during evenings
and weekends, this imtiative has generated interest
nationwide from GPs and Primary Care Trusts

The addition of sales space through both new store
development and extensions 1s a key strand of

our strategy to grow the contribution of non-food
ranges Over the three years to March 2010, the
company expects overall sales growth to be spht
two thirds from food and one third from non-food
with half the new space in that same peniod gwven
to our growing non-food offer By the end of March
2010 sixty 60,000 sq ft or larger stores will have
over 15,000 sq ft of non-food merchandise with
TU ctothing within 300 stores

In August 2007, we announced our intention to
move our central non-food operation to Coventry
and the move 1s due to be completed by January
2009 The TU clothing team has been based at the
Caventry site since the clothing brand launched

tn 2004 but this will see it become a consolidated
general merchandise operation

We are strengthening our seruor non-food team with
key recent hires bringing extensive non-food retail
experience from major compehitors We are alse
recruiting around 150 product designers, buyers,
merchandisers and adminustrative colleagues to
support the Coventry operation Qur specialist non-
food team has grown over the last three years and
investment has alse been made across IT and the
supply chain The first general merchandise range
to be fully designed from the Coventry site will be
Autumn/Winter 2008 We have also strengthened
our Asian direct sourcing operation, based 1n Hong
Kong, which now has around 50 colleagues

Reaching more customers through
additional channels

Consumers’ shopping habits continue to change
as customers increasingly want to be able to shop
more frequently and more locally as well as via
the internet

Sainsbury's online

Our online home shopping operation has had an
outstanding year Sales grew by 43 per cent with
a record Christmas performance The service
operated from 147 stores at the end of the 2008
financial year but had reached 151 stores by the
end of April 2008 It covers 85 per cent of UK
postcodes and delivers to more than 90,000
customers each week, 40 per cent more than the
previous year We are expanding the number of
delivery slots available to customers and continue
to make operational improvements We are also
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the first grocery retadter to operate an Electric
Zero Emussion vehicle Many more are planned this
year and our drivers continue to collect customers’
unwanted Sainsbury’s plastic carrier bags

for recycling

A natural extension of Sainsbury's increasing
in-store offer will be a service providing non-food
products online and we have announced the
launch of nen-food ontine offer in the first half

of the 2010 financial year The new service will
provide customers with the choice of a range of
Sainsbury's own-brand and branded non-food
products Cur central onhine team is being doubled
to work on developing and implementing the
non-food offer enline It will also require dedicated
IT and its own supply chain as well as retail and
central trading support representing an estimated
revenue investment of circa £15 million 1n the
2009 financial year and a stmilar amount in the
foltowing year

Sainsbury's Bank

Sainsbury’s Bank 15 an important part of the Group
and following the creation of a 50 50 jomnt venture
with HBOS n February 2007, the service was
integrated into the core supermarket offer later
that year The Bank was re-launched with a product
offer more in ine with customer aspirations,
including a market-teading internet saving product
Under the new joint venture arrangement with
HBOS, we are reporting a small loss of £3 milhon
for the full year

Rob Walker retired as CEOQ of Sainsbury's Bank
earlier this month as planned after completing
his two year contract Under Rob, the Bank has
made real progress and IS now tn a much stronger
position for the future with more products and
revenue streams and significantly reduced
underlying bad debt Neil Chandler, previously
Head of Loans with HBOS, took over the CEQ

role at the beqinning of May 2008

Convenience stores

Growing presence in the convemence sector has
been an important part of our MSGA plans and in
March 2008 Dido Harding joined the company to
head up the convenience operation taking over
from Lawrence Christensen

During the year 27 convenience stores were
opened, six were closed, one was extended and 15
were refurbished giving a total of 319 by the end of
March 2008 Almost all of the 168 stores oniginally
acquired from Bells and Jacksons have now been
transferred to the 'Sainsbury's Local’ fascia with
the exception of 36 stores considered unsuitable
for conversion and for which a sale process
commenced in March 2008 Nine stores have
been sold to the Co-op and a sale has been agreed
for the remaining 27 to Martin McColls which will
complete in stages over the next couple of months
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We have also ended our agreement with Shell UK
whereby Sawnsbury’s Local stores operated on Shell
forecourts A total of 24 sites carried the offer but
the return on investment was not satisfactory to
either party and 21 will return to Shell while three
will continue to trade as Sainsbury's Local

Growing supermarket space

Following our inproved performance, last year

we began actively searching agamn for locations
where we could introduce our offer to new
communities New space growth opportunities are
bemng developed as part of the plans outhned in
May 2007 to grow space by ten per cent by March
2010 Half the targeted new space growth is set to
come from new stores as we plan to open 30 new
supermarkets and 100 convernence stores Total
new space will be spht equally across food and
non-food ranges This will enable the continued
development of a great food offer via expanded
food halls as well as growing total non-food space

Supermarkets

Duning the year 14 supermarkets (net of two
closures) were opened including acquisitions,

15 stores were extended and a further 52 were
refurbished The second half of the year saw a
step up in the store development programme

with 15 stores acquired from Kwiksave in October
2007 transferring to the Sainsbury’s operation
Eleven stores became small supermarkets and four
converted to Sainsbury's Local All were trading by
Christmas 2007 At the end of March 2008 we had
504 supermarkets

Gross selhing area of 576,000 sg ft was created

in the year, 472,000 sq ft 1n supermarkets and
104,000 sq ft in convenience stores Some 39,000
sq ft of selling space was closed, resulting in net
space added of 537,000 sq ft, growing ahead of
plans at 31 per cent footage growth 13 per cent of
this growth came from extensions with 2 O per cent
from new store space Closures reduced growth by
02 per cent

Qur environmental Greenwich store, which
originatly opened in 1999 representing a watershed
in supermarket architecture, was refurtished

in the second half of the year The store s a

major investment in the environment and the
refurbishment has taken its green credentials to
the next level with the addition of features such
as the use of carbon dioxide for the refrigeration
system, an enhanced iighting scheme which
includes greater use of natural irght along with
automatically dimming sales floor hghting and the
inclusion of solar powered fans

Active property management

The company believes that ownership of its
property assets enables it to retain operational
flexituhity while explotting development

opportunities and maximising value Over the year
this has included buying freehotds of stores with
development potential, the disposal of mature
and non-trading assets and joint ventures to

both access speciahist development expertise for
potential mixed use development as well as store
extension opportumities

Since March 2007 the Group has undertaken
around £2 bilhion of asset management activity,
including two joint ventures as part of the
company's active property management

We have acquired the freehold to 10 sites for

£285 million As part of this process our specialist
in-house property team will now be able to extend
and develop stores, providing an improved customer
offer and increasing their long-term value

We have also disposed of surplus and mature
assets to realise cash and to fund our development
investments A number of transactions, including
the sale and leaseback of four depots and disposal
of two stores have raised £341 million in proceeds
since March 2007

In November 2007, we announced the formation of
a strategqic joint venture ("JV") with Land Securities
to bring together undeveloped properties and
development expertise The JV started with three
properties but now comprises four, following

the additions of a property in the second half

of the year The JV now has a market value of
£125 million and the stores owned by the JV

have significant potential beyond standard store
extensions, such as mixed-use developments

Both partners intend to add properties to the

JV as well as actively pursuing other suitable
opportunities together

In March 2008 we announced an investment of
£273 milhon into an existing vehicle, owned by
British Land and compnising 39 stores, to create

a negw 50 50 JV company At 13 million sq ft, the
39 stores held by this secuntised property JV,
including many of our most important stores,
accounts for eight per cent of our total net selling
space The JV has a valuation of £1 2 bilhon, and
the investment represents a net equivalent yield
of 51per cent Creation of this JV unlocks the
opportunity to sigmficantly develop these stores
and deliver an improved customer offer It will seek
to maximise the full potential of these development
opportunities, including extending up to 25 sites
by an estimated 500,000 sq ft of net selling area
We will benefit from both the enhanced trading
performance of the extensions as well as retaining
a share of the increased property value

As laid out in May 2007 our active property

management 15 expected to be cash flow neutral
over the medium-term

Apnual Repart and Financial Statements 2008 J Salnsbury plc




hazel jarvis

Financial review

Darren Shapland
Chief Financial Officer

Progress in year

The financial results for the 52 weeks to 22 March
2008 represent continued strong performance

in bne with the Making Sainsbury’s Great Again
("MSGA") plan and completes the first stage

of MSGA

Retathng sales (inc VAT) increased by 5 8 per
cent to £19,287 million (2007 £18,227 mullion)
Underlying profit before tax was up 28 4 per

cent at £488 milhon (2007 £380 million) Profit

before tax was £479 milion (2007 £477 milhon)
Underlying basic earnings per share increased to

19 6 pence (2007 147 pence), up 33 3 per cent

Basic earnings per share were 191 pence (2007

19 2 pence) A final proposed dividend of 90 pence

per share has been approved by the Board (2007

735 pence) making a full year dividend of 120

pence per share, up 231 per cent year on year
(2007 975 pence}

Summary income statement 2008 2007

for the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008 Em Em % change

Continuing operations

Sales (inc VAT)

Retalling - Supermarkets and Canvenience 19,287 18,227 58

Financial services - Sainsbury s Bank' - 291 n/a

Total sales (inc VAT) 19,287 18,518 42

Sales {ex VAT)

Retaihing — Supermarkets and Convenience 17,837 16,860 58
Financial services — Sainsbury’s Bank' - 291 n/a

Total sates {ex VAT) 17.837 17 151 40
Undertying operating profit?

Retatling - Supermarkets and Conventence 535 429 247
Financial services - Sainsbury's Bank' - 2 (100 m
Total underlying operating profit 535 431 241

Underlying net finance costs? (45) (51} 118
Share of post-tax loss from joint ventures* 2y - n/a
Underlying profit before tax 488 380 28 4
Profit on sales of properties 7 7 oo
Financeng fair value movements 1G] 8 n/a
One-off items (12) B2 n/a
Profit before tax 479 47T o4
Income tax expense {150) (153) 20
Profit for the financial period 329 324 15
Undertylng basic earnings per share 19 6p 14 7p 333
Basic earnings per share 19 1p 19 2p (05
Approved dividend per share 12 Op 9 75p 231

1 In 2007 Sansbury’s Bonk was fully consolidated untl the Group sold live per cent of its shareholding in February 2007 thereafler i has been equity accountad as # joint venture
2 Underlying prolt before tax from continuing aperations before hinance Income and Tinance costs and share of post 13 profit or loss from jomt ventures

3 Net finance cests pre financing falr vadue movernants.

4 2008 inchudes Salnsbury's Bank (£3 mlilion kiss} and the jomnt ventire with Land Securities (£1 millon prahit).

Retailing — Supermarkets and Convenience
Retathing sales {inc VAT and fue!) increased by

5 8 per cent to £19,287 million (2007 £18,227
miltton) driven by good hike-for-like ("LFL") growth
and new space LFL sales (inc VAT and inc fuel)
were up 4 4 per cent LFL sates (inc VAT and

ex fuel) were up 39 per cent, in line with the
Group’s medium term planning assumption of LFL
growth of between three and four per cent, and
includes O 8 per cent contributed by extensions
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The profile of the LFL {inc VAT and ex fuel) sales
performance was Quarter 1 51 per cent, Quarter
2 31per cent, Quarter 3 37 per cent and Quarter
4 41 per cent This profile reflects strong growth
i Quarter 1and the impact of poor weather and
tough comparatives in Quarter 2 Both Quarter

3 and Quarter 4 refiected good growth against a
toughening consumer environrment and included
good Christmas and January sale periods
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Key retalling metrics

for the 52 weehks o 22 March 2008 2008 2007
Sales inc fuel

Like-for-like sales {inc fuel) % (Easter adjusted) 44 57
Remaval of Easter adjustment %' 03 03
New space {ex extensions) % 11 13
Total sales growth (in¢ fuel) % 58 73
Sales ex fuel

Like-for kke sales (ex fuel) % (Easter adyusted) 39 59
Removal of Easter adjustment 94" 04 03
New space (ex extensions) % 14 15
Total sales growth {ex fueh % 57 77
Retailing underlying operating profit (Em} 535 429
Year on year retail profit growth % 247 219
Retailing underlying operating margin %? 300 254

1 Like for tike sales growth has been Easter adjusted for comparative purposes. 2008 inchuded two Good Friday trading weeks and one Easter Monday trading week 2007 inchuded one
Good Friday trading week and one Easter Monday trading week 2005 whl inciude ane Easter Morday trading week onty

2 Retaibng underlying operating prelit divided by retailing sales (ex VAT)

During the full year 537,000 sq ft of new space
was added, a space uphft of 31 per cent on the
March 2007 year end 16 new supermarkets
opened during the year generating an additional

242,000 sq ft of space and there were two

ctosures reducing retaining space by 27,000

sq ft 15 extensions during the year provided
an additional 195,000 sq ft {o the estate and
52 refurbishments in the supermarket estate

provided 35,000 sq ft In the convenience

estate, 27 new stores opened, six stores closed,
15 were refurbished and 124 local conversions
were completed In total the convenience estate

increased by 92,000 sq ft over the year The Group
expects that total space growth will be around

30 per cent in 2009, with new stares of around

2 0 per cent and extensions of around 2 O per cent
offset by closures and disposals of 10 per cent

Sales from net new space (ex extensions and ex
fuel) contributed 14 per cent of sales growth in the
year The Group expects the sales contribution

from net new space including convenience disposals
but excluding extensions to be around 10 per cent
in 2009, comprising new stores of 15 per cent

less closures and disposals of 05 per cent

Retaillnq Space summary Supermarkets  Supermarkets
Gnctudes {includes
Including checkouts small Central  small Centrat
supermarkets)  supermarkets) Convenience Total
Area Convenience Area Total Area
Number 000 sg #t Number D00 sq It Number Co0 sq it
As at 24 March 2007 499 16,680 298 684 788 17,364
New stores 16 242 27 102 43 344
Closures 2) 27 {6) {12) [:)] (39)
£ xtensions/downsizes/refurbishments 230 2 232
As at 22 March 2008 504 17,125 319 776 az3 17,901
Memorandum
Extensions 15 195 1 2 16 197
Refurbishments 92 35 15 o] 67 as
Total projects a7 230 16 2 a3 232

Going forward the Group i1s changing the way it measures retailing space to be in line with industry
practice by excluding checkout space from the measurement This broadiy resuits in a reduction of the

Group's retaihng space by ten per cent

Retailing space summary Supermarkets  Supermarkets
Restated to exclude checkouts fincludes Grcludes
small Central  small Central

supermarkets) supermarkels) Coavenence Total

Area Convenience Area Total Arsa

Number 000 gt Number Q00 sq It Number 000 sq it

As at 22 March 2008 504 15,495 319 696 823 16,191
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Retailing underlying operating profit

Increased by 24 7 per cent to £535 million

(2007 £429 million) reflecting the positive sales
performance and operational gearing driven from
higher sales volumes and achievernent of the
final year of the MSGA cost savings programme
This helped to mitigate the impact of continued
investment in price and product gquality and higher
energy prices Retailing operating margin (ex VAT)
increased by 46 hasis points to 3 00 per cent for
the year (2007 2 54 per cent)

Financial services — Sainsbury's Bank

The accounting for Sainsbury’s Bank in the full
year reflects the sale of five per cent of the Group’s
shareholding tn Sainsbury's Bank to HBOS plc on

8 February 2007 Following this date the Group's
equity share (1e 50 per cent} of the Bank's post-
tax loss has been reported through 'Share of
post-tax loss from joint ventures’ This amounted
to a £3 mulhon loss for the full year primarily driven
by investrent in new products and lower profit on
insurance sates In addition during the year, the
Group invested £15 million in the ordinary share
capital of Sainshury’s Bank, which reflects the
growth of the savings balances The Group expects
the Bank to achieve a small profit in 2009

Active property management

During the year the Group continued its active
property strategy of increasing its control over

key trading assets with significant development
potential whilst disposing of fully developed mature
assets On 14 November 2007, the Group entered

a 50 50 joint venture UV with Land Securibes
This involved the Group transferring two properties
and Land Securities transferring one property into
the new entity Subsequent to this date the Group
contributed a further £15 mullion for the JV to
purchase an additional property

The results of the JV have been equity accounted
since inception and the Group's share of the
post-tax profit of the entity 1s £1 million The
Group expects a similar small profit in 2009

In addition, the Group announced on 26 March
2008 an investment of £273 million to create
a 50 50 JV with British Land This secuntised

property JV holds 39 stores, including many of
Sainsbury’s most important stores, with a valuation
of £12 billion, representing a net equivalent yield

of 51 per cent British Land's existing £722 million
of outstanding secuntised third party debt, at a
fixed interest rate of 4 96 per cent and average life
of 12 years, has been retained by the joint venture
Due to timing, this transaction has had no impact
on the results of the business for the 2008 financial
year As previously disclosed, the Group expects

the Bnitish Land joint venture to be EPS neutral in
2009, although the underiying profit measure will
be reduced by £5 milhon given that the incrementat
interest charge of around £15 million 1s recognised
befare tax and the expected JV profit of £10 miflion
15 included on a post-tax basis

Underlying net finance costs

Underiying net finance costs decreased by

£6 million to £45 mulion (2007 £51 million),
which comprised a £27 million increase n flnance
income and a £21 million increase in underlying
finance costs The key movements relate to a

£13 mullion increase in the net return on pension
scheme assets reflecting the full year effect of the
one-off contributions announced in 2006 and a
benefit retating to cash flow improvements, which
have been partially offset by the impact of higher
interest rates on the Group's vaniable rate and
inflation-hinked borrowings

The Group expects interest costs to increase by
£20 muthion in 2009 due to the impact of the British
Land JV and a higher average net debt position

Furthermore, due to the sigrificant movement in
the pension balance sheet posttion there are a
number of changes to the pension charges in 2009
compared to 2008 This will result in an increase
of £30 muhon in net finance charges of which

£19 million 15 due to an increase in interest on
pension liabibties and E11 muthon 1s due to a lower
rate of return on pension assets At an underiying
profit before tax ("UPBT") level the impact of

the increased pension charges of £30 million will
be reduced by £24 million due to lower service
charges, which are credited to operating profit
Hence the net impact of these changes s a

£6 million reduction to UPBT

Underlying net finance costs 2008 2007
for the 52 weehs to 22 March 2008 Em Em
Interest income 29 15
Net return on pension scheme assets 54 41
Underlying finance income! a3 56
Interest costs (138) (117}
Capitalised interest 8 10
Underlying finance costs! (128) {107
Underlying net finance costs (45) (28]

1 Finance incomefrosts pre financing far valse movements.
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Profit on sale of properties

A profit of £7 milhon was dehvered on the sale of
properties during the year, which includes a profit
realised on disposal to the Land Secunties JV,
compared to a profit of £7 million in 2007

Financing fair value movements

Fair value movements for the Group resulted in a
£4 milhon expense in the year (2007 £8 million
income) The Group has one non-comphant hedge
remaining as at 22 March 2008, with a notional
principal value of £75 million

One-off items

Fair value gain on other financial asset

During the year the Group recognised a £22 million
fair value gain on a financial asset This asset was
disposed of during the year

Cost associated with Office of Fair Trading
dairy inquiry

The Group has incurred £27 milhon of costs
associated with the Office of Far Trading
dairy inquiry

Costs incurred in relation to approach from
Delta Two

The Group has incurred £7 mulhon of costs in
relation to the approach from Delta Two

Taxation

The income tax charge was £150 milhon (2007
£153 milhon), with an underlying rate of 309
per cent (2007 34 8 per cent) and an effective
rate of 31 3 per cent (2007 32 2 per cent)

The underlying rate exceeded the nominal rate
of UK corporation tax due to the lack of effective
tax rehef on depreciation of UK retail properties,
offset by the deferred tax rate change and

over provisions in prior years The disaliowable
depreciation amounted to £71 million 1n 2008
(2007 £73 mullion) and 15 anficipated to be similar
in the next financial year The effective tax rate
15 lower than in the previous year due to over
provisions in prior years offset by higher non-
deductible expenses for tax purposes principally
driven by the costs associated with the Office

of Fair Trading dairy inquiry The Group expects
an undertying tax rate of around 32 per cent to
33 per cent in 2009

Underlying basic earnings per share
Underlying basic earnings per share increased
by 33 3 per cent from 147 pence to 19 6 pence In
2008, reflecting the improvement in underlying
profit after tax attributable to equity holders

The weighted average number of shares increased
by 27 4 milhon due to the vesting of share option
schemes

Dividends

A final dividend of 9 O pence per share has been
approved by the Board (2007 7 35 pence) and will
be paid on 18 July 2008 to shareholders on the
Reqgister of Members at the close of business on
23 May 2008

Underlying dividend cover ratio 1s 163 times,
in kne with our policy of being between 1 5 times
and 175 times

Summary cash flow statement

Group net debt as at 22 March 2008 was

£1,503 milhon (2007 £1,380 million) an increase
of £123 million from the 2007 year-end position,
of which £150 million reflects the reversal of the
working capital ttming differences dentified at
the 2007 year-end

Summary cash flow statement 2008 2007
for the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008 £m £m
Cash generated from operations' 998 830
Net interest (97) (83)
Corporation tax (paid)/received (64) 9
Cash flow before appropniations 837 756
Purchase of non-current assets (986) {788)
Disposal of non-current assetsfoperations 197 93
Proceeds from 1ssuance of ordinary shares 43 81
Capital redemption {10) (2)
Investment 1n joint ventures (31} -
Repayment of borrowings 36) (75}
Debt restructuring costs - (2)
Dividends paid {178} (140)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (164) (77
Increase in debt 46 79
Other non cash movements 5) 33
Movement in net debt (123) 35

Opening net debt

(1,380) (1,415)

Closing net debt

(1,503) (1,380)

1 2007 comparatives InCiudes £240 million cash paxd inta the detined benefit schemes.
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Business review continued

Depreciation and amortisation

The full year depreciation and amortisation charge
of £481 milhon was £19 million lower than in 2007,
of which £12 million related to Sainsbury's Bank
which 1s no longer consolidated

Capital expenditure

Net capital expenditure amounted to £799 million
(2007 £631 million) In the year, which included
£308 milhion on new store development (2007
£244 millicn) and £424 million on extensions and
refurbishments (2007 £368 mullion) In addition
during the year, freehold properties amounting to
£168 million were acquired {2007 £64 million),

in ne with the Group's plans to buy freeholds

of trading sites where 1t beheves there are
potential long-term development opportunities
This expenchture has been more than offset by

Pensions

The retirement benefit obligations as at 22 March
2008 have been calculated on a consistent basis
with the previous year where appropriate, with
updates provided on market based assumptions

As at 22 March 2008, the retirement benefit
obhgations less the fair value of plan assets was

a surptus of £503 million (2007 deficit of £97
milion) The net surplus after deferred tax was
£366 million (2007 deficit of £55 million) The
movement into surplus mainly reflects favourabie
market conditions around bond ytelds, which have
increased the discount rate on lkabilities

Pensions 2008 2007
Em £m
Present value of funded obligations (3,668) (4,395)
Fair value of plan assets 4,171 4,298
503 97)
Present value of unfunded cbhgations (8} (5
Retirement benefit asset/(obligations) 495 (103)
Deferred incorne tax asset (labihity)/asset 129} 48
Net retirement benefit asset/(obligations) 366 55)

cash receipts of £219 milhen (2007 £106 milhion)

in relation to corporate property transactions,
resulting in net capital expenditure for the

year of £799 million Core capital expenditure

1s forecast to be in the regton of E800 million

for the next financial year, with an additional

net £100 rmilion refating to the Group's active
property management inclusive of the £273 million
investment in the British Land JV

Capital expenditure 2008 2007
for the 52 weeks Lg 22 March 2008 Em Em
New store development 308 244
Extensions and refurbishments az4 368
Other — including supply chan and IT 118 57
Core retall capital expenditure B850 669
Freehold properties 168 64
Proceeds from property transactions (219) (108)
Net retail capital expenditure 799 627
Sainsbury's Bank - 4
Net Group capital expenditure 799 631
Summary balance sheet

Total equity as at 22 March 2008 was £4,935
million (2007 £4,349 million) Gearing reduced
year on year to 30 per cent (2007 32 per cent),
which primarily reflects the improvermnent in the
pension scheme position The Group expects net
debt to be between £1 6 ilhion and £17 bilhon at
the end of 2009

Summary balance sheet 2008 2007
at 22 March 2008 £m Em
Non-turrent assets 8,505 7,661
Inventories 681 590
Trade and other recevables 206 197
Cash and cash equivalents 719 1,128
Debt (2,222) (2,508)
Net debt {1,503) (1,380)
Trade and other payables

and provisions {2,954) (2,719
Net assets 4,935 4,349
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk 1s an inherent part of doing business The
Group has a process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the risks faced by the business
as described in the Statement of corporate
governance The Board has identified the
following factors as principal potential risks

to the successful operation of the business

Economic and market risks

The economic environment and competitor
pricing position ¢an affect the performance of
the Group's businesses in terms of both sales and
costs Household dispasable income 1s a driver of
sales growth Through development of our product
ranges and tnvestment in price and quality, the
Group works to ensure that we deliver value for
all our customers As has been widely reported,
external cost pressures on oil-related costs

and business rates have impacted our business
although the Group works hard to mitigate the
impact of these cost pressures on our customers
and the Group’s overall profitabihity through the
delivery of cost savings

Regulatory risk

The Group's operations are subject to a broad
spectrum of regulatory requirements particularly
in relation to planming, competition and
environmental 1ssues, employment, penstons
and tax laws and in terms of regulations over
the Group's products and services The Group
monitors requlatory developments and has

a strong compliance regime Reqular reviews
and audits are carrnied out in stores and depots
to ensure comphance and training needs are
reguiarly reviewed and addressed as required

Business continuity and acts of terrorism

A major incident or terronist event could impact on
the Group's ability to trade The Group has plans
to mantain business continuity in the event of
potentially disruptive events, which are regularly
updated and tested

IT systems and Infrastructure

The Group s rehant on its IT infrastructure in order
to trade A failure in these systems could have

a significant tmpact on our business The Group
has controls in place to maintain the integrity

and efficiency of 1ts systems which are regularly
updated and tested

Colleague engagement and retention

The Group employs around 150,000 colleagues
who are key to the success of the business
Good relations with colleagues and investing in
their training and development are essential to
the efficiency and sustainability of the Group’s
operations The Group's employment policies,
remuneration and benefits packages are designed
to be competitive with other companies, as well
as providing colleagues with fulfiling career
opportunities

Products

The quahty and safety of our products 15 of the
highest importance and there 15 an associated
risk if they are below standard The Group has
stringent product controls in place and regularly
reviews health and safety policies Ali supphers
are expected to conform to the Group's code of
conduct for Socially Responsible Sourcing which
was launched 1n 1998 and covers fair terms of
trading, protection of children, worker health and
safety, equal opportunities, freedom of association,
freedom of employment, hours of work and wages

Supply chain

Our stores are part of a complex supply chain and
the Group works in partnership with our supphers
to manage the risk of any delays or interruptions

in this supply, which may affect trade

Pension risk

The Group operates a number of pension schemes
which includes two defined benefit schemes These
schemes are subject to risks regarding the amount
of the habilities as a result of changes in life
expectancy, inflation, future salary increases, risks
regarding the value of investments and the returns
derived from such investments The pension
trustees, in consultation with the Company, have
commenced changes to the scheme’s investment
strategy to mitigate the volatility of iabihties and
to diversify investment risk

Treasury risks

The central treasury function is responsible for
managing the Group's hquid resources, funding
requirements and interest rate and currency
exposures and the associated nisks as set out
In note 29

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2008 4 Sainsbury pic




J Sainsbury plc: Board of Directors

Philip Hampton *

Chairman

Appainted Chairman an 19 July 2004
He was Group Finance Director of
Lioyds TSB Group plc from 2002-2004,
Group Finance Directar of BT Group
plc from 2000-2002, Group Finance
Director of BG Group plc from
1997-2000 Group Finance Director of
British Gas plc from 1995-1997, Group
Finance Director of British Steel plc
from 1990 1995, an Executive Director
of Lazards from 19811990 and a Non-
Executive Director of RMC Group plc
fram 2002 2005 Currently, Philip 1s a
Nan Executive Director of Belgacem
{the Belgian telecom group) Age 54

Darren Shapland

Chief Financial Officer

Appainted Chief Financial Officer on

1 August 2005 and 1s also Deputy
Chairman of Sainsbury s Bank plc

He was formerly Group Finance Director
of Carpeinght plc from 2002-2005
and Finance Director of Superdrug
Stores plc from 2000-2002 Belween
1988 2000, Darren held a nurmber of
financial and operational management
rales at Arcadia pl¢ including Joint
Managing Director, Arcadia Home
Shopping Finance Director of Arcadia
brands, Finance Director, Top Shop/
Top Man (Burton Group) and Director
of Supply Chain Programme (Burton
Group} Age 41

Justin King ¥

Chlef Executive

Appointed Chef Executive Officer on
29 March 2004 and 15 also Chairman

of the Operating Board He has been a
Non Execulive Director of Staples, In¢
since September 2007 He was formerly
Director of Food at Marks & Spencer plc
and from 1994-2001 he held a number
of senior positions at ASDA/Wal Mart

in Trading, HR and Retall Justin was
previously Managing Director of Hdagen
Dazs UK and spent much of hus early
career with Mars Confechionery and
Pepsi International Age 46

Mike Coupe

Trading Director

Appointed an Executive Director on

1 August 2007 and has been a member
of the Operating Board since Oclober
2004 He joined Samsbury’s from Big
Food Group where he was a Board
Director of Big Food Group ple and
Managing Durector of Iceland Food
Stores Mike previously worked for both
ASDA and Tesco where he served in

a variety of sentor management roles
Age 47
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Lite President
Lord Sainsbury of Preston Candover KG

Key to Committee Members

+ Remuneration Committee

® Audit Committee

% MNomination Committee

¥ Corporate Responsibility Committee
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Board of Directors continued

Val Gooding ¢ %

Non-Executive Director

Appointed a Non-Executive Director on
11 January 2007 She has been Chief
Executive of BUPA since August 1998,
which she joined from British Airways,
and 1s also a Mon Execubive Director

of Standard Chartered Bank plc Valis
a member of the BBC's Executive Board,
and the Advisory Board of the Warwick
Business School Shes a Trustee of the
British Museum, and a Non-Executive
Director of the Lawn Tennis Association
She was formerly a Non-Executive
Director of Compass Group plc and

BAA plc Age 57

Dr John McAdam & %

Senjor Independent Director
Appointed a Non-Executive Director

on 1 September 2005 Hea s Chairman
designate of Rentokil lrbial ple, a
Non-Executive Director, and Chairman
designate, of United Utihties plc and a
Non Executive Director of Rolis-Royce
Group plc John joined Unilever as a
management trainee n 1974 and went
on to hold a number of semor posibions
in Birds Eye Walls, Quest and Unichema,
before the sale of the Specialty
Chemical Businesses to ICl in 1997 He
was Chref Executive of IC1 pl¢, until its
sale to Akzo Nobel, and was formerly
Nan Executive Director of Severn

Trent pic from 2000 2005 He s also a
member of the University of Cambnidge
Chemustry Advisory Board Age 60

Gary Hughes @ %

Non-Executive Director

Appointed a Non-Executive Director
on {January 2005 He s Chief
Executive of CMP Information =

a division of United Business Media
plc Gary was fermerly Group Finance
Director of Emap ple, Group Finance
Birector of SMG ple, Deputy Ftnance
Director of Forte plc, and prior to this
held a number of senior management
positions with Guinness plc in the UK
and in North America Age 46

Anna Ford ¢ & ¥

Non-Executive Director

Appointed a Non Executwve Director
on 2 May 20056 She retired from the
BBC tn 2006, after 32 years in News
and Current Affairs Anna has been a
Trustee of the Royal Botanical Gardens
In Kew, London, 1s Chancellor of
Manchester University, a Fellow of the
Royal Geographecal Seciety, a Trustee
of Forum for the Future, an Honorary
Bencher of Middle Temple and 15 on the
Board of The Amazing Group Age 64
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Bob Stack ¢ %

Non-Executive Director

Appointed a Non-Exe¢utive Director
on1.January 2005 He joined Cadbury
Beverages in the US 1n 1990 and was
appointed to the Board of Cadbury
Schweppes plc 1n May 1996 as Group
Human Resources Director In March
2000 he was appointed Chief Human
Resources Officer and took on
responsibihity for communication and
external affairs \n addition to HR Bob
15 also a Visiting Professor at Henley
Management College Age 57

Mary Harris @ % %

Non-Executive Director

Appointed a Non-Executive Director
on 1 August 2007 Sheis a member of
the supervisory boards of TNT NV and
Unibalt-Rodamco S A Mary previously
spent much of her career with McKinsey
& Company, most recently as a partner,
and prior to that worked for PepsiCo

in Greece and the UK as a sales and
marketing executive Age 42
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The Operating Board

Justin King (1}
See page 18

Darren Shapland (2)
See page 18

Mike Coupe (3)
See page 18

Roger Burnley (5)

Retail and Logistics Director
Appointed to the Operating Board in
March 2006 as supply chain director
and in April 2008 he assumed the new
role of retail and logistics director Roger
was previously Supply Chain Director

at Matalan He spent his early career in
retall management and buying at B&O
before joimng ASDA/Wal-Mart, where
he held a number of pasitions before
becoming Supply Chain Birector in 2001

Tim Fallowfield (4)

Company Secretary

Company Secretary since 2001

Tim joined from Exel pic, the global
logistics company where he was
Company Secretary and Head of Legal
Services (1994-2001) Prior to this he
worked at Chfford Chance and 1s

a quahfied solicitor

Imelda Walsh (7)

HR Director

HR Director since October 2001
Appointed to Operating Board when
formed in May 2004 Belore thas was
a member of the Board of Sainsbury’s
Supermarkets Ltd from March 2003
Director of Satnsbury's Bank plc

Prior to joining Sainsbury’s worked
far Barclays Retall Financral Services,
Coca Cola and Schweppes Beverages
Author of the Flexible working

review, published May 2008, which
recommended how to extend the right
to request flexible working to parents
of older children
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Gwyn Burr (5)

Customer Director

Jowned the Operating Beard in 2004
Durector of Sainsbury’s Bank plc

Gwyn has over 20 years’ business
experence, including five with Nestlé
Rowntree and over 13 with ASDA/
Wal-Mart At ASDA, she held various
Board level positions across Own Brand,
Marketing, Customer Service and Retall

Dido Harding (8)

Convenience Director

Appointed to the Operating Board in
March 2008 Dido joined Sainsbury s
from Tesco where she held a vanety
of senior roles both in their UK and
international businesses Pnor to
this she worked at Kingfisher plc and
Thomas Cook Ltd where she gained
considerable retail experience

She began her career as a ¢onsultant
with McKinsey
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Directors’ report

The Directors present thewr report and audited financial statements
for the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008

Principal activities
The Company's principal activities are grocery and related retaiting

Business review

The Business review sets out a comprehensive review of the
development and performance of the business for the year ended
22 March 2008 and future developments The Business review I1s
set out on pages 3 to 17 of this report

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of

900 pence per share (2007 735 pence), making a total dividend for
the year of 12 00 pence per share (2007 975 pence), an increase

of 231 per cent over the previous year Subject to shareholders
approving this recommendation at the Annual General Meeting
("AGM'}, the dividend will be paid on 18 July 2008 to shareholders
on the register at the close of business on 23 May 2008

Changes to the Board

As previously reported, Mike Coupe, Trading Birector, and
Mary Harris, Non Executive Director both joined the Board
on 1 August 2007

Re-election of Directors

in accordance with the Articles of Association, Mike Coupe and
Mary Harris, who were appointed to the Board since the last AGM,
will retire and seek election at this year s AGM Philp Hampton,
Gary Hughes and Bob Stack will also retire by rotation and seek
re-election

Full biographicat details of all of the current Directors are set out
on pages 18 and 19

Annuaj General Meeting

The AGM will be held on Tuesday, 15 July 2008 at The International
Conventton Centre, Broad Street, Brmingham B1 2EA at 11 00am
The Chairman's letter and the Notice of Meeting accompany this
report, together with notes explaining the business to be transacted
at the meeting

At the meeting resolutions will be proposed to declare a final
dividend, to receive the Annual Report and Financial Statements
and approve the Remuneration report, to elect Directors and to
re appaint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors In addition,
shareholders wili be asked to renew both the generat authority
of the Directors to 1ssue shares, and the authority to 1ssue
shares without applying the statutory pre-emption rights, and
to authonse the Company to make market purchases of its own
shares No such purchase has been made during the last financiat
year Shareholders will also be asked to adopt new Articles of
Associatron to reflect changes introduced by the provisions of
the 2006 Companies Act and other current market practice

A resolution to renew the authonty to make “poltical donations
as defined by The Pohtical Parties, Elections and Referendums
Act 2000 will also be proposed

Share capital and control
The followtng intormation s given pursuant to Section 992
of the Comparues Act 2006

There are no restrictions on the voting nghts attaching to the
Company’s ordinary shares or the transfer of secunties in the
Company No person holds securities in the Company carrying
special nghts with regard te control of the Company The Company
15 not aware of any agreements between holders of secunities that
may result in restrictions in the transfer of securities or voting
rights Further details an the rights, restrictiens and cbhgations
attaching to the share capital of the Company, including voting
rights, are contained in the Company s Articles of Association The
Articles of Association may only be changed with the agreement
of shareholders Shares acquired through the Company’s employee
share schemes rank pari passu with shares 1n 1ssue and have no
special rights The J Samsbury Employee Benefit Trust waives its
right to vote and to dividends on the shares it holds

At the AGM held \n July 2007, the Company was authorsed by
shareholders to purchase its own shares, wsthin certain bmits and
as permitted by the Articles of Association The Company made ro
purchases of its own shares during the year and no shares were
acqurred by forfeiture or surrender or made subject to a hen or
charge

On a takeover, options and awards granted to employees under
the Company's share schemes may vest The Company 1s not party
to any significant agreements that would take effect. alter or
termmnate upon a change of control following a takeover bid

Ordinary shares

Details of the changes to the ordinary 1ssued share capital
during the yvear are shown con page 60 At the date of this report,
1,747,660,753 ardinary shares of 28*7 pence have been 1ssued,
are fully pand up and are sted on the London Stock Exchange

B shares

At the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 12 July 2004,
shareholders approved a Return of Capital to shareholders by way
of a B Share Scheme A total of 1,943173,266 B shares were issued
The final redemption of the 27,502,070 outstanding B shares took
place on 18 July 2007

Malor interests in shares

As at 13 May 2008, the Company had teen notified by the fellowing
investors of thewr interests in 3 per cent or more of the Company s
shares These interests were notified to the Company pursuant to
Drsclosure and Transparency Rule S

Number of % of
shares  vohing rights

Credit Agricole Cheuvreusx

International Limited 55,965,129 321
Judith Partrait (a trustee of

various settlements, including

charitable trusts) 71 332 495 409
Legal & General Group plc 69 825 844 400
Lord Sainsbury of Turville* 102 045 437 583
Vidacos Nominees Limited

(which holds the shares as

a narminee for Razino Limited) 88,000,000 507
Qatar Holdings LLC 435,164,241 24 97

Innctech Advisers Limited an investment campany 100 per cent owned by Lord Sainsbury of
Turville holds 92 000 0C0 of his shares in J Sainsbury pkc

Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the Directors and their famibes in the
shares of the Company are shown below Options granted under the
Company's employee share plans are shown in the Remuneration
report on pages 27 to 32

Qrdinary Crdinary Ordinary

shares' shares’ shares'*

24 March 22 March 13 May

2007 zocE 2008

Mike Coupe 98 1752 98,870 98,870
Justin King 274,088 390,383 390,446
Darren Shaptand 70,241 137,253 137,253
Anna Ford 1,000 1,000 1,000
Val Gooding 1,320 1,320 1,320
Phitp Hampton 25,000 25,000 25,000
Mary Harns -2 5,000 5,000
Gary Hughes 15,446 18,246 18,246
John McAdam 1,000 1,000 1,000
Bob Stack? 2,800 2.800 2,800

Qrdinary shares are beneticial holdings which nchude the Directors personal holdmgs and
thase of thew spouses and minor children They also snchude the benefictal nterests in shares
whch are held in trust under the Samsbury’s Share Purchase Plan

As at cate of appomntment

Held in the {orm of TOO Amencan Depository Recesmpts

Inchudes shares purchased under the Sainsbury 3 Share Purchase Plan between 22 March
2008 and 13 May 2008

The Executrve Directors are polentia) beneficiaries af the Company’s empioyee benefit trusts,
which are used Lo satisty awards under the Company s empioyee share plans and they are
therefore treated as titerested i the 22 4 milhon shares (2007 23 5 mithan} held by the
Trustees

N

w
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Directors' report continued

The Company's Register of Directors” interests cantains full details
of Directors' interests, shareholdings and options over ordinary
shares of the Company

During the year, no Director had any material iaterest in any
contract of significance to the Group's business

Directors' indemnities

The Directars are entitled to be ndemmnified by the Company

to the extent permitted by law and the Company's Articies of
Association in respect of alt losses arising out of or i connection
with the execution ef their powers, duties and responsibilities
The Company has executed deeds of indemnity for the benefit of
each Directer of the Company in respect of habilities which may
attach to them in their capacity as Directors of the Company The
Company purchased and maintained Directors’ and Officers’ iability
insurance throughout 2007, which was renewed for 2008/09
Neither the indemrities nor insurance pravade cover tn the event
that the Director 15 proved to have acted fraudulently

Market value of properties

The Directars believe that the aggregate open market value of
Group properties exceeds the net book value as set out In note 11
on page 50 of the financial statements

Pulicy on payment of creditors

The policy of the Company and its principal operating companies
1s to agree terms of payment prior to commencing trade with a
suppher and to abrde by those terms on the timely subrmission

of satisfactery invoices The Cornpany 15 a holding company and
therefore has no trade creditors Statements on the operating
companies’ payment of suppliers are contained in their financial
statements

Corporate Responsibihty

Samnsbury's has a strong record in its commitment to corporate
responsibility, which1s an everyday part of how the Company
does business Details of the Company s principal corperate
responsibiity imtiatives and activities are set out on pages 7 and 8
The Company s Corporate Responsibility report, which will be
published in June 2008 (www )-sainsbury co uk/csreport), provides
a comprehensive statement on corporate responsibiity and
describes the Company s pelicies and activities in relabion tots
five corporate respensibility principles, Best for Food and Health,
Sourcing with integrity Respect for Qur Environment Making a
Positive Difference to Qur Community and A Great Place to Work

The Company has well developed policies for fair and equal
treatment of alf colleagues, employment of disabled persons and
colfeague participation During employment the Company seeks

to work with each individual, taking into account their personal
circumstances, to enable them to reach and maxirmise their potentias

The Company also actively warks with a number of organisations,
which seek to promote inclusion within the workplace, these
include

+ Gold Card Members of the Employers’ Farum an Disatihity

+ Signatornies to the 'two tick’ policy, which guarantees an
interview to any disabled apphcant meeting the mimimum
specification for the role

- Waorking with Shaw Trust Remploy and Mencap

The Company's quarterly interim and annual results are presented
to all semer management and are communicated to aft colteagues
Colleagues have always been epcouraged to hold shares in the
Company and over 39,500 colleagues are shareholders directly

or through the Commitment Shares Plan Trust or the Sainsbury's
Share Purchase Plan Trust
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Donations

Buring the year, cash and in kind danations to chantable
orgamsations and other community prorects totalled £7 6 million
(2007 £6 6 milhon) Sainsbury's colteagues, customers and
supplters raised £5 4 mithon (2007 £12 4 million which sincluded
Comic Relief) for chanbes through events sspported by the
Company, including Sports Rebef, Home-Start, which supports
families In focal communities across the UK and CLIC Sargent

a charity caring for children with cancer

The Company made no pobtical donations

Post balance sheet events
Events after the batance sheet date are disclosed in note 38 on
page BS to the hinancial statements

Financial risk management
The financial nsk management and policies of the Group are
disclosed in note 29 on pages 65 to 68 of the financial statements

Going concern

The Directors are satished that the Company has sufficient
resopurces to continue 1in oparation for the foreseeable future
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the gaing concern basis in
preparing the financial statements which are shown on pages 35
to B5

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the Directors confirms that, so far as he/she 1s aware, there
18 no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware
Each Director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit iInformation and to estabiish that the auditors are aware of
that information

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have expressed therr willingness

to be reappointed as auditors of the Company Upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, resolutions to reappoint
them as auditors and to avthorise the Directors te determine ther
remuneration will be proposed at the AGM

By order of the Beard

/—\
et ™
Tim Fallowfield

Company Secretary
13 May 2008
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Statement of corporate governance

The following sections explain how the Company applies the
principles and supporting principles of the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance 2006 (the * Code™)

The Board

The Board 1s chaired by Philip Hampton The Board consists

of three Executive Directors and six Non-Executive Directors

Dr John McAdam, 1s the Senmior Independent Director Mike Coupe
was appointed as an Executive Dwrector and Mary Harnis was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 1 August 2007

Biographical details of the Directars are set cut on pages 18 and 19

The Board held i6 meetings during the year, including a two-

day strategy conference and meetings relating to two potential
takeovers of the Company by the private equity consortium led by
CVC and by Delia (Two) Limited The Nen-Executive Directors met
during the year without the Executive Directors or the Chairman
being present

Division of responsibilities

There 15 a clear division of responsibiities between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive which is set out in wriking and has been
approved by the Board Phip Hampton s responsible for leadership
of the Board, setting its agenda and monitoring its effectiveness

He ensures effective communecation with shareholders and

that the Board 1s aware of the views of major shareholders He
facihitates both the contribution of the Non-Executive Directors

and constructive relations between the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors He ensures that the Chief Executive develops

a strategy which 1s supported by the Board as a whole Justin King
1s respansible for executing the strategy, once agreed by the Board
He creates a framework of values, orgamisation and objectives to
ensure the successful delivery of key targets, and allocates decision
making and responsibibties accordingly He takes a leading role,
with the Chairman, 1n the relationship with all external agencies
and th promoting Sainsbury's

Independence/Non-Executive Directors

The Charman satisfied the independence criteria of the Code on
his appointment and all the Non-Executive Directors who have
served during the year are considered to be independent accarding
to the principtes of the Code Bob Stack 1s a Director of Cadbury
Sehweppes plc which supplies products to Sainsbury s, but neither
the Board, nor Cadbury Schweppes, considers the relationship to
be materiat in the context of thewr overall businesses

The Non-Executive Directors bring wide and varied commercial
experience to Board and Committee deliberations They are
appomnted for animitial three yaar term subject to election by
shareholders at the first AGM after their appointment, after which
their appointment may be extended for a second term, subject to
mutual agreement and shareholder approval

The Board's role

The Board 15 focused on delivening sustainable added value for
shareholders It considers strategic 1ssues, key projects and major
investments and regularly monitors performance against delivery
of the agreed key targets It approves the corporate plan and the
annual budget and reviews performance against targets at every
meeting These and other key responsibiities are formally reserved
powers of the Board

The Board considered a number of specific projects and initiatives
during the year, particularly the two potential takeover approaches
made by the private equty consortium led by CVC and by Delta
{Two) Limited The Board also considered and approved joint
ventures with Land Securities plc {which combines the retail

and development expertise of the two companies to develop
Sainsbury s supermarhets anchored devetopments) and British
Land plc (in order to extend and develop trading stores to improve
the customer offer and value) It considered carefully the Groups
capital structure, in particular the ownership structure of the
Group's freehold property assets, including the ments of separating
these irom the retail pperating business It monitored the progress
of the investigation by the Competition Commission into grocery
retailing 1n the UK and reviewed the Company's development,
leadership and succession planning programmes

The Board delegates certain responsitilities to sts principal
committees The Corporate Responsibility ("CR ) Committee
reviews key CR policy, taking into account the Company s CR
objectives and the overall strategic plan Through the Audit
Cammittee, the Directors ensure the integnty of financial
infermation, the effectiveness of the financial controls and the
internal controf and rnisk management systems The Remuneration
Committee sets the remuneration poficy for Executive Dirgctors
and deterruines their individual remuneration arrangements The
Nomtnation Committee recommends the appointment of Board
Directors and has responsibility for evaluating the balance of the
Board and for succession planning at Board level Further detarls
are set out below

Attendance

During the year the Directors attended the following number of
meatings of the Board and its Comnuttees (the number of meetings
held whitst they were Directors 15 shown 1in brackets)

Aucit CR Nomnation Remuneration
Board € : [= ¢ C

Mike Coupe' 9 - - - -
Anna Ford 15(16) - 2(2) 2(2) 4(4)
Val Gooding 14(16) - - 2(2) k)]
Philip Hampton 16(16) - 2(2) 2(2) -
Mary Harns! (9 2i2) 1(1} (1) -
Gary Hughes 14(16) 4(4) - 2(2) -
Justin King 16(16) - 2(2) - -
John McAdam 16(16) 4(4) - 2(2) -
Darren Shapland  16(16) - - - -
Bob Stack 15(16) - - 2(2) 44)

1 Appomted to the Board on | August 2007
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Statement of corporate governance continued

tnformation and devetopment

The quality and supply of infermation provided to the Board i1s
reviewed as part of the Board evaluation exercise The Chairmanis
responsible for ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
1ssues arising at Board meetings and that they have full and bimely
access to relevant information

There 1s an agreed procedure by which members of the Board may
take independent professional advice at the Company’s expense in
the furtherance of their duties The Company has a programme for
meeting Directors’ training and development requirements Newly
appointed Directors who do not have previous publc company
experience at Board level are provided with appropriate training

on their rele and responsibilifies New Directors participate ina
comprehensive and tailored mduction programme including store
and depot visits and meetings with members of the Gperating
Board, senior management and external advisors Subsequent
training 1s available on an cngoing basis to meet particular needs
with the emphasis on governance and accounting developments
During the year the Company Secretary, Tim Fallowfield, has
provided updates to the Board on relevant governance matters,
new legislation and on Directors’ duties and obligations, whilst the
Audit Commattee reqularly considers new accounting developments
through presentations from management and the external auditors
The Board programme includes presentations from management
which, tegether with site visits, increases the Non Executive
Directors understanding of the business and the sector

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary He has responsibility for ensuring that Board procedures
are foflowed and for governance matters The appoiniment and
removal of the Company Secretary 15 one of the matlters reserved
for the Board

Board evaluation

The Board agreed that this year's evaluation exercise should be
conducted by the Company Secretary Having agreed the key
objecteves with the Chairman, the Company Secretary prepared

a detailed questionnaire and then met with each Director
separately to discuss the Board's rale and structure, process and
relatienships and any emerging 1ssues The performance of the
Board Commitiees was also reviewed The Company Secretary then
presented the Lindings to the Board, 1dentifying what was working
well and areas which could be improved of approached differently
The Board concluded that it was satisfied with the progress that
had been made during the year and that it was working effectively
An action plan was agreed to address the themes which emerged
from the exercise, with some additional items being added Lo the
Board's agenda for the 2008/09 financial year

The Senior Independent Directar reviewed the Chairman’s
performance and subsequently met with him to provide feedback
to him The Chairman separately revwiewed the cantnibution of each
of the Directors with them

Operating Board

Day to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Operating Board which s chaired by Justin King The Qperating
Board held ten formal meetings during the year Directors’
responsibilities are set out on page 20 1t has formal terms of
reference setting out its key responsibilbties Minutes are copied
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to the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors Operating Board
members regularly attend and present at Board meetings as well
as the strategy conference

The Operating Board has delegated certain powers {o the Trading
Board, the Retall Board and the Investment Board and receives
regular reports from the Health and Safety Committes, the Product
Safety Committee and the Corporate Responsibility Steering Group

Board Committees
The Board has delegated certain responsibiities to the Noemination
Remuneration, Corporate Responsibihty and Audit Committees

Nomination Committee

The Nominatton Commuittee 15 chaired by Philip Hampton and
compnses each of the Non Executive Directors Justin King s
not a member of the Committee although he s invited to
attend meelings

The Committee has reviewed succession planming and senior
management development during the year, and the composition
and balance of the Board, and the Committee recemmended to the
Board that Mike Coupe and Mary Harris be appointed as Directors
The Commuttee led the recruitment process, which resuited in
Mary Harns being appointed Search consultants were instructed
by the Committee in connection with this appointment having
considered the skills, knowledge, background and expenence
required for the role, and a job specification was prepared The
Committee also specified the time commitment expected of the
role Prefiles of a shortlist of preferred candidates were prepared
for the Committee and the potential composition and mix of the
candidates were considered from a team perspective in order

to ensure a complementary combination of competencies and
experience Prior to Mary Harris’ appointment the Committee
considered a full range of references and the Non Executive
Directors took the opportunity to meet her separately

The Committee's terms of reference are available on the website
(www J-sainsbury co uk/governance) and set out the Committee’s
responsibthities The Committee meets when necessary and in
2007/08 met formally on two occasions and received further
regular updates on the recruitment process

Remuneration Committee

The Commttee 1s chaired by Bob Stack who was appointed

a Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Commitiee on

1 January 2005 The Remuneration report 1s set out on pages 27
to 32

Corporate Responsibility Committee

The Commuittee I1s chatred by Anna Ford and Justin King and
Mary Harris are its members It met twice during the year

Formal meetings are supported by CR strategic meetings hosted
by Anna Ford and Justin King Each meeting 1 based around one
of our five CR principles and key external siakeholders are invited
to attend Duning the year five meetings were held, relating to
gach of the five preinciples
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Statement of corporate governance continued

At operational level, Justin King 1s the overall CR champion and
chairs the CR Steenng Group, attended by the five Operating
Board Directors who champion each of our five CR principles

A summary of the Company's corporate responsibility pnorities and
activities are set on page 7 This year's Corporate Responsibility
report will be pubhished in June 2008

The Association of British tnsurers recommends that the Board
considers matenal nisks and control processes relating to
corporate responsibihty The Board receives an annual update on
health and safely and product safety, and relevant controls and
governance, and any specific 1ssues are reported to the Board as
they occur In addition the Audit Committee’s review of the system
ol internal controks and risk management processes referred

{o below includes corporate responsibility and the Commutlee
considers any major corporate responsibility or brand reputation
rnisks identified by the process, to the extent any such exst The
inguction programme for new Board Directors includes a full
review of corporate responsibility

Audit Committee

The Committee 1s chaired by Gary Hughes with John McAdam and
Mary Harris (from her appointment on 1 August 2007) as its other
members, all of whom are independent Non-Executive Directors
Following Jamie Dundas’ retirement from the Board on 2 February
2007, until Mary Harris was appointed the Committee membership
comprised only two independent Non Executive Directors, but
Prilip Hampton, who has extensive financial expenence, attended
all meetings of the Commuttee inciuding the two meetings of the
Committee during this penod The Board has determined that
Gary Hughes has recent and relevant financial experience Philip
Hampton, Justin King, Darren Shapland, Karen Whitworth,
Diwector of Group Internal Audit, other senior members of the
Ftnance Division and the external auditors are invited to attend
Commiitee meetings The Company Secretary acts as secretary

to the Committee

During the year the Commiitee met on tour occasions, the
agendas bewng crganised around the Company’s reporting cycle It
monitored the integrity of the financial statements and any formal
announcements relating to the Company s financial performance
and reviewed any significant financial judgements contained n
them The Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company s financial controls and the internal centrol and nisk
managerment systems and has monitored progress to ensure that
any required remedial action has been or 15 being taken on any
identifted weaknesses

The Committee reviewed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP's ("PwC’)
overall work plan and approved thetr remuneration and terms of
engagement and considered in detail the results of the audit,
PwC's performance and independence and the effectiveness of
the overall audit process The Committee recommended PwC's

re appointment as auditors to the Beard and this resotution wilt
be put to shareholders at the AGM

The Commttee has implemented the Company's policy which
restricts the engagement of PwC in relation to non-audit services
The policy 15 designed to ensure that the provision of such services
daes not have an impact on the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity It identifies certain types of engagement that

the external auditors shall not underiake and others (such as

tax planming and mergers and acquisitions advice) that can only
be undertaken with appropriate authonty from the Committee
Charrman or the Committee where non-audit fees will exceed
pre-set thresholds The Committee receives a report at each
meeting on the non-audit services being provided and the
cumulative total of non audit fees In the event that cumulative
non-audit fees exceed the audit fee then all subsequent non-audit
expenditure must be approved by the Committee Chawman The
majority of the nan-audit work undertaken during 2007/08 related
te corporation tax and VAT advice but work was also carned out
on the takeover proposals and accounting advice on specific
transactions The non audit fees for the year were EO T mutfion
and the audit fee for the year in respect of the Group, Company
and its subsidianies was EO 8 millign

The Commuittee has regularly reviewed the Internal Audit
department's resources, budget work programme, results and
management’s implementation of its recommendations During

the year the Commiitee approved the appomntment of Karen
Whitworth as the new Director of Group Internal Audit She has
direct access to the Commuttee Chairman and Phihp Hampton Gary
Hughes has held separate meebings with her and PwC during the
year The Commuttee regularly met with PwC without management
being present, and may meel the Director of Group Internal Audst
separately if it deems necessary

The Commwttee has reviewed the Company's whistleblow:ng'
procedures durtng the year and confirmed that arrangements are
in place to enable colleagues and supphiers to raise concerns about
possible improprieties on a confidential basis

The Caompany has a fraud policy and has established a Serious
Fraud Commitiee, which canvenes in the event of serious incidents
to oversee case management and ensure preventative measures
are taken The Audit Commitiee recerves an update at each
meeting of all material frauds and the actions taken

The Commitiee s terms of reference, which are available on
the websiie (www J-sainsbury co uk/governance) set out the
Committee’s responsibilities

Internal control

The Board has overall responsitihity for the system of internal
controls, inctuding risk management and has delegated certain
of these responstbiities to the Audit Committee The Audit
Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of
internal control and ensured that any required remedial action
has or 15 being taken on any identified weaknesses The system
of internal controls 1s designed to manage rather than ehminate
the risk of fallure to achieve the Campany's business objectives
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss It includes all controls
includhng hinancial, operational and comphiance conirols and risk
management procedures
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Statement of corporate governance continued

The processes used to assess Lhe effectiveness of the internal
controd systems are ongoing, enabhng a cumulative assessment
to be made, and include the following

= discussion and approval by the Board of the Company's strategic
direction, plans and objectives and the nisks to achieving them,

« review and approval by the Board of budgets and forecasts,
incfuding both revenue and capital expenditure,

= regular cperational and financial reviews of performance
against budgets and forecasts by management and the Board.,

« regular reviews by management of the nsks to achieving
objectives and actions being taken to mitigate them,

« regular reviews by the Board and Audit Committee of
identified fraudulent activity and any whistleblowing by
colleagues or suppliers, and actions being taken to remedy
any conirol weaknesses,

+ regular reviews by management and the Audit Committee
of the scope and results of internal audit work across the
Company and of the implementation of recommendations
The scope of the work covers all key activities of the Company
and concentrates on higher nsk areas,

« reviews of the scope of the work of the external auditors
by the Audit Committee and any significant issues arising,

« reviews by the Audit Committee of accounting paolicies and
levels of delegated authority, and

= consideration by the Board and by the Audit Committee of
the major nsks facing the Group and of the procedures in
place to manage them These include health and safety,
product safety legal compliance hitigation, quahty assurance,
insurance and security and reputational, social, ethical and
enviranmental risks

There s a continuous process for identifying, evalvating and
managing the significant risks faced by the Company This
process has been in place throughout the year and up to the
date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements
and accords with the Turnbull guidance {(2005)

The eifectiveness of the process 1s reviewed annually by the
Audit Committee which then reports to the Board The process
consists of

« farmal identification by management of each division of the key
risks to achieving their business objectives and the controls in
ptace to manage them The hkehihood and potential impact of
each risk 15 evaluated and actions necessary to mitigate them
are identified The rnisks and progress in mitigating them are
regularly reviewed at divisional leadership team meetings as
part of thew narmal business activities,

« certibcation by management that they are responsible for
managing the risks to ther business objectives and that the
internal controls are such that they provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance that the nisks in their areas of responsibiity
are appropriately identified, evaluated and managed,

« reporting and review by the Operating Board of nsk
management activities and actions to improve thew
effectiveness,

» assurance {rom specialist functions and commitiees that
tegal and regulatory health and safety, product safety, social,
ethecal and environmental risks are appropriately identified and
managed, and
independent assurance by Internal Audit as to the existence
and effectiveness of the risk management activities descnibed
by management
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The system of internal control and nisk management 1s embedded
into the aperations of the Company, and the actions taken to
mitigate any weaknesses are carefully monitored

Investor relations

The Company 15 committed to maintaining good communications
with investors Normal shareholder contact 1s the responsibility of
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Investor
Retations The Chairman, Phihtp Hampton, 1s generally availlable

o shareholders and meets with institubional and other large
investors as required

There 15 a regular diatogue with institutional and other large
investors who, along with buyside and sellside analysts, are
invited to presentations by the Company immediateby after the
announcement of the Company's interim and full year results

They are also invited to participate in conference calls following the

announcement of the Company s trading statements The content
of these presentabons and conference calls are webcast and are
posted on the Company's website {(www| sainsbury co uk/investors)
50 as to be available to all investors

To ensure that the Board understand the views of the major
shareholders, Makinson Cowell provide investor relations
consultancy serwvices to the Company and report to the Board

on the views of institutional investors and sellside analysts Non
Executive Directors also receive reqgular market reports and broker
updates from the Company’s Investor Relations department

Sharehclders have the opportunity to meet and question the
Board at the AGM, which will be held on 15 July 2008 There

will be a display of various aspects of the Company's activities
and Justin King will make a business presentation A detalled
explanaltion of each item of special business (o be considered at
the AGM s included with the Notice of Meeting which will be sent
ta shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting All
resolutions proposed at the AGM will be taken on a pall vote This
follows best practice guidelines and enables the Company to count
all votes, not just those of shareholders who attend the meeting

Informatton on matters of particular interest to investors
15 set out on page 87 and on the Company s website
(www ) sainsbury co uk/investors)

Compliance statement
Durtng the year, the Company has comphed with the provisions
of the Code with the exception that as explained above, the Audit

Committee had only two Independent Directors as members instead

of three until Mary Harris was appointed on 1 August 2007
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Remuneration report

This report 1s made by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee The first part of the report provides
details of remuneration policy The second part provides details

of the remuneration, pensions and share plan interests of the
Directors for the year ended 22 March 2008 The Directors confirm
that this report has been drawn up in accordance with Schedule 7A
of the Companies Act 1985

A resalution will be put to shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting { AGM") on 15 July 2008 asking them to approve
this report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 15 chaired by Bob Stack, Chief Human
Resources Officer of Cadbury Schweppes plc The Commitiee
comprises Bob Stack, Anna Ford and Val Gooding, all of whom are
independent Non Executive Directors The Commuttee met four
tumes in 2007/08

Tim Fallowfietd, Company Secretary, acts as secretary to the
Committee Phibhp Hampton, Justin King and Imelda Walsh, Human
Resources Director, are invited to attend Committee meetings The
Committee considers thewr views when reviewing the remuneration
of the Executive Directors and Operating Board Directors They are
not involved in discussions concerning their own remuneration

The responsibilities of the Committee include

- deterrmirning and agreeing with the Board the broad
remuneration policy for the Chairman, Executive Directors and
the Operating Board Directors,

+ setting individual remuneration arrangements for the Chairman
and Executive Directors,

- recommending and monitaring the level and structure of
remuneration for these members of senior management within
the scape of the Committee, namely the Operating Board
Directors and any other executive whose salary exceeds that
of any Operating Board Director, and

< approving the service agreements of each Executive Director,
including termination arrangements

The Committee’s terms of reference are available on the Company s
website (www j-sainsbury co uk/governance)

The Committee 1s authorised by the Board te appoint external
advisers i it considers this benefictal Over the course of the year,
the Committee was advised by Deloitte & Touche LLP ( Deloitte’ )
whose consultants attended each Committee meeting and
received copres of all the relevant papers Deloitte also advised the
Company on organisational, human rescurces unrelated internal
audit matters and IT consulting services Towers Perrin provided
comparative data which was constdered by the Committee in
setting remuneration levels The Committee has also been advised
by Linklaters, who also provided legal advice to the Company,
whiist Total Shareholder Return { TSR") calcutations are supphed
by UBS, who prowided broking and banking services to the Company
duning the year

Remuneration policy

it 15 the intention of the Committee that Executive and Operating
Board Directors remuneration should be competitive, both in
terms of base salary and total remuneration, taking into account
the individual Director’s role, performance and expenience This
approach i designed to promote the Company's short and long
term success through securing and retainrng high cabibre executive
talent Basic salary is targeted around the median of the market
with an opportunity to earn above median levels of total reward
In return for exceptional performance A significant proportion of
the total remuneration package 15 performance related, aligning
management’s and shareholders interests Remuneration policies
and practices are alhigned with the key corporate strategy, targets
and objectives and are designed to create long term value

for shareholders

In 2006, following an extensive consultabion exercise with
shareholders and institutions, the Committee formulated a new
incentive framework (the Value Burlder” framework) to support
the business strategy over the medwm to longer term This was
consistent with best practice and was approved by shareholders
at the 2006 AGM

The Value Builder tramework 1s based upon a number of key
principles so as to

+ build on the sales led recovery plan announced in 2004 by
embedding key measures of financial and capital efficiency,

+ supporlt strong performance of the core business and delivery
of shareholder value by generating quality earnings, growing
profits and generating cash for future investments and/or
return to shareholders,

» provide a common focus for the top 1,000 managers {from
Chuef Executive to supermarket store managers} on criticat
business measures,

- retain and motivate talent for the longer term, and

- provide competitive reward opportunities for delivering
exceptional performance

The Value Buillder framework 1s a key part of the Company's total
reruneration package and consists of two elements, a deferred
annual bonus plan with a performance related share match and a
long-term incentive plan These plans are described in detall below

Set oul In the relevant sections below 15 an gverview of how the
Commuttee tntends to align the remuneration framework with these
key principtes over the next financial year

Components of remuneration
The main remuneration components for the Executive Directors
and Operating Board Directors are set out below

1} Basic salary

Basic salary for each Executive Director 18 determined by the
Committes, taking account of the Directaor s performance,
experience and responsibihties The Committee also reviews
Operating Board Dhrectors’ salaries taking similar factors intoe
account The Committee considers salary levels in comparable
companies by referring to the pay practices across the UK retail
sector, in compames with an annual sales revenue over £5 bilion
and atso in compames with a market capitahisation of between
£3-£10 billien This approach ensures that the best avalable
benchmark for the Director’s specific pesitionis obtamed The
Committee also has regard to economic factors, remuneration
trends and the level of salary increases throughout the Company
when determining Executive Directors’ sataries

For 2008/09 the Executive Directors’ salaries were increased

by 2 5 per cent, consistent with wider pay adjustments made for
management and central non-management colleagues With
effect from 23 March 2008 the base salary of Executive Directors
has been increased as follows

Justin King from £850,000 to £872,000 per annum

from £500,000 to £513,000 per annum
from £475,000 to £E487,000 per annum

Barren Shapland

Mike Coupe

1) Incentive arrangements

in addition ta basic salary, the Company currently operates
incentive arrangements that comprise an annwal bonus plan and
long term incentive plans The Commttee bebeves that incentive
opportunihies provided under these plans refltect an appropriate
balance between personal and Group performance As such, they
ahgn the rewards of Directors with the Company's immediate
business prigrities and the longer term interests of shareholders
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Remuneration report continued

The balance between the fixed (basic salary and pension) and
variable (annual bonus and fong term incentive plan} elements of
remuneration changes with performance and the vanable proportion
of total remuneration increases significantly for increased levels

of performance For median performance, since the introduction of
the deferred annual bonus plan and long-term incentive plan, it 15
anbicipated that between 50 to 60 per cent of total remuneration
for Executive Directors will be performance related

Incentive arrangements for Executive Directors and Operating
Board Directors for the 2007/08 finantial year consisted of the
Deferred Annual Bonus Flan and Yalue Builder Share Plan Awards
earned under each of the incentive plans are non pensionable

The following section describes those plans n detail together
with the J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 20035 (known as ‘the Making
Sainsbury s Great Again Plan )} whichis now closed and no further
grants will be made under 1t

Durning 2008, the Remuneration Committee will carry out a review
of remuneration policy to ensure that it continues te support

the Company's long term strateqic geals and provide market
competitive reward opportunities

Annual Benus Plan

All bonus plans across the Company are aligned under a set of
shared commeon principles For 2007/08 Board and management
plans retained the same key targets based on profit, sales and
product availability, plus an element for persenal performance
The Executive Directors, Operating Board Ciwrectors and all
colleagues shared annual targets focused on sales and availlability
Avallabiity 1s measured across all stores on a regular basis by an
independent third party, conducting random and unannounced
store visits In determining bonus payments for 2007/08, the
Commuittee took account of individual performance over a
difficult and challenging year, as well as performance against
the key hinancial/business targets of profit, sales and avallability
A payment will be made to Executwve Directors in June 2008

The 2007/08 bonus plan for store colleagues was based on the
achievement of availabiity and customer service targets, measured
1n their individual stores, and a corporate sales target As a result
of stores and corporate performance in 200708, around 117,000
colleagues will receive a bonus payment in respect of the 2007/08
financial year totalling around £47 milhion

For the 2008/09 year, the maximum annual bonus opportunty

will remain at 150 per cent of salary for Justin King and 100 per
cent for Darren Shapland and Mike Coupe The Ptans performance
measures will continue to be based around profit, sales, availlabihty
and personal performance For 2008/09 the greatest weighting will
be on profit

Deferred Annual Bonus Plan 2006

The Deferred Annual Benus Plan applies to the top levels of
management including Executive Directors and currently comprises
around 49 participants in total The first deferral took place in June
2007, n respect of the 2006/07 bonus awards The next deferral
will take place in June 2008

The Committee belreves that there should be a strong link between
short term and long term performance both in terms of business
targets and associated rewards Subject to the Company’s TSR
periormance against an indusiry comparator group, there wilt

be an opportunity for the shares deferred from the Executive
Directors’ bonus awards to be matched by up to two times,
dependent upon the extent to which the TSR performance
measure has been met The Plan is consistent with the Company's
remuneration policy 1s designed to support the achtevement of
both shori term and long-term performance targets, introduces a
further retention etement and helps to promote share ownership
among senlor management
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Under the Plan, a percentage of Executive Directors’ earned gross
annual benuses s deferred into the Company’s shares for a period
of three years The compulsory deferral for Justm King 1s 25 per
cent of hus gross bonus, with 20 per cent compulsory deferral for
Darren Shapland and Mike Coupe In addition, Executive Directors’
may elect to defer a further proportion of their gross annual bonus,
provided it does not exceed thesr compulsory deferrat level In
respect of the 2006/07 bonus award, Justin King decided to defer
the maximum level of 25 per cent of tus bonus on a voluntary basis
Darren Shapland and Mike Coupe deferred 20 per cent of therr
bonus, the maximum allowed on a voluntary basis

To create a greater alignment between the Executive Directors’
and sharenolders’ interests, the Plan measures the Company's TSR
performance over a three year peniod against a bespoke UK and
Eurcpean retall comparator group compnsing Ahold, Carrefour,
Castno, Delhaize, DSG International, Home Retal Group, Kinghsher
Marks & Spencer, Metro, Mornisons, Next and Tesco Alhance Boots
was removed from the comparator group following its de hsting

Up to two matched shares may be awarded for each share deferred
depending on the extent to which the TSR measure 15 achieved

No shares are awarded for below median perfermance, and the

full match wikl only apply where the Company achieves first place
within the comparator group At median position the match will be
0 5 shares for each deferred bonus share and the share match will
be pro rated at every position between median and first place

To the extent that the performance condition 15 met at the end of
the three year performance period the matched shares will be
added to the deferred bonus shares The deferred bonus shares

and half of the matched shares can be accessed immediately, while
the remainder will be hetd over for & further year Dividends or their
equivalents will accrue on shares that vest

Long-term Incentive Plan 2006

The top 1000 managers in the Company participate in this
Plan (known as “"the Value Builder Share Plan }, frem the Chief
Executive 1o supermarket store managers, and share common
performance measures

Under the Plan a core award of shares in the Company s granted
to all participants, calculated as a percentage of their salaries

and scaled according to grade As set out below, dependent

upon performance, core awards can grow by up to four times No
awards vest for performance below the threshold levels For 2008,
following a review of the market competitive environment, the
Remuneration Commitiee determined that in order to retain and
incentivise s executive talent beyond the business milestones set
1In 2004, 3 maumum core award of 62 5 per cent of salary will be
made to Justin King in 2008 Core awards of SO per cent will be
made to Darren Shapland and Mike Coupe

Awards vest based on the performance of two stretching
co-dependent performance conditions Return on Capital Employed
{* ROCE") and a cash flow per share measure, both of which

will be measured over the three year performance peried There

15 na retesting

These measures are designed Lo continue to build on the sales led
recovery plan and focus on creating further shareholder value
ROCE measures the efficiency with which new cash is invested

and through which existing capital delivers profit, driving both cost
savings and operabional efficiencies Cash flow per share captures
the Company’s operational efficiency as well as the Company's ability
o generate cash for future invesiment or return to shareholders

In addition, the measures comptement the sales earmings and
avaitability targets set under the annual bonus plan, and the TSR
targets attached to the bonus deferral The Plan measures are key
indicators of business success and therefore create a further direct
link between the interests of management and shareholders




hazel jarvis

Remuneration report continued

No awards will vest unless threshold ROCE and cash flow per share
targets are achieved The performance measures are reviewed each
year by the Commitiee before a new grant 1s made, to ensure that
they remain relevant and stretching

The Committee determined that, for awards to be made in
2008/09, adiustments will be made to the way in which ROCE and
cash flow per share performance s measured, as set out below

ROCE 15 calculated based on shareholders’ proportion of underlying
operating prohit for the business The capital employed figure
excludes the one off impact of ¢apital spend in the year the
calculation 15 made and also accounts for the net pensiton scheme
surplus or detioit after deferred taxation

The Committee determined that whilst management should be
encouraged te reduce volatility in the averall pension position, this
should not have an undue influence on the ROCE calculation, and
that an appropriate focus should be retained on profit generation
and operational efficiency Therefore, the impact of the movement
in the net pension schemes surplus or dehit on the performance
multipher will be capped at 0 5 times for future awards

Total cash flow per share 1s caiculated at the end of the
performance period from two companents

« the underlying cash operating profit or loss for the business
before depreciation and amortisation, tess interest and taxes
(adjusted to strip out the impact of one-off items) 1n the final
year of the performance pericd This reflects the Company s
improved ability to generate sustainable cash flows, plus

« the improvement in normalised working capital over the
performance pertod This reflects the Company's aggregate
contribution to cash from simprovements in working capital over
the three year perod

These components are then added and expressed as a per share
figure The improvement in total cash flow per share i1s expressed
as a percentage of cash operating proht per share in the base year
and 1$ annuahsed

The working capital element will be capped so as not to comprise
more than one third of the total cash flow per share figure {the two
components being considered on an absolute basis)

Vesting 1s calculated by applying a performance multipleer to the
core award on a sliding scale up to four times The performance
matrix applying to Value Builder awards to be made in 2008 15
set out below Straight-line vesting will apply If performance falls
between two points

ROCE Total cash Hiow per share percentage

I% &% 9% 12%: 15%
15% 15 25 30 35 490
14% 10 15 20 30 35
13% 05 10 15 20 30
12% - 05 10 15 25
11% - - 05 10 15

Performance will be measured at the end of the performance
period If the required level of performance has been reached,

50 per cent of the award will be released at the end of year three
Subject to participants remaiming m employment for a further year,
the balance will be released on the fourth anniversary of the date
of grant The Committee has discretion to make adjustments to the
calculatton of the performance measures (for instance for matenal
acguisttions and disposals) to ensure it remains a true and farr
reflection of performance Dividends will accrue on the shares that
vest in the form of additional shares

J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 2005

Following extensive investor consultation, the J Sainsbury Share
Plan 2005 (known as the “Making Sainsbury's Great Again Plan™)
was designed to reward strong growth in sates and profitability

It 1s a one ofi, self funded incentive arrangement and was closed
to new entrants on 25 March 2006

Over 1,000 colleagues received conditional core awards under
ttus Plan, from the Chief Executive through to supermarket store
managers, focused onidentical targets The levels of core award
were scaled according to senionty, the maximum being 100 per
cent of salary for the Chief Executive In addition, all Executive
Drirectors and Operating Board Directors committed to making

a personal investment of 5O per cent of salary m the Plan -
accordingly Justin King, Darren Shapland and Mike Coupe
acquired 118,754, 70,224 and 73,891 shares respectively

Performance 1s measured over a four-year peried from the financial
year ended 26 March 2005 until the year ending March 2009
Awards will vest if two stretching and co-dependent performance
conditions are achieved growth in sales and earnings per share

¢ EPS")} No awards wili vest unless threshold levels of growth in
both safes and EPS are achieved

The maximum award avaslable under the Plan i1s targeted towards
sales growth of £2 5 bilhon (using a base figure of £13,588 mithon)
and compound annual growth in EPS of at Ieast 21 per cent over a
tour year period There 1s an gpporturnuty for partial vesting of up
to half the award if accelerated periormance targets have been
met at the end of year three {the year ended 22 March 2008}
Performance will be tested in May 2008, and 1t s expected that
awards will vest in full and that, in accordance with the accelerated
vesting provisions, half of those awards will then be released

The EPS base year and targets were originally set under the Plan
In accerdance with UK GAAP However, fellowing the introduction
of IFRS the Committee concluded that, in arder to ensure that
calculations were measured consistently and transparently and

by reference to audited figures, the UK GAAP methodelogy should
be replaced by IFRS After considering various possible ways of
restabing the EPS base and target hgures, the Committee agreed
that the base year EPS should be updated to reflect IFRS Asa
result EPS 15 now measured with reference to underlying basic EPS
This reduced EPS for the base year fram 8 6 pence per share to

8 3 pence per share The third and fourth year targets will alsa be
reduced by the same amount of O 3 pence per share to mamtain
them at the same levels

Vesting 1s calculated by applywng a performance muttipher to the
core award and personal investment, this is on a sliding scale from
one times to five times and ts plotted i a matnix format, as set out
on page 79 Dwvidends will accrue on any shares that vest and will
be released to participants in the form of additional shares at the
paint of vesting

iif) Other share plans

In order to encourage wider employee share ownership, the
Coempany provides two all employee share plans for colleagues,
namely the Savings Related Share Option Scheme (“SAYE ) and
the All Employee Share Ownership Plan Execulive Directors may
participate in these plans in the same way as all other colleagues
and Justin King 1s currently participating in both plans Darren
Shapland and Mike Coupe participate in the SAYE plan As these
are all employee plans there are no performance ¢onditions

The 2002 ((ive year) SAYE plan reached matunty on 1 March 2008
Around 3,500 colleagues could use ther savings and tax free
bonus to buy Sainsbury’s shares at the 239 0 pence option price
The 2004 (three-year} SAYE plan matured at the same time and

a further 4,800 colieagues could use therr savings and tax free
bonus to buy Sainsbury’s shares at the 2170 pence option price
Using the market price on the date of the first exercise the value of
all the shares subject Lo the matunty was w excess of E213 milhon
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Remuneration report continued

We currently have over 25,000 colleagues participating in the SAYE
plan with over 49 300 individua! savings contracts

In 2003 we gave some free shares under our All Employee Share
Ownerstup Plan to all colleagues who had one financial year's
service These shares were held in a trust for five years and on

4 June 2008, 14 milhon shares will be released to 39,600 colleagues

iv} Pensions

The Company's Defined Beneht Pension Plan was closed on

A Januwary 2002 and neither Justin King, Darren Shapland nor
Mike Coupe participate in it Justin King and Mike Coupe do not
participate in any Company pension plan and instead receive cash
supplements tn respect of their taxable pensionable earnings For
2007/08 Justin King and Mike Coupe received pensions supplements
of 30 per cent of salary and 25 per cent of salary respechively

Darren Shapland 15 a member of the Executive Stakeholder
Pension Plan, a defined contnbution arrangement which 1s open
to all seriar management He contributes five per cent of hus
salary up to the Company’s earnings cap (2007 £112,800) whilst
the Company contribution 15 12 5 per cent of salary up to the cap
To the extent that his basic satary exceeds the earnings cap, the
Company pays him a cash supplement of 25 per cent of salary
on his pensionsable earnings in excess of the cap

v) Benefits
Other benefits for Directors may include the provision of company
car benefits and free private medical cover

Shareholding guidelines

To create greater alignment with the intérests of shareholders
and to be consistent with one of the objectives of the incentive
framework, the Commuttee has proposed that all Executive
Directors and Operating Board Directors should build up a
shareholding in the Company over a five year penod starting from
2006/07 that is equal to their annual basic salary, and maintain
it thereaiter At the year-end, Justin King held 390,383 shares
n total Darren Shapland held 137,253 shares and Mike Coupe
98175 1n add:tion to thew share scheme grants At the year end,
based on year end share price this represented 153 per cent,

91 per cent and 69 per cent of salary respechively

Performance graph

The graph below shows the TSR performance of annvestment of
£1001n J Sainsbury ple shares over the last five years compared
with an equivalent investmentin the FTSE 100 Index This has
been setected Lo provide an established and broad based index

Service contracts

Justin King has a service contract which can be terminated by
either party by giving 12 months’ written notice H s service
contract 1s terminated without cause, the Company can reguest
that he works ms notice period or takes a period of garden leave,
or can pay an amount in beu of notice equal to one Limes basic

J Salnsbury plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2008

salary for the notice period plus 75 per cent of basic salary i
Ireu of all other benefits including pension and bonus In addition,
i he1s dismussed within six months of a change of control the
above sum will become payable The contract contains restrictive
covenants, which continue for 12 months after termination

If Darren Shapland s or Mike Coupe s service contracts are
terminated without cause, the maxtmum payment they would
receve would be equal to one times basic salary for the 12 manth
notice period plus 50 per cent of basic salary in lieu of all other
benehits They are required to mibigate thetr losses and would
recewve phased payments, which would be reduced or terminated
if they secured alternative employment during the notice
period Their contracts also contain restrnictive covenants, which
continue for 12 months after termenation The contracts do not
contain any specific provisions relating to change of control

The Executive Directors’ service contracts became eifective on the
fellowing dates

Contract gate

Justin King 29 March 2004
Darren Shapland 1 August 2005
Mike Coupe 1 August 2007
Chairman

The Chairman does not have a service cantract His letter

of appointment became effective on 19 July 2004 He was
appointed for annitial term of three years renewable on a
12 month rolling basis thereafter by mutual consent

His appointment may be terminated at any time upon six
months’ written notice from either party He devates such ime
as 15 necessary to perform his duties The Charman’s lfees will
not be increased in 2008/09 and have remained unchanged
since hus appointment in 2004

The Chairman does not participate in any performance retated
incentive plans

Men-Executive Directors

Nen-Executive Directors do not have service contracts They are
appointed for an wutial three year penod which may be extended
for a further term by mulual consent The initial appointments

and any subsequent re appaintments are subject to election or
re-election by shareholders Their appointments may be terminated
on three maonths' notrce from either side

Non Executive Directors are paid a basic fee in cash of £50 000 per
annum with additional fees of £10,000 per annum being payabte to
the Senior Independent Director and to the Chairmen of the Audit
Rermuneration and Corporate Responsibility Committees The fees
are reviewed annually by a sub commttee of the Board consisting
of Lthe Charrman and one or mora Executive Directors, which takes
mto account market rates and the specific responsibibiies and
time commitments of the role within Sainsbury’s Non Executive
Directors' fees will not increase in 2008/09 Non Executive
Directors do not participate in any performance related plans

The Mon-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment became
effective on the following dates

Appointment date

Anna Ford 2 May 2006
Val Gooding 11 January 2007
Mary Harris 1 August 2007
Gary Hughes 1 January 2005
John McAdam 1 September 2005
Bob Stack 1 January 2005
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Remuneration report continued

The following section provides details of the remuneration, pension and share pfan interests of the Directors for the year ended

22 March 2008 and has been audited

I} Directors' remuneration

The remuneration of the Directors for the year was as foltows

Pension Total* Tota®
Salaryfiees Banus! supplement’ Benefits® 2008 2007
Note £0Q0 £000 £000 EDQO £000 £QQ0
Justin King 17 850 1,042 255 29 2,176 1,921
Darren Shapland 500 429 a7 16 1,042 919
Mike Coupe 2 311 302 Tl 10 694 -
Philip Hampton 3685 - - 1 396 396
Anna Ford 60 - - - &0 43
Val Gooding 50 - - - 50 10
Mary Harris 2 33 - - - 33 -
Gary Hughes 60 - - - &0 54
John McAdam &0 - - - 60 55
Bob Stack 60 - - - 60 55
Payments made to Directars who left the
Board before the start of the financial year 54
Total 2008 2,379 1,773 423 56 4,631
Total 2007 1,824 1,365 246 T2 - 3,507

Highest pald Director
Appainted to the Board on § August 2007

1

2

3 Ingludes periormance benyses earned in the perlod under review bul not paid in the financial year ended 22 Warch 2008

4 Justin King is not a member of the Company pension schemes and recelved 30 per cent of his bask salary as a cash pension supplement In addition to this supplement £4 000 (2007 £4 000) of
nterest has been sarned on & national fund during the year frem his previous mesnbership of the Executive Stakeholder Pension Pan kike Coupe is not 3 member of the Company pension schemes
and recetved 25 per cent of his bask 5a1ary as & cash pens.on supplement. Darren Shapland s a member of the Executive Stakeholder Pension Plan. Contributions to the Stakehokier Plan by ihe
Coempany in 2007/08 n respect of his membership were E14 100 (2007 £13,575) He recelved a cash pension supplement equal to 25 per cent ol the amount by which his salary exceeded 1he Company s

earnings cap (2007 E£112 BOO}
Benelits include company car benetits and private medical cover

~ oo

The totals for 2007 and 2008 (in the case of Darren Shapland) do not inchede deductions made from bask satary for Saving Money and Reducing Tax {"$MART™) pensions.
The Company ailows Executive Dwetors to lake up dne non executhve role outside the Company subject to a consideration of the role anc the 1ume commitment. Directars are enlitled ta retain
the fees earned from such an appontment Justin King was appointed & Nar-Executive Oirectar of Staples, Inc on 1T September 2007 and recerved US $43 750 for his services durning the year

He atso received trom Staples, Inc & 414 restricted stock units which vest between March 2009 and December 2010 tn addition he received 48199 Stock Options, 15,699 of which vest In March 2009

with the remalnder vesting 25 per cent per annum
li) Long-term incentive plans

Performance Share Plan

Under the Plan shares conditionally allocated to participants are released to them in the form of options if the performance condition 15
met at the end of the three-year performance period The number of shares conditionally allocated in 200415 shown below No allocabtions

were made from 2005/06 and the Plan ts now ¢losed

Number of Number of Number of
shares shares Mud-market Options shares
conditionalty conditionalty  price on date granted Mid-mar ket conditionally
allocated as Lapsed allpcate¢ ol conditional during the price on day allocated as Eng of
at 24 March during during allecation year under  ophon granted at 22 March performance
2007 the year the year pence the Plan pente 2008 period
Justin King 200504 184,762 36,952 - 2740 147,810 5580 - 240307

The above bgures for the 2004 award show the maximum award that would have been feleased provided that the Company achieved 1irst position wihin the comparator group (namely Ahokd, Alliance
Boots Carrefour Casino. DSG International, Kinglisher Loblaw Marks & Spencer Morrisons, Next and Tes<o), at the end of the three-year periormance period Shares to the value of 3G per cent of
salary wouid have been released at median performance Awards were granted on 16 May 2007 and pra rated at the relevant position petween the median and first position in the comparator group The
Company s relative performance was determined by reference 1o TSR being the increase in the value of 3 share inchxding reinvested dividends, aver the three-year peried Tnis measure wat choyen to
ncentivise patticipants for marimisng shareholder returh over the medimm-term.

The following tabte shows the options that were granted in May 2007 as a result of the partial satisfactron of the perfarmance condition
attaching to the conditional allocation awarded 1n 2004

Number Number Mid-market
Number of oplions of options prce on Gains on Number of Tatal Date
of ppiions granted exercised date of option Lapsed options exercise from
24 March during the during the exercise exercises during 22 March price which
2007 year year pence EQDD the year 2008 pence exercisable
Justin King - 147,810 147,810 558 0 B25 - - il -

st Kwwg retained 30 000 shases arising out of this refease
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Remuneration report continued

J Sainsbury pic Share Plan 2005
The table below shows the conditional awards granted under this Plan, which would be released it the Company achieves maximum vesting

Share price at

Date of Core share Personal Maximum  date of awarg  First exercise Last exercise

grant award Investment share award' pence date? date

Justin King 240305 237,508 118,754 1,662 556 2930 140508 230310
Darren Shapland 010805 102,558 70,224 793,686 2805 140508 230310
Mike Coupe 240305 118,226° 73,891° 886,694° 2930 140508 230310

1 The maximum share award exciudes the personal wrvestment shares acquued by the Directors, which must be held for the duration of the Plan. It assumes fult vesting

2 Pertormance will be tested in May 2008 and # |s expected that awards will vest in full and that In accordance with the accelerated vesting provisions hatt of those awards will be releazed.
3 The perforrmance conditions attaching to the award are set out on page 79

4 The J Samsbury plc Share Plan 205 bs a nil coat option plan.

5 As at date of appontment

Long-term Incentive Plan 2006
The table below shows the condiional awards granted under this Plan, which would be released if the Company achieves maximum vesting

Shara price at

Date of Maximum  date of award  First exercise Last exerase

grant share award' pence date? date

Justin King 130706  390,4242 3340 150509 170711
200607 380,844 5835 120510 110512

Darren Shapland 130706 188,4807 3340 150509 170711
2006 07 176,220° 5835 120510 110512

Mtke Coupe 13 07 08 186,3842¢ 3340 150509 170711

2006 07 163,092%% 5835 120510 110512

1 The marimum share award assumes full vesting

2 Deperdding on perfermance partial vesting may occur following the Preliminary Results announcement in 2009
3 Depending on performance partial vesting may occur following the Prelmmary Results annoyncement in 2010,
4 Tne performance conditions attaching o the award are set oul on page BO

5 The Long term incentive Plan 2006 1s a nil cost option plan.

& As alt date of appostment

Deferred Annuat Benus Plan
The table below shows the maximum number of shares conditionally allocated to partictpants and what would be released to them in the
farm of nid cost options if the Company achieves maxuwnum vesting

Share

Deferred Maximum price at
banus matching date of First Last
Date of share share award exercise enercise
gqrant award award pence date? date
Justin King 2006 07 86,026 172 052 5835 120510 110512
Darren Shaptand 200607 29,033 58,066 5835 120510 110512
Mike Coupe 200607 21,2947 42,588° 5835 120510 110512

I The maximum matchang share award 13 the maximum award that winld become exercliable provided that the Company achieves first position withan the comparator group of namely Ahold,
Carrefour Casino, Dethalze DSG International, Home Retail Group, Kingfisher Marks & Spencer Metra, Morrisons, Hext and Tesca. The Company’s relathve perforinance s determined by reterence
ta total shareholder resurn

Depending on performance partlal vesting may occur followlng the Prefiminary Resulls announcement in 2010

As at date of zppainiment

won

111} Restricted Share Plan 2005

As previously disclosed, Darren Shapland gave up valuable entittements ansing from Carpetright Executive Incentive plans when he joined
the Company The Committee agreed to compensate him for his lost entitlements and awards comprising cash payments and restricted
shares were made As the awards compensated him for lost entitiements there were no performance conditions The table shows the final
award of shares released to him duning the year

Netional
gainon
release at
Number of Number of Number of 6B 5 pence
resiricted Date of Date of shares shares per share Vesting
shares gward refease refeased lapsed E0OD date
Darren Shapland 32,200 010805 010807 32,200 - 183 -
Darren Shapland retained 18,998 shares arlsing out of the 2007 release- the remaincer was used to fund the mcome tax and natwpral msurance charge relating to the release
v} Savings Related Share Option Scheme {SAYE")
At the end of the year, the Directors’ SAYE share options were as follows
MNumber of Number of Number of Weghted
Number of options. ophons options Number of average ftange of
optiens gqranted exercsed lapsed oplions exercise exercise Date
24 March during during during 22 March piice prices trom which Date
2007 the year the year the year 2008 pence pence exerasable of expiry
Justin King 6,969 - - - 6,969 2310 2310 010311 310811
barren Shapland 2.881 - - - 2,881 3280 3280 010310 2310810
Mike Coupe 4,0472 - - - 4,047 2310 2310 010311 310811

1 The Savings Retated Share Optlon Scheme i3 an all employee share option scheme and has no performance conditiand as per HURC Requiations.
2 As ot date of appaintment

in the periad from 24 March 2007 to 22 March 2008, the highest mid-market price of the Company s shares was 594 pence and the lowest
mid-market price was 317 5 pence and at 22 March 2008 was 33275 pence

Approved by the Bpard on 13 May 2008

Bob Stack

Chairman of the Remuneration Commi
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Derectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the
Remuneration report and the financial statements n accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors Lo prepare Ninancial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared
the Company and the Group financial statements 1n accordance
with International Frnancial Reporting Standards {"IFRS™) as
adopted by the European Unien The financial statements are
required by law {0 give a true and farr view of the state of affaws

of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the
Group for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are
required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

« make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent,

« state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted
by the Eurepean Urion, and

« prepare the hinancial statements on the gotng concern basts,
unless it 15 inappropriate to presume that the Company and the
Group wilt continue tn business

The Directors confirm that they have comphied with the above
requirements wn preparning the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the Remuneration report comply
with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group finanoial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irrequlanities

The Dhrectors are respgnsible for the maintenange and integrity of the
Company s website Legisiation in the United Kingdom goverming the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions
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Independent Auditors’ report to the members of

J Sainsbury plc

We have audited the Group and Company financial statements (the
financial statements”} of J Sainsbury plc for the 52 weeks ended
22 March 2008 which comprise the Group income statement,
the Group and Company Statements of recognised income and
expense, the Group and Company Balance sheets, the Group and
Company Cash flow statements, and the related notes These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein We have also audited the information in
the Remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditers

The Directors responsibilities tor preparing the Annual Report, the
Remuneration report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the Evropean Union are set out In the
Statement of Directors’ respenssbilibes

Our responsibility i1s to audit the financial statements and the

part of the Remuneration report to be autited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} This repart, including

the opimion, has been prepared for and only for the Company's
members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving
this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person te whom this repoert 1s shown or into whose
hands it may come save where exoressly agreed by our prior
consent n wiiting

We report to you our opirion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements and the part of the Remuneration report to be auvdited
have been properly prepared tn accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinion
the information given in the Directors’ report is consistent with
the hnancial statements The information given in the Directors
report includes that specific information presented in the Business
review that s cross referred from the Business review section of
the Directors’ report

In addition we report to you if, in our opimion the Company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for cur audi, or If
information specified by law regarding Birectors’ remuneration
and other transactions is not disclosed

We review whether the Statement of corporate governance
reflects the Company's comphance with the nine prowisions of the
Combined Code {2006} specifted for our review by the Listing Rules
of the Financial Services Authority, and we report 1f it does not We
are not required to consider whether the Board s statements on
internal control cover all risks and contrels, or form an opinien gn
the effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance procedures
or 1ts nsk and control procedures

We read other information contained in the Annual Report

and consider whether 1t i1s consistent with the audited financial
statements The other information comprises only the Chairman’s
statement, the Business review, the Directors’ report, the
Statement of corporate gaovernance and the unaudited part of the
Remuneration report We consider the imphcations for our report
if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements Our responsibilidies
do not extend to any other information

J Salnshbury plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2008

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with Internationat

Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the finantial
statements and the part of the Remuneration report to be audited
It also Includes an assessment of the signihicant estimates and
Judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the financia!
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the Group s and Company's circumstances, consistently apphed
and adequalely disclosed

We planned and performed our audit 50 as to obtan all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration report to be audited are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity

or error In forming our opmion we also evaluated the overall
adeguacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements and the part of the Remuneration report to be audited

Opinion
In our opinion

» the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion,
of the state of the Group s alfairs as at 22 March 2008 and
of its profit and cash flows for the 52 weeks then ended,

» the Company financial statements give a true and fair view, In
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union as
apphed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 1985, of the state of the Company s affairs as at 22 March
2008 and cash flows for the 52 weeks then ended,

+ the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration
report to be audited have been properiy prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation, and

he information given 1n the Directors’ report 15 consistent with
the financal statements
neciar o Coopus LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Reqistered Auditors

Londen

13 May 2008

Notes

- The maintenance and integrity of the J Samnsbury plc website
15 the responsibility of the Directors, the work carried out by
the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsinihity for any
changes that may have occurred to the financial statements
since they were mihally presented on the website

«  Legslationan the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissermnation of financial statements may differ from
legislation tn other junisdictrons
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Group income statement

for the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008

2008 2007
Naote im Em
Continuing operations
Revenue k| 17,837 17,151
Cost of sales (16,835 (15,979)
Gross profit 1,002 1,172
Administrative expenses (502} (669)
GOther incorme 30 17
Operating profit 4 530 520
Finance income 5 83 64
Finance costs 5 (132) (107
Share of post-tax loss fram Joint ventures 14 (2} -
Frofit before taxation 479 477
Analysed as
Underlying profit before tax 488 380
Profit un sale of propertres a7 7 T
Financing fair value movements 57 ) 8
One off items 7 {12) 82
a79 477
Income tax expense B {150} {153)
Profit for the financial year 329 324
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 329 325
Minority interests - (1)
329 324
Earnings per share 9 pence pence
Basic 191 192
Diluted 186 189
Undertying basic 196 147
Underlying diluted 191 145
Dividends per share 10 pence pence
Interim 300 2 40
Proposed final {not recognised as a hahilty at balance sheet date) 900 7 35

| Samsbury s Bank was lulty consclidated until the Group sold fave per cent of its sharehokding n February 2007 therealler it has been eguity accounted as 3 joint venture
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Statements of recognised income and expense
for the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008

Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note Em £m Em Em
Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension schemes 1 842 179 - -
Availabte for sale financial assets fair vatue movements
Group (31} 24 - -
Jomnt ventures 48 - - -
Cash flow hedges effective partion of fair value movements
Group 2 - - -
Jont ventures (58) - - -
Share based payment tax recogmsed directly in equity 8 10} 17 - -
Deferred tax on items recognised directly in equity 8 {152} {59) - -
Net income recognised directly in equity 341 161 - -
Profit for the financial year 329 324 89 190
Total recognised income for the financial year 670 485 89 190
Attributable to
Equity helders ot the parent 670 486 89 190
Minarity interests - (1} - -
670 485 89 190

s
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Balance sheets

at 22 March 2008 and 24 March 2007

hazel jarvis

Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2001
Nete £m Em £m Em
Mon-current assets
Property plant and equipment 11 7.424 7.176 241 244
Intangible assets 12 165 175 - -
Investments in subsidianies 13 - - 7,169 7,166
Investments in joint ventures 14 148 98 91 76
Available Tor-sale financial assets 17 106 137 - -
Other recevables 16 55 50 976 919
Deferred income tax asset 21 - - 1 1
Retirement benefit asset 31 495 - - -
8,393 7.636 8,478 8,406
Current assets
Inventories 15 681 590 - -
Trade and other receivables 16 206 197 359 375
Derivative financial instruments kL) 4 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 27b 719 1,128 az4 523
1,610 1,915 683 B98
Non current assets held for sale ia 112 25 - -
1,722 1,940 683 898
Total assets 10,115 9,576 9,161 9,304
Current Habilitles
Trade and other payables 19 {2,280) (2,267) {3,522) {4 474)
Short-term borrowings 20 {118} {(373) 88 (269)
Derivative hinanoial instruments 30 (6} (2) (6) (2)
Taxes payable {191) {65) 21 18
Provisions 22 {10} (14) (2) (2)
(2,605} 2,721} (3,597) (4729
Net current liabilities {883) {781) (2,914) (3 831)
Non-current liabilities
Cther payables 19 (89) (33) (1,803} (740}
Long-term borrowings 20 (2,084) (2,090 - -
Dervative financial instruments 30 (18) (43) 18) (43}
Deferred income 1ax habibty 21 {321) (168) - -
Provisions 22 63) (69) (27} (30
Retirement beneht obhgations 31 - (103) - -
(2,575) (2,506) {1,848} (813)
Net assets 4,935 4,349 3,716 3,762
Equity
Called up share capual 23 499 495 499 495
Share premium account 23 896 857 896 857
Capital redemptron reserve 24 680 670 680 670
Qther reserves 24 494 143 - -
Retained earmings 25 2,366 2,184 1,641 1,740
Total equity 26 4,935 4,349 3,716 3,762

The finan¢ial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 May 2008, and are signed on its behalf by

Justin King Chief Executive

Darren Shapland Chief Financial Officer
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Cash flow statements
for the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008

Group Group Cempany Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note Em €m £m Em

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from aperations 27a 998 830 (126) {166}
Interest paid {123) (95) (34) (95}
Corporation tax (pa:d)/received (64) 9 (64) -
Net cash from operating activities 811 744 (224) {261}
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (973) (778} - -
Purchase of intangible assets &) (7} - -
Proceeds from dispesal of property, plant and equipment and other asseis 198 106 1 11
Acquisibion of and investment in subsidiaries and businesses,
net of cash acquired 12 13 [¥4] (3} (3} 249)
Investment in joint ventures {31) - (15} -
Proceeds from part disposal of Sainsbury’s Bank - 21 - 21
Cash disposed on part disposal of Sainsbury's Bank - (33 - -
Cost of disposat of operations (1) 1 1) (L)
Interest received 29 15 116 119
Dividends received - - 250 270
Net ¢ash from investing activities (791) (6B0) 348 396
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 43 81 43 a1
Capital redemption (L) {2) (10 (2)
Repayment of short-term borrowings - (53) - {53)
Repayment of long term borrowings (36) (22) 7 -
Debt restructuring costs - 2 - (2)
Interest elements of abligations under hinance lease payments (3) {3) - -
Dividends paid 10 (178) {140} {178) {140)
Net cash from financing activities (184) {141) {152) {116)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (164) (77N 28) 19
Opening cash and cash equivalents 765 842 264 245
Closing cash and cash equivalents 270 601 765 236 264
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

J Sainsbury pl¢ 15 a pubhc hmited company ( Company')
incorperated in the United Kingdom, whose shares are publicly
traded on the London Stock Exchange The Company 1s domiciled
in the United Kingdom and its registered address 15 33 Holborn,
London ECIN 2HT, United Kingdom

The financral year represents the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008
(prior financial year 52 weeks to 24 March 2007) The consolidated
financial statements for the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008 comprise
the financral statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

( Group’) and the Group's interests in associates and joint ventures

The Group's principal activitses are grocery and related retailing

2 Accounting policies

{a) Statement of compliance

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards {"IFRS') as
adopted by the European Union and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) interpretations and
with those parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS The Company's financial statements have
been prepared an the same basis and as permitted by Section
230(3) of the Compames Act 1985, no income statement 1s
aresented for the Company

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in sterling, rounded to

the nearest mithon (Em) unless otherwise stated They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments and available for sale financial assets that
have been measured at far value

The preparation of frnancial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of yudgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on histenical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumsiances
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and habiities that are not readily
apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from {hese
eshimates The areas involving a higher degree of judgement

or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 2¢

New standards, interpretations and amendments to

pubhshed standards

Effective for the Group in these financial statements

- Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements -
Camtal Disclosures

« IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’

« IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2'

» IFRIC 9 Re-assessment of embedded derivatives

+ IFRIC 10 Intenim Financial Reporting and Impairment

+ IFRIC 1t 'IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions’

The above new standards, interpretations and amendments
to published standards have had no materral impact on the
results or the financial positian of the Group for the 52 weeks
to 22 March 2008

Effective for the Group for the financial year beginning

23 March 2008

« IFRIC 12 'Service Concession Arrangements’

+ IFRIC 14 'IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction’

Effective for the Group for future financial years

- Rewvised IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements’

« Revised IAS 23 'Borrowing Costs

«  Rewised IAS 27 *Consolidated and separate financial statements’
«  Amendment to |AS 32 'Financial instruments Presentation’

+  Amendment to IFRS 2 *Share based payment’

= Revised IFRS 3 'Business Combnations’

« IFRS B 'Operating Segments’

« |IFRIC 13 'Customer Loyalty Programmes’

The Group has considered the above new standards, interpretations
and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective
and concluded that except for the amendrment to IFRS 2 Share-
based payment’, they are either not relevant to the Group or that
they would not have a sigmificant impact on the Group s financial
statements apart from additiona!l disclosures The Group 1s
currently assessing the potential effect of the amendment to

IFRS 2 Share-based payment’

The accounting pelhcies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements and
have been applied consistently by the Group and the Company

Consolidation

The Group's financial statements include the results of the
Company and all its subsiciaries, together with the Group’s share
of the post tax results of its associates and joint ventures

Subsidlaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a sharehaolding of more than one half of the voting rights The
results of subsidiaries are included in the Group iIncome statement
from the date of acquisition, or in the case of disposals, up to the
effective date of disposal Intercompany transactions and balances
between Group companies are eiminated upon consohdation

Associates and joint ventures

Assaclates are entities that are neither subsidianes nor joint
ventures, over which the Group has significant influence Joint
ventures are jointly controlled enbities in which the Group has an
interest The Groups share of the resulls of 1ts associates and joint
veniures are included in the Group income statement using the
equity method of accounting

Investments in associates and joint ventures are carried in the
Group balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisitton changes in the
Group s share of net assets of the entity, less any impairment

i value

Investments in subsidianies associates and jomnt ventures are
carried at cost less any tmpairment 10ss in the financial statements
of the Company

Foreign currencies

Foreign operations

On consolidation assets and habihties of foreign operations are
translated into sterling at year end exchange rates The results of
foretgn cperations are translated into sterling at average rates
of exchange for the year

Exchange differences arising from the retransiation at year-end
exchange rates of the net investment in fareign operations, less
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings or forward
contracts which are in substance part of the net investment in

a foreign operation, are taken to equity and are reported in the
statement of recognised income and expense
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denomenated tn foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Monetary assets
and habilities denominated i fereign currencies at the balance
sheet date are translated at the exchange rate ruling at that date
Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised
in the incame statement

Revenue
Revenue consists of sales through retail outlets Revenue excludes
Value Added Tax and staff discounts

Revenue)s recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
products and services have been passed to the buyer and can be
measured reliably

Sales through retail outtets are shown net of the cost of Nectar
reward points 1ssued and redeemed, staff discounts, veuchers and
sales made on an agency basis Commussion income 1s recogmsed
In revenue based on the terms of the contract

Sainsbury's Bank

Sainsbury's Bank was fully consolidated unbil the Group sold five
per cent of its shareholding in February 2007, thereafter It has
been gquity accounted as a joint venture

Prior to the Group seliing part of its sharenoiding of Sainsbury's
Bank, revenue included interest recervable, fees and commissions

Interest income 1s recognised in the income statement for all
instruments measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method This calculation takes info account interest
recesved or paid, fees and commissions received or paid that are
integral to the yield, as well as smcremental transaction costs

Fees and commissions, that are not tntegral to the yield, are
recogmsed in the income statement as the service 15 provided
Where there 1s a nsk of potential claw back an appropriate element
of the insurance commission receivable 15 deferred and amortised
over the expected average life of the underlying loan

Cost of sales

Cost of sales consists of all costs to the point of sale including
warehouse and transportation costs, all the costs of operating
retail outlets

Prior to the Group selling part of its shareholding of Sainsbury s
Bank, cost of sales wcluded interest expense on operating
activities, catculated using the effective interest method

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings

Land and buildings are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any recegnised impawment loss Properties in the course of
construction are held at cost less any recognised impairment loss
Costincludes any directly attributable costs and borrowing costs
capiahsed in accordance with the Group s accounting policy

Fixtures, equipment and vehicles
Fixtures, equipment and vehicles are held at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised tmpatrment loss

Depreclation

Depreciation 1s calculated to wnte down the cost of the assets
to therr residual values, on a straight line method on the
following bases

+ Freehotd buitdings and leasehold properties — 50 years, or the
lease termf shorter

«  Fixtures eguwpment and vehicles = 3 to 15 years

- Freehold fand 15 not depreciated

Land and bulldings under construction and nen current assets heid
for sale are not depreciated

J Salnsbury ple Annual Report and Financual Statements 2008

Intangible assets

Pharmacy licences

Pharmacy licences are carned at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment loss and amortised on a
straight-line basis over thew useful economic hfe of 15 years

Computer software

Computer software 15 carned at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment loss Externally acquired computer software
and software licences are capitalised and amorhised on a straight-
line basis over their usefut economic lives of three to five years
Costs relating to development of computer software forinternal
use are capitahised once the recogrution criteria of 1AS 38
Intangible Assets’ are met When the software s available for its
intended use, these costs are amortised gver the estimated useful
life of the software

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the censideration
of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the

net iIdentifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition Goodwili1s recognised as an asset on the Group's
balance sheet in the year in which it arises Goodwill 1s tested

for impairment annually and again whenever indicators of
impanwrment are detected and i1s carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses

tnvestment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation Investment property assets are carried at
cost less accumuliated depreciation and any recognised imparment
In value The depreciation policies for investment property are
consistent with other Sainsbury's properties Any impairment in
value 1s shown outside undertying profit before tax

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each full year balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there I1s any indicatton that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss H any such indicatton eusts, the recoverable
amount of the asset, which s the hugher of its fair value less costs
to sell and i1ts value tn use, 15 estimated i order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss Where the asset does not gencrate
cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the ¢ash generating unit

( CGU") to which the asset belongs For tangible and intangible
assets excluding goodwill, the CGU 1s deemed Lo be each trading
store For goodwill, the CGU i1s deemed to be each retall chain of
stores acqured

Any imparrment charge s recogmsed 1n the income statement in
the year in which it occurs Where an impairment 1oss, other than
an impairment loss on goodwill, subsequently reverses due to a
change in the oniginal estimate, the carrying amount of the asset
1s increased to the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount

Capitalisation of Iinterest

Interest costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
censtruction of qualifying assets are capitalised to the cost of the
asset, gross of tax relief

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale and stated
at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less casis to sell
i their carrying amount 15 to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use

Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group All other leases are classified as operating leases
For property leases, the land and building elements are treated
separately to determine the appropriate lease classification




Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

Finance leases

Assets funded through finance leases are capitalised as property,
plant and equipment and depreciated over their estimated useful
lives or the [ease term, whichever 15 shorter The amount capitalised
15 the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the
minimum lease payments dunng the lease term at the inception of
the lease The resulting tease oblrgations are included n habihties
net of finance charges Finance costs on finance leases are charged
directly to the income statement

Operating leases

Assets leased under operating leases are not recorded on the
balance sheet Rental payments are charged directly to the
income statement

Lease incentives

Lease incentives primanly include up front cash payments or

rent free penods Lease mcentives are capitalised and spread over
the period of the lease term

Leases with predetermined fixed rental increases

The Group has a number of leases with predetermined fixed rental
increases These rental increases are accounted for on a straight-
hine basis over the period of the lease term

Operating lease income
QOperating lease income consists of rentals from sub-tenant
agreements and 15 recognised as garned

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value Inventones at warehouses are valued on a first in, fiest out
basis Those at retail outlets are valued at calculated average cost
prices Cost includes all direct expenditure and other appropriate
attributable costs incurred in bringing inventeries to thetr present
lacation and condition

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand demand
deposits and other short term highty liqued investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject {o
an insignificant risk of changes in value Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are incfuded as a component of cash and cash
eguivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax s accounted for on the basis of temporary differences
ansing from differences between the tax base and accounting base
of assets and habilities

Deferred tax 15 recogrused {or all taxable temparary difterences,
except to the extent where it arises frem the inthial recognition
of an asset or a habiity in a transaction that 15 not a business
combination and, at the time of transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit It 1s determined using tax
rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset 1s realised or the deferred
Income tax habihity 15 settled

Deferred tax assets are recogmised to the extent that it s probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which {he
temporary differences can be utilised

Detferred tax 1s charged or credited to the income statement, except
when It relates to items charged or credited dwectly to equity 1n
which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events for whichit s
prabable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to
settle the obligation, and where the amount of the obligation can
be rehably estimated

Cnerous leases

Prowisions for onerous leases, measured net of expected rentals,
are recognised when the property leased becomes vacant and 1s
no longer used in the operations of the business Provisions for
dilapdation costs are recognised on a lease by lease basis

Restructuring and disposal

Provisions for restructuring costs are recogmised when the Group
has a detaled formal plan for the restructuring that has been
commumcated to affected parties

Employee benefits

Pensions

The Group operates various defined benefit and defined
contnibution pension schemes for its employees A defined benefit
scheme 15 a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement A defined contnbution
scheme 15 a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity

in respect of defined benehit pension schemes, {he pension scheme
surplus or deficit recognised in the batance sheet represents the
difference between the fair value of the plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date
The defined benet abligation 1s actuanally calculated on an annual
basis using the projected unit credit method Plan assets are
recorded at fawr value

The income statement charge 15 spiit between an operating service
cost and a iinancing charge which is the net of interest cost on
pension scheme habihties and expected return on plan assets
Actuanial gains and losses are recognised m fullin the period, in the
statement of recognised income and expense

Payments to defined centribution pension schemes are charged
as an expense as they fall due Any contribubions unpatid at the
balance sheet date are included as an accrual as at that date The
Group has no further payment obhgations once the contributions
have been paid

Long service awards
The costs of long service awards are accrued over the period the
service 1S provided by the employee

Share-based payments

The Group provides benefits to employees (iIncluding Directors)
of the Group in the form of equity settfed and cash-settled share
based payment transactions, whereby employees render services
in exchange for shares rights over shares or the value of those
shares In cash terms

For equity-settled share based payments the fair vatue of the
employee services rendered s determined by relerence to the
farr value of the shares awarded or options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions All share options
are valued using an opton-pricing modet (Black Scholes or Monte
Carlo) This fair value is charged to the income statement over
the vesting period of the share-based payment scheme with the
corresponding ncrease in equity

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2008 J Salnsbury pie




42

hazel jarvis

Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

For cash settted share based payments the fair value of the
employee services rendered s determined at each balance sheet
date and the charge recognised through the income statement over
the vesting period of the share based payment scheme, with the
corresponding increase n accruals

The value of the charge 15 adjusted in the income statement over
the remainder of the vesting penod to reflect expected and actual
levels of options vesting, with the corresponding adjustments made
i equity and accruals

Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following calegories
at fair vatue through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held to
matunty and avallable-for sale The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired

‘Financial assets at far vatue through prohit or loss’ include
hinancial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are accounted for as an effective hedging
instrument Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recorded at fair value, with any gains or losses recognised in the
income statement 10 the penod in which they anse

Loans and receivables are non-denivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
The Group has no intention of trading these loans and recesvables
Subsequent to initial recogrition, these assets are carnied at
amaortised cost less impairment using the effective interest method
Incame from these financial assets s calcidated on an effective
yield basis and i1s recogntsed in the income statement

Held to maturity investments are non derwative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunities that the
Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold
te matunity Subsequent to imtial recognition, these assets are
recarded at amortised cost using the effective interest method
Income 15 calculated on an effective yield basis and 1s recognised
In the income statement

Available for sale {"AFS } financial assets are non derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories They are wciuded in non-currént assets unless
rmanagement intends to dispose of the investment withun 12 months
of the balance sheet date Subsequent to witial recognition, these
assets are recorded at fair value with the movements in fair value
taken directly to equity until the financial asset 15 derecogrused

or imparwred at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised (n equity Is recogmsed in the income statement
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recogmised i the income
statement when the enbity s right to recetve payment s estabhshed
Interest on AFS debt instruements is recognised using the effective
interest method

Purchases and sales of financial assets at far value through profit
or {055, held-to matunty and AFS investments are recognised on
trade date Financial assets are imtially recognised at {air value plus
transaction costs for all hinanoial assets not carned at fair value
through profit or loss Financial assets are derecogmsed when the
nights to recerve cash flows from the Ninancial assets have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership
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Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded initially at
fair value, which 1s generally the proceeds received, net of direct
1s5ue costs Subsequently, these habilities are held at amortised
cost using the effective interest method

Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or
redemption and direct 1ssue costs are accounted for on an accrual
basis to the income statement using the effective interest method
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the period in which they anse

Impairment of financial assets

An assessment of whether there s objective evidence of
imparment 15 carned out for all hinancial assets or groups of
financial assets at the balance sheet date This assessment may
be of indivedual assets (indvdual imparment’} or of a portfolio
of assets { collective (mpairment } A financial asset or a group of
ftnancial assets s considered to be tmpaired if, and only if, there
1s cbjective evidence of impairment as a result of ane or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (@
loss event’) and that loss event {or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be rehably estimated

For individuat imparrment the principal loss event 1s one or more
missed payments, although cther loss events can alsc ke taken
inte account, including arrangements in place to pay less than the
contractual payments, fraud and bankrupicy or other financial
difficulty indicators An assessment of collective impairment will
be made of financial assets with similar risk charactenstics For
these assets, portfolio loss expenence 15 used to provide objective
evidence of impairment

Where Lthere s objective evidence that an imparment loss exsts on
loans and receivables or held-to maturity investments, impairment
provisions are made to reduce the carrying value of financial assets
to the present vatue of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset s oniginal effective interest rate

For financial assets carred at amortised cost the charge to the
mcome statement reflects the movement in the level of provisions
made, together with amounts written off net of recoveries in

the year

In the case of equity investments classinied as available for sale,

a significant or pretonged decline in the fair value of the asset
below its cost 1s considered 1n determining whether the asset s
impaired If any such ewidence exists for avarlable-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss 15 removed from equity and recognised
In the income statement The cumulative 10ss 15 measured as

the difference between the acquisitton cost and the current far
value, less any impairment loss on that ftnancial asset previously
recogrused In the income statement

Impairment losses recogrised in the income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed If, in a subseguent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as availlable for-sale increases
and the in¢rease can be objectively related to an event occurring
alter the impairment loss was recognised In the income statement,
the impairment loss 1s reversed through the income statement

Interest well conbinue to accrue on all financial assets, based on
the wntten down balance Interest is calculated using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss To the extent that a provision may
be increased or decreased In subsequent periods, the recognition
of interest will be based on the latest balance net of provision




Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting poticies continued

Fair value estimation

The methods and assumptions apphed u determining the fair
values of finantal assets and financial habihties are disclosed in
note 29

Redeemable preference shares

Redeemable preference shares that meet the definition of a
liability are recognised as a habrhity on the balance sheet The
corresponding dividends on these shares are recognised as finance
costs through the income statement

Derivative financtal instruments and hedge accounting

The Graup's activities expose it to hnancial nsks associated

with movements in exchange rates and interest rates The Group
uses foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap
contracts to hedge these exposures The use of financial dervatives
1s governed by the Groups treasury policies, as approved by the
Board The Group does not use derivative financial instruments

for speculative purposes

All dervative financial instruments are initially measured at fair
value on the contract date and are also measured at fair value at
subsequent reporting dates

Hedge relationships are classified as cash flow hedges where the
dervative financial instruments hedge the exchange rate risk

of future highly probable inventory purchases denominated in
ioreign currency Changes in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments that are designated and eflective as hedges of future
cash flows are recognised directly in equity and the ineffective
portien s recogmised immediately i the income statement If the
cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecasted transaction
results in the recogmition of a non financial asset or hability, then,
at the time the asset or ability 1s recognised, the associated gains
ar losses on the derivative that had previcusly been recognised

in equity are inctuded sn the imitial measurement of the asset

or habity

Hedge relationships are classified as fair value hedges where the
denwvative financial instruments hedge the change in the fair value
of a [inancial asset or hability due to movements in interast rates
The changes in fair value of the hedging instrument are recognised
in the iIncome statement

The hedged item s atso adjusted for changes in fair value
attributable to the hedged risk, with the corresponding adjustment
made i the iIncome statement

To quakfy for hedge accounting, the Group documents at the
inception of the hedge the hedging risk management strategy, the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item
or transaction and the nature of the nisks being hedged The Group
also documents the assessment of the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship, to show that the hedge has been and will be highly
effective on an ongoing basis

Changes in the fair value of denivative financial instruments that
do not quahiy for hedge accounting are recognised I1n the income
statement as finance income or coslts as they arise

Hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires or Is sold, terminated, or exercised, or ng longer quakifies
for hedge accounting At that time, any cumulative garn or 1oss on
the hedgrng mnstrument recogrised m equity 1s retained in equity
until the forecasted transaction occurs If a hedged transaction

15 no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gatn or loss
recognised In equity 1s transferred to the income statement for
the period

Ofisetting financial instruments

Financial assets and habihties are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there 15 a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there 1s an intention
to seitle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the habibty
simultaneously

Non GAAP performance measures

The Directors believe that the underlying’ profit before tax

and underlying' diluted and basic earnings per share measures
presented provide a clear and ¢consistent presentation of the
underlying performance of Sainsbury's ongoing business for
shareholders These measures are consistent with how the business
15 measured internally Underlytng profit is not defined by IFRS and
therefore may not be directly comparable with the “adjusted” profit
measures of other companies The adjustments made to reported
profit before tax are

+ Profit on sale of properties ~ these can vary from year to
year and therefore create volatiity in reported earnings,

« Finanging fair value movements - these fair value gains and
losses relate to fair vafue adjustments on derwvalives relating
to financing activities and hedged items in fair value hedges
The underlying profit measure removes the volatility of these
ttems within profit before tax,

+ Impairment of goodwill and impairment of properties within
joint ventures and

« One-off tems — these are material and targely one off in nature,
craating volatihty tin reported earmings which does not reflect
Sainsbury’s underlying performance

(e} Judgements and estimates

The Group makes Judgements and assumptions concermng

the future that impact the application of polictes and reported
amounts The resulting accounting estimates calculated using these
judgements and assumptions will, by defimition, seldom equai the
related actual results but are based on historical experience and
expectaiions of future events

The judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty that
have a significant effect on the amounts recogmised in the hnancial
statements are discussed below

Goodwlll impairment

The Group is required to assess whether goodwll has suffered any
impairment loss, based on the recoverabie amount of its CGUs

The recoverable amounts ¢f the CGUs have been determined based
on value n use calcutations and these calculations require the use
of estimates in relation to future cash flows and suitable discount
rates as disclosed in note 12 Actual outcomes could vary from
these estimates

Impairment of assets

Financsal and non finangiat assets are subject to impairment
reviews based on whether current or future events and
crrcumstances suggest that thewr recoverable amount may be
less than thewr carrying value Recoverable amount 1s based

on a calculation of expected future cash flows which includes
management assumptions and eshimates of future performance

Post-employment benefits

The Group operates various defined benefit schemes for its
employees The present value of the schemes habilities recognised
at the balance sheet date s dependent on interest rates of ugh
gualty corparate bonds The net financing charge recogmised in the
income statemeny 1s dependent on the interest rate of high quabty
corporate bonds and an expectation of the weighted average
returns on the assets within the schemes Other key assumptions
within this calculation are based on market condihions or estimates
of future events, including mortality rates, as set out In note 31
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

Provisions

Provisions have been made for onerous leases, diapidations,
restructuring and disposal costs These provisions are estimates
and the actual costs and trming of future cash flows are dependent
on future events Any difference between expectations and the
actual future liabihity will be accounted for in the penod when

such determination 15 made

Incoeme taxes

The Group recogrises expected habilities for tax based on an
estimation of the hkely taxes due, which requires sigrificant
Judgement as to the ultimate tax determination of certain iterms
Where the actual iability arising from these issues differs from
these estimates, such differences will have an impact on income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period when such determination
1s made

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report and Financial Staternents 2008

3 Segment reporting

The Group's primary reporting format 1$ business segments, with
each segment representing a business unit that offers different
products and serves different markets

The businesses are organised into two operating divisions
- Retaling (Supermarkets and Convemence}, and
- Financiat services (Sainsbury s Bank)

All matenal operations are carned gut in the UK

Segment results, assets and habihbes include items directly
attributable to a segrent as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis Segment capital expenditure is the total
cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that
are expected to be used for more than one period




Notes to the financial statements continved

3 Segment reporting continued

Financial
Retailing services Group
Em Em Em
2008
Segment revenue
Sales to external customers 17,837 - 17,837
Undertying operating prefit! 535 - 535
Prafit on sale of properties T - 7
Costs relating to approach from Delta Two %] - (1]
Costs associated with Office of Far Trading dairy inquiry 27 - 27)
Fair value gain on other financial asset 22 - 22
Segment result 530 - 530
Finance income B3
Finance costs 132}
Share of post tax profit/(loss) from joint ventures 1 3 (2}
Income tax expense (150)
Profit for the financial year 329
Assets 9,967 - 9,967
Investment in joint ventures 59 89 148
Segment assets 10,115
Segment liabilities 5,180 - 5,180
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 1,006 - 1,006
Depreciation expense 463 - 463
Amortisation expense 18 - 18
Reversal of impairment on receivables {1} - {1)
Other nen cash expenses
Share-based payments 53 - 53
2007
Segment revenue
Sates to externak customers 16,860 - 16,860
Services to external customers - 291 291
Total revenue 16,860 291 17,151
Underlying operating prohit! 429 2 431
Prohit on sale of properties 7 - 7
Profit on part disposal of Sainsbury’s Bank - 10 10
Past service gains on defined benefit schemes 72 - T2
Segment result 508 12 520
Finance income  © 64
Finance costs (107)
Income tax expense (153
Profit for the financial year 324
Assets 9478 - 9,478
Investment in josnt ventures 10 88 98
Segment assets 9,576
Segment liabilities 5,227 - 5,227
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 733 4 737
Depreciation expense 469 10 479
Amortisation expense 19 2 21
Impairment of amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers - g9 89
Other non-cash expenses
Share-based payments 38 - 38

1 Undertying prafit belore tax from tontinuing operations before finance Income and finance costs and share of pest tax prodit of Jess from joint veniures.

hazel javis
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Notes to the financial statements continued

4 Operating profit

2008 2007
Em £m
Operating profit 15 stated after charging/(crediting) the following items
Emplayee tosts (note 6) 1,957 1,785
Depreciation expense 463 479
Amortisation expense (included within cost of sales) 18 21
Profit on sale of properties (note 7} o {7
Profit en part disposal of Sainsbury's Bank - (10}
Costs refating to approach from Delta Two (note 7Y 7 -
Costs associated with Office of Fair Trading dairy inquiry {note 7) 27 -
Fair value gain on other financial asset (note 7) {22) -
Impairment of amounis due from Samnsbury's Bank customers (included within administrative expenses) - 89
Reversal of impawrment of receivabtes 1 -
Operating lease rentals — land and buildings 304 287
- other leases 51 45
- sublease payments received 35) (30)
Foreign exchange {(gams)/losses @ 6
Group 2008 2007
£Em £m
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services
Fees payable to the Company auditor for the audit of the Group and the Company financial statements 03 04
Non-audit services
Fees payable to the Company auditor and its associates for other services as detalled betow
Audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation o4 04
Other services pursuant to legislation 01 01
Tax services 05 03
All other services 02 02
15 14
5 Finance income and finance costs
2008 2007
£m £m
Interest on bank deposits 29 15
Net return on pension schemes (note 31) 54 a1
Financing fair value gains' - 8
Finance income 83 64
Financing fair value losses' {4) -
Borrowing costs
Bank loans and overdrafls - 2)
Other loans {132) (111)
Obhgations under finance leases (3 3
Provistons — amortisation of discount (note 22) (1) n
{136) (117
interest capitalised — gquahfying assets a 10
Finance costs (132) (107)

1 Fax value gams or bosses relate to far value adustments on dervathves relating to hinancing activities and hedged items In far vahue hedges.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

6 Employee costs

2008 2007
Em £m
Employee costs for the Group during the year amounted to
Wages and salanes, including bonus and termination benehts 1,682 1,583
Social security costs 116 122
Pension costs — defined contributron schemes 28 27
Pension costs — defined beneht schemes (note 31) 78 87
Pension costs - past service gains on defined benefit schemes (notes 7 and 31} - (72)
Share based payments expense (note 32} 53 38
1,957 1,785
Rumber Number
000 0005
The average number of employees, including Directors, dunng the year were
Full-time 49 6 488
Part-time 101 4 98 1
1510 1469
Full time eguivalent 98 6 955§
All employees were employed in the Urited Kingdam for the periods presented
7 Non GAAP performance measures
The adjustments made to reported profit before tax to arrive at underlying profit before tax are
2008 2007
£m Em
Profit on sate of properties 7 7
Financing fair value movements (4) 8
One-off iterns for the financial year comprised
Costs relating to approach from Delta Two {7} -
Costs associated with Cifice of Fair Trading dairy inquiry 27) -
Fair value gain on other hinancial asset 22 -
Prohit on part disposal of Sainsbury's Bank - 10
Past service gains on defined benefit schemes (notes 6 and 31) - 72
Total one off items 12) 82
Total non GAAP performance measures (9) 97

Profit on sale of properties
Includes all Group gains or losses on the sale of properties

Financing fair value movements

Fair value movements relate to farr value adjustments on dersvatives relating to financing activittes and hedged items in fair value hedges

Costs relating to approach from Delta Two

The Group has incurred £7 milion of costs in relabion te the approach from Delta Two

Costs associated with Office of Fair Trading dairy inquiry

The Greup has incurred £27 milhon of costs associated with the Office of Fair Trading dairy inquiry

Fair value gain on other financial assets

During the year the Group recognised a £22 million fair value gan on a hinancial asset This asset was disposed of duning the financial year
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Notes to the financial statements continued

8 Income tax expense

2008 2007
£m £m
Current tax expense
Current year 173 2
Over provisian in prior years 9 {25)
164 23
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - 158
Deferred tax rate change from 30% to 2B% (8) -
(Over)/under provision in prior years {6) 18
(14) 176
Tota! tncome tax expense in iIncome statement 150 153
Income tax expense on underlying profit! 151 132
Tax on items below
Sale of properties - (3
Financeng fair value movements (1} 2
Costs relating to approach from Delta Two {2) -
Fair value gain on other financial asset 2 -
Past service gains on defined benefit schemes - 22
Total tncome tax expense tin (ncome statement 150 153

1 Tax charge altributable to underlylng profit betore tax from continuing aperatlons

The effective tax rate of 31 3 per cent (2007 32 2 per cent) 1s higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK The differences

are explained below

2008 2007
Em Em
Profit before taxation 479 417
Inceme tax at UK corporation tax rate of 30% (20G7 30%) 144 143
Effects of
Cisallowed depreciation on UK properties 21 22
Non deductible expenses 18 3
Non taxable income - (8
Capital losses utiised (10} -
Deferred tax rate change from 30% to 28% 8) -
Qver provision In prior years (15) (N
Total income tax expense in Income statement 150 153
Income tax charged or credited to equity during the year 15 as follows
2008 2007
Em Em
Share-based payment tax recogmsed directiy in equity
Current tax payable (5) 2)
Delerred tax asset 19 {7
Prior year adjustment (13) -
Deferred tax rate change from 30% to 28% 1 -
Deferred tax losses associated with share-based payment tax deduction 8 (8)
10 (17)
Deferred tax on items recogrised directty in equity
Actuarial gans on defined beneht pension schemes 161 52
Available-for sale financsal assets faw value movements 3 7
Deferred tax rate change from 30% to 28% — defined benefit pension scheme (10) -
Deferred tax rate change from 30% to 28% — available-for sale financial assets (4] -
152 59
162 42
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Notes to the financial statements continued

9 Earnings per share

Basic earnuings per share s calculated by dividing the earntngs attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares inissue during the year, excluding those held by the Employee Share Ownership Plan trusts (note 25), which are treated
as cancelled

For diluted earrungs per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all potential
dilubive ordinary shares These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise price 15 less than the average market
price of the Company's ordinary shares during the year

Underlying earnings per share is provided by excluding the effect of any gain or loss on the sale of properties, imparment of goodwill,
impairment of properties held within joint ventures, financing fair value movements and one-off items that are matenal and infrequent
In nature This alternative measure of earmings per share 15 presented to reflect the Group's underlying trading performance

All operations are continuing for the pencds presented

2008 2001
militon miliion
Weighted average number of shares i 1ssue 1,7187 1,691 3
Weighted average number of dilutive share options 485 285
Total number of shares for calculating difuted earnings per share 1,767 2 1,719 8
Em £m
Profit for the financial year attnibutable to equity holders of the parent 329 325
(Less)/add profit on sale of properties, net of tax mn (10)
finanging faw value movements, net of tax 3 (6)
costs relating to approach from Delta Two, net of tax S -
fair value gain on other financial asset, net of tax 20} -
costs associated with Office of Fair Trading dairy inquiry 27 -
profit on part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank - {10
past service gains on defined benefit schemes, net of tax - {50)
Underlying profit after tax 337 249
pence pence
per share per share
Basic earnings 191 192
Diluted earnings 186 189
Underlying basic earnings 196 147
Undertying diluted earnings 191 145
10 Dividend
2008 2007

pence pence 2008 2007
per share per share Em £m

Amounts recogmsed as distributions to equity holders tn the year
Final dividend of prior hnancial year T35 5 85 126 99
Interim dividend of current linancial year 300 240 52 41
10 35 825 178 140

After the balance sheet date, a inat dividend of 9 00 pence per share (2007 7 35 pence per share) was proposed by the Directors in
respect of the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008, resulting 1n a total hinal proposed dividend of £155 mullton (2007 £126 million) The proposed
{inal dividend has not been included as a habihty at 22 March 2008
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Notes to the financial statements continued

11 Property, ptant and equipment

Group Graup Company
Land and Fixtures and Group Land and
buildings equipment Total buildings
Em Em tm Em
Cost
At 25 March 2007 6,719 4,480 11,199 263
Additions 628 365 993 -
Acgquisihion of subsidiaries {note 33) 3 - 3 -
Disposals {182} (153) {335) (1)
Transfer to assets held for sale {100} (15) (119 -
At 22 March 2008 7,068 4,677 11,745 262
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 25 March 2007 1,060 2,963 4,023 19
Depreciation expense for the year 89 374 463 2
Disposals {19) (133} (152) -
Transfer to assets held for sale (7) {6) (13) -
At 22 March 2008 1,123 3,198 4,321 21
Net book value at 22 March 2008 5,945 1,479 7,424 241
Capltal work-in-proqress included above 398 63 461 -
Cost
At 26 March 2006 6,418 4,323 10,741 268
Additions 383 344 727 -
Disposals 73 (138) {(211) (3}
Part disposal of Sainsbury's Bank - {49) (49) -
Transfer to assets hetd for sale (9} - {9 -
At 24 March 2007 6719 4 480 11 199 263
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 26 March 2006 970 2,711 3,681 17
Depreciation expense for the year 92 387 479 2
Disposals (2} {1086) (108) -
Part disposal of Sainsbury’s Bank - (29) {29) -
Al 24 March 2007 1,060 2,963 4,023 19
Net book value at 24 March 2007 5 659 1,517 7,176 244
Capital work-in-progress included above 343 89 432 -
Graup Group Company Campary
2008 2007 2008 2007
Em Em fm Em
The net book vatue of land and buildings comprised
Freeheld land and building 4,502 4,339 64 65
Long leasehold 938 889 177 179
Short leasehold 505 431 - -
5,945 5 639 241 244

tnterest capitalised

Interest capitahsed mn¢luded in additions amounted to £8 milhon (2007 £10 mitlion) for the Group and End (2007 Enil) for

the Company Accumulated interest capitalised included in the cost total above amounted to £255 million (2007 £253 milion)
for the Group and £mil (2007 Enil} for the Company The caprtalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs

ehgible for capitalisation 1s 57 per cent (2007 5 3 per cent)

Security

Property plant and equipment of 127 supermarket properties, with a net book value of £2,336 milhon (2007 E£2,380 mtllion)
are pledged as secunity for the long-term financing (note 20)

In addition property, plant and equipment of a further six supermarket properties with a net book value of £73 mullion

(2007 E74 mrlhon) has been pledged as secunity to underpin the residual value guarantee given by the Group with regards
to 16 supermarket properttes sold in March 2000 and ten supermarket properties sold in July 2000 {note 37)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

11 Property, plant and equipment continued

Anslysis of assets held under finance leases = Group

2008 2007
£m Em
Land and buildings
Cost 5 53
Accumulated depreciation and imparment (21) (21}
Net book value 30 32
12 Intangible assets
Pharmacy
Gooawill licences Software Total
Em Em im Em
Cost
At 25 March 2007 112 36 115 263
Additions - - & [}
Acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses 4 - - 4
Transfer to assets held for sale {2) - - {2)
At 22 March 2008 114 36 121 271
Accumulated amertisation and Impairment
At 25 March 2007 - 17 71 88
Amaortisation expense for the year - 3 15 18
At 22 March 2008 - 20 86 106
Net book value at 22 March 2008 114 16 35 165
Cost
At 26 March 2006 109 36 120 265
Additions - - 7 7
Acquisition of subsidiaries 3 - - 3
Part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank - - (12) 12)
At 24 March 2007 112 38 115 263

Accumufated amortisation and impairment

At 26 March 2006 - 14 60 T4
Amortisation expense for the year - 3 18 21
Part disposal of Sainsbury's Bank - - {7) {7)
At 24 March 2007 - 17 71 88
Net book value at 24 March 2007 112 19 44 175

The goodwill balance above relates to the Group's acquired substdianes ~ Bells Stores Lid Jacksons Stores Ltd JB Beaumont Ltd, SL Shaw
Ltd and Culcheth Provision Steres Ltd - and 15 allocated to the respective cash-generating units { CGUs™) within the retall segment The CGUs
for this purpose are deemed to be the respective acquired retail chains of stores The value of the goodwill was tested for impairment during
the current financial year by means of comparing the recoverable amount of each CGU to the carrying value of its goodwill

To catculate the CGU's value in use, Board approved cash flows for the following hnancial year are assumed to inflate at the long-term

average growth rate for the UK food retail sector and are discounted at ten per cent (2007 ten per cent) over a 25 year penod Based on
the operating performance of the respective CGUs, no impatrment loss was deemed necessary in the current financial year (2007 Enik)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

13 Investments in subsidiaries

2008 2007
£m Em
Shares in subsidiaries - Company
Beginning of year 7,166 7,225
Investment in subsidiaries - 21
Acquisition of subsidhares (note 33) 3 3
Part disposal of Sainsbury’s Bank - N
Provision for diminution in value of Investment - (6)
End of year 7.169 7.166
The Company s prineipal operating substdiaries are
Share of
ordinary
allotted Ceuntry of
capitaland  registration or
voting rights ncorpgration
Bells Stores Ltd 100% England
Jacksons Stores Ltd 100% England
JS Insurance Ltd 100% Isle of Man
JS Information Systems Ltd 100% England
Sainsbury's Supermarkets Ltd 100% Engfand
Swan Infrastructure Holdings Ltd 100% England

All principal operating subsidiaries operate in the countries of their registration or incorporation, and have been consohdated up to and as

at 22 March 2008

14 Investments in joint ventures

Group
Graup share

Group of pott Company
Shares acguisition Group Shares
at cost FESErves Total at cost
£m Em £m £m
At 25 March 2007 76 22 98 76
Additions in year 82 - 62 15
Share of retained loss - (2) 4] -
Movements in equity (note 24) - (10} (10} -
At 22 March 2008 138 10 148 91
At 26 March 2006 & 4 10 5
Addition of Sainsbury’s Bank 70 1B a8 70
At 24 March 2007 76 22 98 76

The holdings directly owned by the Company of the Group s principal joint ventures were
Share of Country of
ordinary  registration or
Year end allcited capital \ncorparatien
Hedge End Park Ltd (property investment - UK) 22 March 50% England
Boutique Sainsbury SARL (food retaiing ~ France) 31 December 50% France
Harvest GP Limited (property investment — UK) 31 March 50% England
Sainsbury s Bank plc (financial serwices « UK) 31 December 50% England

Where relevant, management accounts for the joint ventures have been used to mclude the results up to 22 March 2008
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Notes to the financial statements continued

14 Investment in joint ventures continued

The Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of its principal jont ventures are detaled below

2008 2007
Em Em
Non current assets 1,069 577
Current assets 2,405 1,140
Current habibties 2,896) (1,376)
Non-current habilities (430) {243)
Net assets 148 98
Incame 237 33
Expenses {239) {33)
Loss after tax 2) -
15 Inventories
2008 2007
£m £Em
Goods held for resate 681 590
The amount of inventories recognised as an expense and charged to cost of sales for the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008 was
£13 557 million {2007 £12,801 million)
16 Receivables
Trade and other receivables
Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Em £m Em Em
Non-¢urrent
Amounts due from Group entities - - 921 869
Other recervables 55 50 55 50
55 50 976 919
Current
Trade recervabies 32 30 - -
Amounts due frem Group entities - - 358 374
Other receivabtes 83 65 1 1
115 95 359 375
Prepayments and accrued income 91 102 - -
206 197 359 375

Trade and ether receivables are carried at amortised cost tess impairment using the effective interest method Trade recevables are

non-interest bearing and are on commercial terms Current other receivables are generally non interest bearing

Non current other receivables of £65 milhan comprise £25 million of floating rate suberdinated undated loan capital and £30 rmilhion of
floating rate subordinated dated loan capital due from Sainsbury s Bank (note 34)

The Group s exposure to credt rnisk ansing from its retail eperations 1s minimal given that the customer base s large and unrelated and

that the overwhelming masanty of customer transactions are settled through cash or secure electronic means New parties wishing

to obtain credit terms with the Group are credit ¢checked by the accounts receivable credit control team prior to any ivoices being raised,

credit imits are determined on an individual basts

The Group has trade and other recervables of £3 million (2007 £11 mullien) that are past due but nat impaired These relate to a number

of independent receivables for whom there 15 no recent history of default These have not been provided for as there has not been a

significant change n the credst quahty and the amounts are still considered recoverable The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances

The ageing analysis of these trade and other recevables are as follows

2008 2007
£m £m

Up to B weeks 3 7
Over 8 weeks - 4
3 11
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Notes to the financial statements continued

16 Receivables continued

Group trade and other recervables of £1 milhon (2007 £2 million) and Company amounts due from Group entities of £14 million

(2007 £14 million) are impaired and provided tor The ageing of these receivables are as follows

Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2000
Em Em £m £m
Up to B weeks - - 14 14
8 to 20 weeks - - - -
Over 20 weeks 1 2 - -
1 2 14 14
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables are as follows

Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Em Em Em £m
At beginning of year 2 2 14 14
Recerwvables written olf during the year (1) - - -
End of year 1 2 14 14

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated n the fellowing currencies
Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
N Em Em Em Em
Sterhng 260 246 1,335 1,294
Euro 1 1 - -
261 247 1,335 1,294

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade and current oiher recewvables are hmiied due {o the Group's custemer base being large

and unrelated Major counterparties are identified as follows

“~

2008 2008 2007 2007

Numbaer of Balance Number of Balance

counterparties Em counterparties £m

Trade recesvables 1 9 1 8
Other receivables 2 30 3 30
Related partigs 1 61 1 56

significant trade recesvables rdentified above relate to amounts receivable from credit card companies The balance 1s not cansidered past

due or impaired

Major other receivables include amounts due from the National Health Service of £16 mitlion {2007 £16 mithon} for pharmacy sates and
lpans to developers of £14 million (2007 £14 milhon) for capital expenditure Loans to developers are held in escrow and are determined

on a contractual basis

Related party receivables are from the Group's Joint venture Sainsbury s Bank plc, leans are approved by the Investment Commuittee and

are determined by the Financial Services Authority capital funding requirements

No major counterparty balances are considered overdue or impaired
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Notes to the financial statements continued

17 Available-for-sale financial assets

2008 2007
Em Em

Non-current
Unhsted equuty investments 1 1
Other financial asset 105 136
106 137

Unlisted equity ivestments represent the Group's interest in US unlisted compantes Due to a lack of an active market unlisted equsty
investments are held at cost less impairment As at balance sheet date the Group has no istention to sell unlisted equity investments

The other financial asset represents the Group’s beneficial interest in a commercial property investment pool The fair value of other
financial asset 1s based on discounted cash flows assuming a property rental growth rate of three per cent (2007 three per cent) and a
weighted average cost of capital of ten per cent (2007 ten per cent) The majority of available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in
sterling There were no disposals or impairment provisions on avallable-for-sale financial assets in either the current or the previous year,
(see note 29 for sensitivity analysis)

18 Non-current assets held for sale
Assets held for sale of E112 million {2007 £25 mifion) cansist of non-current assets relating to properties held in the retall operations
division Sale of these assets s expected to occur in the next financial year beginning 23 March 2008

19 Payables

Trade and other payables

Group Group Company Company
zooa 2007 zooa 200t
im Em £m £m
Current

Trade payables 1,703 1,706 - -
Amaunts due to Group entities - - 3,512 4,463
Other payables 329 365 10 11
Accruals and deferred income 248 196 - -
2,280 2,267 3,522 4474

Non-current
Amounts due to Group enhities - - 1,803 740
Accruals and deferred income 89 33 - -
89 33 1,803 740

The Groups pelicy on payment of creditors is to agree terms of payment prior to commencing trade with a suppler and ta abide by those
terms on the timely submission of satisfactory invoices

Deferred income relates {o the accounting faor leases with fixed rental increases and lease incentives on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease
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Notes to the financial statements continued

20 Borrowings

Group Group Company Company

2008 2007 zooa 2007
Em Em €m Em
Short-term borrowings
Bank overdraits 118 363 -3} 259
B shares hability - 10 - 10
118 373 na 269
Long-term borrowings
Secured loans
Loan due 2018 1,133 1,142 - -
Loan due 2036 902 897 - -
Unsecured loans
Obhgations under finance leases 49 51 - -
2,084 2,090 - -
Total borrowings 2,202 2,463 ] 269

Bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and carry floating rates of interest

B shares liabifity

Preference B shares were issued on 12 July 2004 as part of a return of share capital in that financial year All remaining B shares
were redeemed on 18 July 2007 at the book value of £10 milion Total preference dividends paid in respect of B shares amounted
to £0 2 mithon (2007 E0 4 mulhgn)

A reconciiation of B shares hability for the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008 15 shown below

2008 2007
shares shares 2008 2007
mithan million Em £m
Beginning of year 27 34 10 12
B shares redemption (27) (7 [§10)] 2)
End of year - 27 - 10

Secured loans
The Groups long term financing secured on 127 of its supermarket properties (note 11} comprises loans from two finance companies

+ afixed rate toan with an outstanding principal value of £1159 mithon (2007 £1186 million) at a weighted average rate of 4 97 per cent
stepping up o 5 36 per cent from Apnil 2013 (effective interast rate of 5 20 per cent and carrying amount of £1,133 million (2007 £1,142
milion)) repayable aver ten years, and

- annblation inked lgan with an outstanding principal value of £867 malion (2007 £863 milhon) at a {ixed rate of 2 36 per cent where
principal and interest are uphfted annually by RPI subject to a cap at five per cent and floor at nil per cent {effective interest rate of
6 52 per cent and carrying amount of £902 mithon (2007 £897 muilhon)) repayatle aver 28 years

The Group has entered inlo three interest rate swaps to convert E602 million (2007 £782 mullion) of the £1,59 mallion (2007

£1,186 million) loan due 2018 [rom hixed to floating rates of interest These transactions have been accounted for as fair value hedges
{note 30) Duning the year. £180 milhion of the £782 mullion swaps cutstanding as at March 2007 were terminated at a cost of £7 million
which represented the fair value of these instruments at the terrmination date The fair value of the debt previously hedged by these swaps
will be amortised over the rematning hie of the loans, resulting tn an amortisation charge to the income statement in the current financial
year of £136,000 (2007 £nil)
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Notes to the financlal statements continued

20 Borrowings continued
Obligations under finance leases

Present Present
walus of vatue of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lnase lease
paynsents payments payments payments
2008 2007 2008 2007
Em Em £m Em
Amounts payable under hinance feases
Within 1 year 3 3 - -
Within 2 to 5 years inclusive 12 13 1 1
After 5 years 188 198 45 50
203 214 49 51
Less future finance charges (154) (163)
Present value of lease obligabions 49 51
Disclosed as
Current * - -
Non-current 49 51
a9 51

Finance leases have effective interest rates of 4 30 per cent to B 50 per cent (2007 4 30 per cent to 8 50 per cent) The average
remaining lease term 1s 77 years (2007 78 years)

Borrowing facitities
The Group maintains a £400 milfron commutted revolving credit facility which matures in February 2012 As at 22 March 2008, there were
£nil drawings under this facibity (2007 £nd drawings)

0On 9 May 2008 the Group entered into a new three year £163 mithon committed revolving loan facility syndicated via the Group s
relationship banks and a new 12 month £35 million bilateral commiited faciity
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Notes to the tinancial statements continued

21 Deferred taxation

The movements 1n deferred income tax assets and habihties during the financial year, prior te the offsetting of the balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, are shown below

Group Accelerated tax Falr value
depreciation Gains Other Total
£m Em £m Em

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 25 March 2007 (200} 29) (39) {268)
Charge to income statement 28 - (2) 26
Charge to equity - {3) - 3
Rate change adjustment to income statement 7 - 2 9
Rate change adjustment to equity - 2 - 2
At 22 March 2008 {165) (30) {39) {234)
At 26 March 2006 {158) (20} {30) (208)
Charge to income statement 45) - {9 (54)
Charge to equity - N - (7}
Part disposal of Sainsbury’s Bank - - (2) (2}
Reclassification 3 2) 2 3
At 24 March 2007 {209) 29) (39) (268)
Retirement
benefit Share-based
Provisions obhgations payment Tax losses Total
£m Em £m Em Em

Deferred income tax assets
At 25 March 2007 14 48 30 8 100
Charge to iIncome statement {3) {26) 9 - 20
Charge to equity - (161) (19} (8} {188)
Prior year adjustment Lo equity - - 13 - 13
Rate change adjustment to (ncome statement - - (1} - (1)
Rate change adjustment to equity - 10 (1) - 9
At 22 March 2008 11 {129) 31 - an
At 26 March 2006 22 227 13 1 263
(Charge)/credit to income statement (5} (127) 10 - 122)
{Charge)/credit ta equity - 52) 7 B (37
Part disposal of Sainsbury's Bank - - - [$3) {1}
Reclassification (3} - - - 3
Al 24 March 2007 14 48 30 B 100
Net deferred income tax liability
At 22 March 2008 (321)
At 24 March 2007 (168)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

21 Deferred taxation continued

Company Fair value
losses
Em
Deferred Income tan assets
At 25 March 2007 1
Charge to income statement -
At 22 March 2008 1
At 26 March 2006 7
Charge to in¢come statement {6)
At 24 March 2007 1

Deferred income tax assets have been recogrised In respect of all income tax losses and other temporary differences grving rise to

deferred income tax assets because it ts probable that these assets will be recovered Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are only
offset where there 15 a legally enforceable right of offset and there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

22 Provisions

Group Group
Group  Restructuring Long Company Company

Oonergus and gisposal service Group Onerous Disposal Company
leases provisions. awards Tatal leates provision Total
£Em Em £Em Em £m Em Em
At 25 March 2007 46 30 7 83 7 25 32

Charge to iIncome statement
= Additional provisions 10 - - 10 - - -
- Unused amounts reversed (4 - - {4) (2) - (2)
Utiisabion of pravision (13 2) - (15} (1} - (1)
Transfer to retirement benefit obligations {note 31 - 2) - {2} - - -
Amarbisation of discount 1 - - 1 - - -
At 22 March 2008 40 26 7 73 4 25 29
Sroup Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m Em £m Em

Disclosed as

Current 10 14 2 2
Nan-current 63 &9 27 30
73 B3 29 3z

The onerous lease prowision covers residual lease commitments of up to an average of 30 years (2007 27 years) after allowance for

existing or anticipated sublet rental income

The restructuring and disposal provisions relate to indemrities anising from the disposal of subsidharies, the timing of utilisation of which

13 uncertamn

Long service awards are accrued over the period the service s prowided by the employee
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Notes to the financial statements continued

23 Called up share capital and share premium account

2008 2007 2008 2007
mdilien million Em Em
Group and Company
Authorised share capital
Crdinary shares of 28% pence each (2007 28% pence) 2,450 2,450 700 700
Preference B shares of 35 pence each (2007 35 pence) {note 20) 2,100 2,100 735 735
Called up share capital
Allgtted and fully paid — ordinary shares 1,747 1,734 499 495
Share premium account
Share premum 8956 857
The movements i the called up share capital and share premium account are set out below
Ordinary Qrdinary Share
shares shares prermum
mithen Em £m
At 25 March 2007 1.734 495 857
Allotied in respect of share option schemes 13 4 39
At 22 March 2008 1,747 49% a%6
At 26 March 2006 1,711 489 782
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 23 2] 75
Al 24 March 2007 1,734 495 857
24 Capital redemption and other reserves
Group and
Company Group Group Group Group Group
Capal Currency Actuariat Avalabile Cash tlow Tota!
redemption translation qains/ for sale hedge ather
reserve reserve (losses) assets reserve reserves
Em £m £Em Em £m Em
At 25 March 2007 670 (e8] 37 107 - 143
B shares redemption 10 - - - - -
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schermes - - 390 - - 390
Available for sale financial assets fair value movements
Group - - - (31) - (31)
Joint ventures (note 14} - - - 48 - 48
Cash flow hedges effective portion of fair value movements
Group - - - - 2 2
Joint ventures (note 14) - - - - {58} (58)
At 22 March 2008 680 (1) 427 124 (56) 494
At 26 March 2006 568 (1) (90) S0 - [$8]
B shares redemption 2 - - - - -
Actuarial gains on defined benelit pension schemes - - 127 - - 127
Avallable for-sale financiat assets fatr value movements - - - 17 - 17
At 24 March 2007 670 (1) 37 107 - 143
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Notes to the financial statements continued

25 Retained earnings

Group Group Company

Group Profit and  Tolal retaned Retalnes

Own shares 1035 accouny earmngs earnings

£m £m Em £m

At 25 March 2007 83 2,267 2,184 1,740
Profit for the year - 329 329 89
Dwvidends paid - (178) (178) (178)
Share-based payment - 41 41 -
B shares redemption - [$40)) 10) (10}
Shares vested 4 - 4 -
Allotted in respect of share option schemes - (4) {4) -
At 22 March 2008 (79 2,445 2,366 1,641
At 26 March 2006 {84) 2,032 1,948 1,692
Profit for the year - 325 325 190
Dividends paid - (140) (140} (140)
Share based payment - 55 55 -
B shares redemption - (2) 2) {2)
Shares vested 1 - 1 -
Allotted in respect of share option schemes - (3 (3) -
Al 24 March 2007 (83) 2,267 2,184 1,740

Own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Plan (“ESOP’") trusts
The Group owned 22,497,295 (2007 23,567107) of its ordinary shares of ZB‘A pence nominal value each At 22 March 2008, the tolal
nominal vatue of the awn shares was £6 4 milhen {2007 £67 milhon)

37,627 (2007 43,450) of the own shares are held by an ESCP trust on behalf of certain Directors and senior employees under the Group's
Performance Share Plan The remaining 22,459,668 shares {2007 23,523,657) are held by an ESOP trust {or the Executive Share Option
Plan The ESOP trusts waive the nights to the dividends recevable in respect of the shareholder under the above schemes

The cost of the own shares 1s deducted from eguity n the Group financial statements The market value of the own shares at 22 March
2008 was £74 9 million (2007 £129 5 midlien)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

26 Reconciliation of movements In equity

Group Capital
Called up Share redemption Equity
share premium and other Retamned shareholders Minority Total
capilal account reserves earnings funds Interests equity
£m £m Em £m £m fm Em
At 25 March 2007 495 857 813 2,184 4,349 - 4,349
Profit for the year - - - 329 329 - 329
Dividends paid - - - {178) (178) - (178)
Share based payment - - - 41 41 - 41
Actuanial gains on defined beneht pension schemes - - 390 - 390 - 390
Available-for sale financial assets fair
value movements
Group - - (31} - (31) - (31
Joint ventures - - 48 - 48 - 48
Cash How hedges effective portion of fair
value movements
Group - - 2 - 2 - 2
Joint ventures - - (58) - (58) - (58)
B shares redemption - - 10 (10} - - -
Shares vested - - - 4 4 - 4
Allotted in respect of share eption schemes 4 39 - {4} 39 - 39
At 22 March 2008 499 896 1,174 2,366 4,935 - 4,935
At 26 March 2006 489 782 667 1,948 3,886 79 3965
Profit for the year - - - 325 325 (1) 324
Dividends paid - - - (140} (140) - (140)
Share-based payment - - - 55 55 - 55
Part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank - - - - - a8 (78}
Actuanial gains on defined benefit pension schemes - - 127 - 127 - 127
Available for-sale financial assets far
value movements - - 17 - 17 - 17
B shares redemptian - - 2 2) - - -
Shares vested - - - 1 - 1
Aliotted in respect of share cption schemes & 75 (3) 78 - 78
At 24 March 2007 495 857 813 2,184 4,349 - 4,349
Company Calted up Share Capital
share prermum redemplion Retained
capital account reserve earnings Total equity
£em £Em £m £m Em
At 25 March 2007 495 B57 670 1,740 3762
Profit for the year - - - 89 89
Dividends paid - - - (178) {178}
B shares redemption - - 10 (10) -
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 4 39 - - 43
At 22 March 2008 499 896 680 1,641 3,716
At 26 March 2006 489 782 668 1692 3,631
Profit for the year - - - 190 190
Dividends paid - - - {140) (140}
B shares redemption - - 2 (2) -
Allotted in respect of share optton schemes & 75 - - a1
At 24 March 2007 495 857 670 1,740 3,762
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Notes to the financial statements continued

27 Notes to the cash flow statements

{a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m Em
Operating profit 530 520 (4) &6
Adjustments for
Depreciatian expense 463 479 2 2
Amortisation expense 18 21 - -
Profit on sale of properties M (7} - (5)
Fair value gain on other financial asset {22} - - -
Prahit on part disposal of Sansbury’s Bank - (10) - (11}
Pravision for diminution 1n value of investment - - - 6
Foreign exchange differences (2) 6 - -
Share based payments expense 53 38 - -
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 1,033 1,047 (2) 2)
Changes in working capital
Increase In Inventories (24) (12) - -
Increase in current avallable-for-sale financial assets - (45) - -
({Increase)/decrease In trade and other receivables 26) (50) 19 624
Decrease in amounts due from Sainsbury’s Bank customers and other banks - 188 - -
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 96 314 (141) {788)
Decrease (n amounts due to Sasnsbury’s Bank customers and ather banks - {198} - -
Decrease in provisions and other habihties {11) {414) (2), -
Cash generated from operations 998 830 126) (166)
{b} Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
Group Group Company Company
2008 zo0? 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 719 1,128 324 523
Bank overdrafts (note 20) (118) (363) (88) {259)
601 765 236 264
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Notes to the financial statements continued

28 Analysis of net debt

Other

25 March norrcash 22 March
2007 Cash flow Dispasals movements 2008
Em Em £m £m Em

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,128 (409 - - 719
Derivatwve financial instruments - - - 4 4
1,128 {409) - 4 723

Current fiabilities
Bank overdrafts (363) 245 - - (118}
Borrowings om 10 - - -
Derivative financial instruments 2) - - {4) {6}
(375) 255 - (4) (124)

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings (2,039 29 - 25 {2,035
Finance leases (51 - - 2 49
Cerivative financial instruments (43) - 7 18 (18}
{2.133) 29 7 (3] (2,102}
(2,508} 284 7 %) 2,226}
Total net debt {1,380} (125) 7 (5} {1,503}

Net debt incorporates the Group's borrowings (Including accrued interest), bank overdrafts, fair value of derivatives and obligattons under
finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

zo08 2007

Em £Em

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents {164) (77
Decrease in debt 39 79
Loan disposed of weth part disposal of Sainsbury s Bank - 45
Disposal of dervative financial instruments 7 -
Gther non-cash movements (5) (12)
{Increase)/decrease in net debt In the year (123) 35
Opening net debt at the beginning of the year (1,380} (1,415}
Closing net debt at the end of the year (1,503} (1,380)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

29 Financial risk management
The Graup's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including liguidity nsk, credit risk and market risk arising from movements
in exchange rates and interest rates

Funding and treasury risk management I1s undertaken through a central treasury department in accordance with pohcies and guidelines
approved by the Board of Directars The risk management policies are designed to mimmise potential adverse effects on the Group s
financial performance by identifytng the vanous risks and setting appropriate risk hmits and controls The Finance Committee, a committee
of the Board, has on going respensibilty for approving treasury activity and specific financial transactions, the autherity for which may be
delegated The Treasury Committee, chaired by the Chief Financial Officer, regularly reviews risk positions and monitors performance The
Group Audit Commuiitee oversees management compliance with nisk management policies and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the nisks faced by the Group The Group Audit Committee 15 assisted 1n this role by Group tnternal Audit who
regularly undertake reviews of the Group s risk management controls and procedures

The Group only uses derrvative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures ansing from an underlying current or anticipated business
requirement and not for any specuwlative purpose The treasury department does not operate as a profit centre

Treasury operations in respect of Sainsbury's Bank are managed separately through HBOS pic, the Group's other joint venture partner

Liguidity risk
The Group s operational cash flow 1s largely stable and predictable, reflecting the low business nisk profile of the food retail business Short
and long-term cash flow forecasts are produced frequently to assist management indentifying iquidity requirements

The Group's iguidity policy requires it to matntam comrretted funding to cover cash flow requirements over an 18-menth penod This s
achieved by monitering and pre-funding the Group's forecast operational cash flows and maturing debt obhigations and by mamtaining an
adequate level of headroom through committed loan facilities

The Group's core funding I1s represented by two long-term loans secured over property assets held in two subsidiary companies The loans
comprise £1,159 million with a legal matunity of April 2018 and £867 million with a legal maturity of 2036

The Group maintains a E400 million committed revolving credit facility maturing February 2012 to provide additional hguidity Interest on
drawings under the facility 1s charged at a margin over LIBOR ranging from 375 basis points te 75 kasis points linked to the Groups latest
reparted fixed charge cover ratig There are £nil drawings under this facihty (2007 Enit drawings)

The Group also maintains a £35 million net overdraft facihty under which debit and credit balances of the various subsidiary accounts
covered by the facility are netted for the purpose of charging interest The table overleaf includes the gross overdrawn balances within this
facility and the offsetting cash balances under this arrangement are included within cash and cash equivalents, (see note 27b) Interest
arising on any net overdraft balances 1s charged at one per cent above base rate

The Group may also access uncommitted money market facilities for shert term funding requirements Interest on these facilities i1s charged
at varous spreads over LIBOR

The table overteaf analyses the Group's financial habii:zties into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance

sneet date to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows or an
estimation in respect of Hoating interest rate habulthies
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Notes to the financial statements continued

29 Financial risk management continued

Group Less than One ta two Two to five More than
one year Years years five years
Em Em Em £m
At 22 March 2008
MNotional overdraft 118 - - -
Borrowings
Secured loan due 2018 86 85 256 1,276
Secured loan due 2036 52 53 170 1,302
Finance leases 3 3 g9 188
Trade and other payables 2,272 - - -
At 24 March 2007
Notianal overdraft 363 - - -
Borrowings
Secured loan due 2018 86 B6 256 1,362
Secured loan due 2036' 50 52 165 1,356
B shares 10 - - -
Finance leases 3 3 10 198
Trade and other payables 2,259 - - -
Company Less than One o two Two to five Maore than
one year years years five years
£m Em Em Em
At 22 March 2008
Notional overdraft g8 - - -
Amounts due to Group entities? 3,761 1135 113 946
Other payables 10 - - -
Al 24 March 2007
MNotional overdraft 259 - - -
Borrowings
B shares 10 - - -
Amounts due to Group entities? 3 546 1,111 118 1,018
Other payables 11 - - -
Assumplions

1 Cash flaws refating te debt dinked to inflation rates have been cakulated using RP1 of 3.5 per cent for the year ended March 2009 3 per cent for the four fotlowang years then 2.5 per cent {or the remaining

years ol the loan
2 Cash tlows relating to debt bearing a fleating iterest rate have been calculated using the prevailing interest rates at 22 March 2008 and 24 March 2007

The table below analyses the Group's denivative hinancial snstruments, which will be settled on a net basis, into relevant matunity groupings
based on the period rematning from the balance sheet date to the contractual matunity date The amounts disclosed in the tables are the

net contractual undhscounied cash Flaws

Less than One {o two Two o five More than
one year years years five years
£m £m Em Em
At 22 March 2008
Interest rate swaps on secured loan due 2018
Outflow’ - - 1 1
Other interest rate swaps
Inflow' (1) [88] 8] (7}
At 24 March 2007
Interesi rate swaps on secured loan due 2018
Outflow’ - - - -
Other interest rate swaps
Inflow! - (1) (5) (26)
Assumplions

1 The ten-year swap rate at 23 January 0GB has treen used to caskculate the floating rate cash Hows over the life of the witerest rate swaps shown above
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Notes to the financial statements continued

29 Financial risk management continued

The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial instruments, which will be settied on a gross basss, into relevant matunity
groupings based on the period remaining from the balance sheet date to the contractuai maturity date The amounts disclosed In the
tables are the contraciual undiscounted cash flows

Less than One to two Two Lo five More than
ane year years years five years
£m Em £m £m
At 22 March 2008
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges
Qutflow 134 4 - -
Inflow 3N (4) - -
At 24 March 2007
Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ cash flow hedges
Qutflow 109 - - -
Inflow (107} - - -

The Group holds foreign exchange forward contracts, for which the inflow figures (n the table above have been calculated by translating
the foreign currency forward comrmitments at spot exchange rates prevailing at the reporting dates At 22 March 2008, £2 millhon relating
to these financial instruments has been recognised in equity {2007 £85,000}

Credit risk
The Group s exposures to credit risk anise from holdings of cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, deposits with banks
and investrments in marketable securties

The Group typically places surplus funds onto the wholesate inter-bank money markets, usually in the form of short term fixed rate
deposits with approved banks and ¢ounterparties or into pooled Money Market Funds The Group’s credit pelicy hmits investments to banks
or hguid securities which carry mintmum short term credit ratings of A1 from Standard & Poor's and P1 from Moody s or, in the case of
Money Market Funds, AAAm from Standard & Poor's and Aaa from Moody’s No more than E25 million may be invested with any individual
bank counterparty and no more than ten per cent of a fund s overall value may be deposited in a single Money Market Fund Individual
credit imits are reviewed quarterly The total Money Market Fund balances shown below represent the use of two funds (2007 three funds)

The table below analyses the Group's cash and cash equivalents by ¢redit exposure excludhng bank balances, store cash and cash in transit

Counterparty FUL: 2007

Rating Em £m
Financial institutions - Money Market Funds AAAm/Aaa 300 450
Financial institutions - Money Market Deposits Al+/P1 11 60
Financial institutions - Money Market Deposits Al/P1 - 9

During the year there were no breaches of credit hmits and management does not expect any losses from non-perfarmance anstng from
counterparties used

Market risk

(a) Currency risk

The Group Is exposed to currency risk principally on future inventory purchases denominated in ¢currencies cther than pound sterling,
primanly euros and US dollars but also Hong Kong dollars Polish zloty Austrahan dollars and New Zealand dollars The Group also has
lmited exposure in respect of recognised foreign currency assets and habilities

The Group s risk management policy seeks to limit the ympact of movements in exchange rates on Group income by requiring anticipated
foreign currency cash flows in US dollars and euras to be hedged The future cash flows, which may be aither contracted ar uncontracted,
are hedged on a layered basis between 80 per cent and 20 per cent using forward contracts over a 14 month time horizon

The Greup has mited exposure to currency risk on balances held an foreign currency denomuinated bank accounts, which may anse due
to short term timing differences on maturing hedges relative to suppher payments or obligations

A ten per cent change in the value of the US dollar versus steriing at the balance sheet date with all other vaniables held constant would
have increased or decreased post tax profit or loss for the year by £20,000 (2007 £300,000) as a result of gains or losses on translation
of US deliar cash balances and US daltar denominated trade payables and receivables

A len per cent change in the value of euro versus sterling at the balance sheet date with all other vaniables held constant would have
increased or decreased post-tax prolit or loss for the year by £500,000 {2007 £900,000), as a result of gains or lesses on translation
of euro cash balances and euro denominated trade payables and receivables

Movements of this magnitude in the other currencies noted above would have an immaterial impact on both the income statement
and equnty
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Notes to the financial statements continued

29 Financial risk management continued

(b} Interest rate risk

The Group Is exposed to interest rate nisk on its portfolio of interest bearing borrowings and deposits The Group's interest rate policy
seeks to minimise interest expense and volatility by converting, with the use of financial derivatives, the interest rate profile of underlying
borrowsngs into a diversified portfoha of hxed rate, floating rate and inflation hnked hiabilities Policy defines neutral benchmarks of

35 per cent for fixed rate debt 25 per cent for [loating rate debt and 40 per cent for capped inflation inked debt, which may be varred
within defined levels of tolerance

Inflation inked cash flows arising on the Group's long term borrowings remain an effective source of diversification within the liability
portfolio, a hedge of the Group's revenues as well as a means of reducing balance sheet risk These cash flows arose as part of a general
refinancing exercise undertaken it March 2006

(i} Fair value sensitivity for fixed rate instruments
The Group holds £1,159 million of fixed rate debk (2007 £1,186 million), of which £602 millien (2007 £782 million) has been swapped into
floating rate debt with sinterest rate swaps

The remaining £557 miltion (2007 £404 million) portion of fixed rate debt is recorded at amortised cost and a change in interest rates
at the reporting date would not affect the income statement

ik} Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments

The £602 mithon porhien of fixed rate debt swapped to floabing rates (2007 E782 millton) and the assoCiated interest rate swaps have been
designated as being in a hedging relationship The interest rate swaps and the gain or loss on the hedged item attrnibutable to the hedged
risk are recognised at fair value through profit or foss

The two movements in {air values on the underlying fixed rate debt and the interest rate swaps largely offset one another in the tncome
statement A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the balance sheet date would have increased or decreased post tax profit or
loss by £4 mullion (2007 £5 million) representing the increased cost of the floating rate leg of the swaps

For the year, the fair value movement in the interest rate swaps has resulted in a credit to the income statement of £25 milhion (2007
£39 mithon) The fair value movement in the underlysng hixed rate debt has resulted in a charge to the income statement of £25 millien
(2007 E39 milion} The net mevemnent s a credit te the income statement of £282,000 which represents ineffectiveness on this hedging
relationship (2007 £24 00O0)

Interest rate swaps not hetd in a hedging relatignship are recognised at fair value through profit or loss An increase of 100 basis points
interest rates would have increased post-tax profit or loss by £4 million (2007 £400,000} A decrease of 100 basis points v interest rates
would have decreased post tax profit or loss by £10 mitlion (2007 £8 millien)

{tii) Cash flow sensitivity for inflation-linked variabte instruments
The Group holds E&67 million of inflation-linked debt (2007 E863 million) which 1s recorded at amortised cost A change of 50 basis points
in the RPI at the balance sheet date would have increased or decreased post-tax profit or loss by £3 mullion (2007 £2 mullion)

(iv) Fair value sensitivity for avallable-for-sale financial assets

Included within avallable-for sale hinancial assets s £105 milhien (2007 £136 mullion) relating to the Group's benelictal interest 1n a property
investment pool The net present value of the Group's interest in the various freehold reversions owned by the property investment pool
has been derived by assuming a property growth rate of three per cent per annum and a discount rate of ten per cent (see note 17)

A change of one per cent in the assumed rate of property rental growth to two per cent and four per cent helding other assumptions
constant, would resuit in values for this asset of £90 million (2007 £13 million} and £130 million (2007 £163 mithon) respectively A
change of one per cent in the discount rate to nine per cent and 1 per cent, helding other assumptions constant, would result in values
of £121 milign (2007 £152 mullion) and £92 mithon (2007 E£N13 milhon) respectively

(c) Pricing nsk

The Group operates sk management processes for other material costs assatiated with its activities, for example energy costs An energy
risk management cammittee meets regularly to review pricing exposure to electricity and gas consumption and determines strategy for
forward purchasing and hedging of energy costs The process undertaken 1s stmular to that employed in purchasing foreign currency as
described in section (a) above

Capital risk management

The Board 5 pohcy 15 to maintain a strong capital structure consistent with an investment grade cred:t rating to sustain investor confidence
The Group's current credit ratings comprise a Corporate Family rating of Baa3 from Moody's and a Corporate Credit rating of BBB- from
Standard & Poor's

The Board morutors a range of financial metrics including return on capital and geaning to measure the effictency of the Group s capital
structure, the returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders

The Board has a pohcy to maintain the underlying earnings cover for the ordinary dividend at @ munimum of 15 bimes and to grow the
dwvidend cover over me to between 15 and 175 times

From time to time the Company purchases its own shares in the market for the purpose of 1ssuing shares under the Group s share option
programmes Outside of this practice the Group does not have a defined share buy back plan
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Notes to the financial statements continued

30 Financial instruments

Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m Em Em £m
Derivative assets
Current
Forward contract — cash flow hedge 4 - - -
Derivative liabilities
Current
Interest rate swaps — non-designated hedges {6} (2} {6} 2}
Nen-current
Interest rate swaps — fair value hedge {18} {43} 8 (43)

Interest rate swaps — non-designated hedges

At the balance sheet date the Group held one mterest rate swap that converts £E75 million of lloating rate borrowings into fixed rates of
interest Under the terms of the swap the Group pays a fixed rate of 4 50 per cent and receives three-month LIBOR en £75 mithon until

19 Apnil 2031 The counterparty has a once only option to cancel the swap or doubte the nottonal principal vatue of the swap to £150 million
on 19 July 2010 and thereafter a recurring option Lo cancel the swap on quarterly dates through to August 2030

A swap outstanding in March 2007 with a notional principal of E100 million was cancelled by the counterparty in July 2007

Interest rate swaps — fair value hedge

The Group has entered into three interest rate swaps to canvert a total of £602 million (2007 £782 millien) of the fixed rate secured loan
due 1n 2018 to floating rates of interest {(note 20) Under the terms of the swaps, the Group recesves fixed interest at rates varying irom

4 86 per cent to 5 22 per cent and pays floating rate interest at fixed spreads above three month LIBOR The notional principal amount
of one of the interest rate swaps amorkises from £E421 million to £221 sulhon from April 2016 to April 2018

Forelgn exchange forward contracts — cash flow hedges

At 22 March 2008, the Group held a portiohie of foreign exchange forward coniracts with a fair value of £4 milion (2007 £(0 4) million) to
hedge its exposure to fareign exchange rate risk onits future foreign currency denormnated trade purchases The Group had purchased
€144 maulhion (2007 €110 million} and sold sterling at rates ranging from O 68 to 097 (2007 0 68 to 071} with maturities from Aprl 2008
to November 2008 (2007 April 2007 to Januwary 2008) and purchased US$237 milton (2007 US$66 million) and sold sterling at rates
ranging from 193 to 2 05 (2007 179 to 198) with maturities from April 2008 to May 2009 (2007 Apnl 2007 to February 2008)

At 22 March 2008, an unrealised gain of £2 mithon (2007 loss of £01 million) 1s included 1n equity in respect of these contracts This gatn
will be transferred to the income statement over the next 14 months from balance sheet date

Interest rate risk

Interest on financial Instruments classified as floating rate 1s repriced at intervals of less than one year Inflation-linked debt 1s included
within floating rate debt as the rate of interest i1s based on movements in the RPI and 1s therefare vaniable (see note 20) Interest on
financial tnstruments classifred as fixed rate 1s fixed unbil matunity of the instrument The other financial instruments of the Group and
Company that are not included n the tables below are non-interest bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk

The following tables set out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the financial instruments that are exposed o tnterest rate risk

Luss than One to Twe to More than
one year two years five years live years Total
£m Em Em £m Em

Group
2008
Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 719 - - - 719
Other receivables - 20 35 - 55
Bank overdralts {118) - - - {L18)
Secured loan due 2036 {10) (4) 12) (876) (902)
Interest rate swaps on secured loan due 2018 - - - (602} (602)
Other interast rate swaps? - - 75 - 75
Fixed rate
Secured loan due 2018 (35} 2N {90) 931) (1,133
Interest rate swaps on secured loan due 2018 - - - 602 &602
Other interest rate swaps? - - {75} - rs)
Finance lease obligations - - (1) (48) (49}
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30 Financial instruments continued

Less than One to Two lp More than
one year two years flve years five years Total
Em Em Em Em £m

Group
2007
Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 1,128 - - - 1,128
Other recewables - - 20 30 50
Bank overdrafts (363) - - - (363)
B sharas labilty {10) - - - (10)
Secured loan due 2036' (5) - (25} (867) (897)
Interest rate swaps on secured loan due 2018 - - - {782} {782}
Other interest rate swaps? - 100 - 150 250
Fixed rate
Secured loan due 2018 (35) (25) (85) {997) (1,142}
Interesk rate swaps on secured loan due 2018 - - - 782 782
Other interest rate swaps? - (100) - (150) (250}
Finance tease obhigatians - - (1) (50) {51)
1 Principal redemption profile of (nfation-linked loan based on RPI projections at batance sheel date
2 Other interest rate swaps cancellable at the option 4 the counterparty
Company
2008
Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 324 - - - 324
Amounts due from Group entities 36 - - - 36
Other receivables - 20 35 - 55
Bank overdrafts {88) - - - (88)
Amounts due to Group entities {3,388) (1,045} - - 4,433)
interest rate swaps on amount due to Group entity 1In 2018 - - - (602) {602)
Cther interest rate swaps' - - 75 - 75
Fized rate
Amounts due frgm Group entities - - 55 B66 921
Armount due to Group entity In 2018 - - - {758) (758)
Other payables {5) - - - (5}
Interest rate swaps on amount due to Group entity in 2018 - - - 602 602
Other interest rate swaps’ - - (75} - {75}
2007
Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 523 - - - 523
Amounts due from Group entities 50 - - - 50
Other receivables - - 20 30 50
Bank overdrafts (259} - - - (259)
B shares hability {10} - - - (1o
Amounts due to Group entities {3,763) - - - (3,763)
Interest rate swaps on amount due to Group entity in 2018 - - - (782} (782)
Other tnterest rate swaps' - 100 - 150 250
Fixed rate
Amounts due from Group entities 209 - - 869 1078
Amount due to Group entity in 2018 - - - (740) (740)
Other payables (5) - - - (5)
Interest rate swaps on amount due to Group enbity 1n 2018 - - - 782 782
Other interest rate swaps’ - (100} - (150) (250}

1 Other interest rate swaps cancetlable at the cption of the counterparty
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30 Financial instruments continued
Foreign currency risk

The Group has net eurg denominated trade creditors of £12 malbon (2007 EiZ million) and US dollar denominated trade creditors of

£4 million {2007 £(5) million)

Fair value

Set out below 1s a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fawr values of ail financial instruments that are carried in the financial
statements at other than fair values The fair values of short-term deposits, receivables, overdrafts, payables and loans of a matunty of less
than one year are assumed to approximate to their book values, and are extluded from the analysis below

Group Company
Carrying Graup Carrying Company
arnount Far value amount Fair value
Em £m Em Em

2008
Financlal assets
Amounts due from Group entities - - 921 B&D
Other receivables 55 55 55 55
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to Group entities - - {1,803) {(1,701)
Secured loans' {2,035) {1,782} - -
Obhgations under finance leases {49) (49) - -
2007
Financial assets
Amounts due from Group entities - - 869 843
Other receivables 50 50 50 50
Financial liabllities
Amounts due to Group enhities - - (740) (740)
Secured loans’ (2,039) (2,088) - -
Obligations under finance leases (51} {51) - -

1 Inclodes £782 milllon accounted lor as a fair value hedge

Financial assets and labilities by category

Set out below are the accounting classifications of each class of financial assets and babities as at 22 March 2008 and 24 March 2007

Fair value
through Derwatives Qther
Loans and Available profit or used for finangial
receivables for sale lass hedging Labulties Total
Em Em £m Em £m £fm
Group
2008
Cash and cash equivalents 719 - - - - 719
Trade and other receivables 171 - - - - 171
Availlable for-sale financial assets - 106 - - - 106
Trade and other payables - - - - (2,274) (2,274)
Short-term borrowings - - - - (118) {118)
Long-term borrowings - - - - (2,084) (2,084)
Denvative financial instruments
Cash flow hedges’ - - - 4 - 4
interest rate swaps? - - {6) {18) - (24)
890 106 6} (14) (4,476) (3,500)
2007
Cash and cash equivalents 1128 - - - - 1,128
Trade and other receivables 147 - - - - 147
Available for-sale financial assets - 137 - - - 137
Trade and other payables - - - - (2,259 (2,259)
Short-term borrowings - - - - 373) {373)
Long term borrowings - - - - {2,090} (2,090)
Dernwative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps? - - 2) (43) - (45)
1,275 137 {2y (43) (4,722) {3,355)

1 Cash fiow Hedges are deterred through eguily
2 Interest rate swaps used for hedging are at far vakse through profit or loss.
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30 Financial instruments continued

Fair value
through Derivatives Other
Loans and Available- profit or wsed for financial
recervables for sale loss hedging habilties Total
Em Em Em £m Em Em
Company
2008
Cash and cash equivalents 324 - - - - 324
Trade and other receivables 1,335 - - - - 1,335
Trade and other payables - - - - (5,325) (5,325}
Short-term borrowings - - - - (88) (88}
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps' - - 6} (18} - 24)
1,659 - 8) 18} {5,413) {3,778)
2007
Cash and cash equivalents 523 - - - - 523
Other recevables . 1,294 - - - - 1,294
Trade and other payables - - - - (5,214) {5,214)
Short-term borrowings - - - - (269) {269)
Derivative financral instruments
Interest rate swaps' - - 2) (43) - (45)
1,817 - (2) {43) {5,483) (3,711)

1 Interest rate swaps used for hedging are at 1alr value through profit or loss

31 Retirement benefit obligations

Retirement benefit obligations relate to two funded defined benefit schemes, the J Sainsbury Pension and Death Benefit Scheme ("JSPDBS )
and the J Sainsbury Executive Pension Scheme (*JSEPS’ ) and an unfunded pension liability retating to semior employees The defined benefit
schemes were closed to new employees on 31 January 2002 The assets of these schemes are held separately fram the Groups assets

The defined beneht schemes were subject (o a tnienmial valuation carried out by Watson Wyatt, the schemes’ independent actuaries, at March
2006 on the projected unit basis The results of this valuation were approved by the schemes trustees in June 2007 The retwement benefit
obligations at 22 March 2008 have been calculated, where appropriate, on a basis consistent with this valuation

The unfunded pension hability 1s unwound when each employee reaches retirement and takes their pension from the Group payroll oris
crystalltsed in the event of an employee leaving or retining and chaosing to take the provision as a one off cash payment

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

Zo08 2007
£m Em

Present value of funded obligations 13,668) (4 395)
Fair value of plan assets 4,171 4 298
503 57)

Present value of unfunded obhigations 8} &)
Retirement benefit asset/(obligations) 495 (103)
Deferred income tax (hability)/asset (129 48
Net retirement benefit asset/(obligations) 366 (55}

The retirement beneht asset or obhigations and the assoctated deferred income tax balance are shown within different hine items on the
face of the balance sheet
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Notes to the financial statements continued

31 Retirement benefit obligations continued
The amounts recognised in the ncome statement are as follows

2008

2001

£m £m
Current service cost — funded schemes 74) (76)
Current service cost — unfunded scheme 2) -
Past service cost {2) {11)
Included in employee costs (note 6) (T8) 87) I
Past service gains on defined benefit schemes (note 6) - 72 |
Total included 1n employee costs {78) (1%
Interest cost on pension scheme habilities (230) {212)
Expected return on plan assets 284 253
Total included in finance income (note 5) S4 41
Total income statement (expense)/income (24) 26

Qf the expense recognised i operating profit, E70 million {2007 E31 million) 1s included in cost of sales and £8 million (2007 £4 million}1s

included in administrative expenses

The actual return on pensian scheme assets net of expenses was a loss of £96 milhen (2007 gamn of £342 million}

The amagunis recognised in the statement of recogmised tncome and expense are as follows

2008 2007
Em Em
Net actuanal gains recognised during the year 542 179
Cumulative actuarial gawns recegnised 594 52
The movements in the funded retirement benefit obhgations are as follows ‘
2008 2007 i
Em £em
Beginning of year {4,395) (4,361} ‘
Current service cost (74) {76} ‘
Past service cost 2) (11}
Past service ga:ns (nete 7) - 72 ,
Interest cost (230) (212}
Contnibutions by plan participants (10) (11)
Actuarial gains 922 Q0 !
Benefits paid 123 127 ‘
Transfer from provisions (note 22) (2) (13)
End of year {3,668) (4.395)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows
2008 2007
£m Em
Beginning of year 4,298 3,710
Expected return on plan assets 284 253
Actuanal (losses)/gains {380) 89
Contributions by employer 82 362
Contnbutions by ptan participants 10 11
Beneftts paid {123) (127)
End ol year 4,171 4298
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31 Retirement benefit obligations continued

The principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date are as follows

2008 2007
% %

Discount rate 69 53
Expected return on plan assets 66 66
Future salary increases 350 300
Future penston increases 240-350 235-300
A movement of 05 per cent in the discount rate would increase or decrease the rebirement beneht obhgations by E335 mitlion
Consistent with the prior year, the discount rate 15 based on the annualised yield on an AA-rated sterling corporate bend index
The combined Iife expectancy for both the schemes operated at the balance sheet date for a pensioner at normal retirement age
{now 65 years for men and 60 years for women) s as follows

zo08 2007

years years
Male pensioner 216 214
Female pensicner 231 229
The mortaklty assumptions used are the same as those adopted in the prior year
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows

2008 2007

% %

Equities 45 52
Bonds 46 37
Property 4 4
Other 5 T

100 100
The expected return on assets has been denwed as the weighted average of the expected returns from each of the main asset classes
The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of historical performance analysis, the forward looking view of the
financial markets (as suggested by the yield available) and the views of investment orgamsations
The history of experience adjustments on the plans for the current and previous financial years s as follows

2008 2007 2006 2005
£m £m Em Em

Present value of retirement benefit obligations {3,676} {4,401} (4,36B) 3,512)
Fair value of plan assets 4,171 4,298 3,710 2,976
Surplus/(defiot) 495 (103) (658) (536)
Experience loss en plan habikties (79) (236) 27) {6)
Experience {loss)/gain on plan assets (360 89 428 134

The expected contributions te defined benefit schemes for the next financial year beginning 23 March 2008 are E125 millien
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32 Share-based payments

The Group recognised £53 million (2007 £38 million) of employee costs (note 6) redated to share based payment transactions made
duning the financiat year Of these, £2 mulhon {2007 Eml) are cash-settled

National insurance centnibutions are payable in respect of certain share-based payment transactions and are treated as cash settled
transactions At 22 March 2008, the carrying amount of national insurance contributions payable was £13 million (2007 £14 nullion)

of which £nil (2007 £2 mithon} was in respect of vested grants

The Group operates various share-based payment schemes as set out betow

{a) Savings Retated Share Option Scheme ("SAYE'™)

The Group operates a Savings Related Share Option Scheme, which s open to all UK employees with more than three months’ continuous
service This s an approved HMRC Scheme and was established in 1980 Under the SAYE scheme, participants remaining in the Group's
employment at the end of the three year or five year savings period are entitled to use their savings to purchase shares in the Company
at a stated exercise price Employees leaving for certain reasons are able to use their savings to purchase shares withun six months of

their leaving

At 22 March 2008, UK employees held 22,074 five year savings contracts (2007 21,833) in respect of options over 20 6 million shares
{2007 205 million) and 28,332 three-year savings contracts (2007 24,919} in respect of options over 15 3 mithon shares (2007 141 metlion)

A reconcihation of optton movements s shown below

2008 2007
‘Weighted Weighted
2008 average 2007 average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
ontions price options price
mallion pence mathon pence
Outstanding at beginning of year 345 256 354 237
Granted 100 331 g1 328
Forfeited (3 4) 272 (4 3) 236
Exercised (4 9} 233 (4 4) 272
Expired (0 3) 266 {13 278
Outstanding at end of year 59 278 345 256
Exercisable at end of year 20 227 34 247
The weighted average share price during the period for options exercised over the year was 377 pence (2007 510 pence)
Details of options at 22 March 2008 are set aut below
Options Cptions
Exarcise outstanding outstanding
price 2008 2007
Date of grant Date of expry pence ralition millien
20 December 2001 {5 year peripd) 31 August 2007 02 - 04
3 January 2003 (5 year penod) 31 August 2008 239 09 30
17 December 2003 (3 year period) 31 August 2007 241 - 04
17 becember 2003 {5 year penod) 31 August 2009 241 z8 30
15 December 2004 (3 year period) 31 August 2008 217 11 35
15 December 2004 (5 year penod) 31 August 2010 217 40 43
15 Decemnber 2005 (3 year period) 31 August 2009 231 46 53
15 December 2005 (5 year period) 31 August 2011 231 50 56
15 December 2006 (3 year period} 31 August 2010 328 40 48
15 December 20056 (5 year period} 31 August 2012 328 37 42
20 December 2007 (3 year period) 31 August 2011 331 56 -
20 December 2007 (5 year period) 31 August 2013 331 42 -
359 345
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32 Share-based payments continued
Opttons granted during the year were valued using the Black-Scholes optron-pricing model No performance conditions were tncluded in the
fair value calculations The fair value per ophion granted during the year and the assumptions used in the catculation are as follows

2008 2007

Share price at grant date (pence) 413 409
Exercise price {pence} 331 328
Expected volatiity - 3 year period {%6) 235 180
— 5 year period (%) 253 255

Option life — 3 year period (years) 32 32
~ 5 year period (years) 52 52

Expected dividends (expressed as dividend yield %) 19 23
Risk-free interest rate — 3 year period (%) 45 42
— 5 year period (%) 47 42

fair value per opttan  — 3 year period (pence) 122 105
— 5 year period {pence) 144 132

The expected volatility 1s based on the standard deviation of the Group s share price for the period immediately prior to the date of grant
of award, over the period identical to the vesting period of the award, adjusted for management s view of future volatiity of the share price

(b) Colleague Share Option Plan ("CSOP™)

The Colleague Share Option Plan operates under the rules of the HMRC Approved Discretionary Share Option Scheme Under the CSOP,
participants are granted options te purchase shares of the Company at a stated exercise price The exercise of options 15 conditional upon
participants remaining in the employment of the Group for a three-year pertod after date of grant Colleagues leaving employment for
certain reasons have six months from their teaving date to exercise their options

At 22 March 2008, a tolal of 10,547 UK employees (2007 17,793) participated in the plan and held oplions over 3 4 million shares
(2007 57 milion) Opttons are exercisable between three and ten years from the date of the grant of option It 1s intended that there
will be no further opttons granted under this plan

A reconciliation of option movements 15 shown below

2008 2007

Weghted waighted

2008 average 2007 average

Number of exercise Humber of exercise

options price aplions price

million pence mathen pence

Qutstanding at beginming of year 57 365 18 6 366
Forfeited (0 3} isz2 (4 8) 363
Exercrsed 20 370 79 369
Expired - - (0 2) 371
Qutstanding at end of year 34 363 57 365
Exercisable at end of year 34 363 57 365

The weighted average share price dureing the period for options exercised over the year was 553 pence (2007 500 pence)

Details of opttons at 22 March 2008 are set out below

Optlens Options

Exercise outstanding autstancing

price 2008 2007

Date of grant Date of expiry pence mililon mullicn
2 August 1999 1 August 2009 378 29 50
2 June 2000 1 June 2010 272 05 o7
34 57
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32 Share-based payments continued

{c) Executive Share Option Plan ("ESQOP™)

Under the Executive Share Option Plan, partioipants were granted options to purchase shares in the Company at a stated exercise price
The maximum annual option award was two times basic salary and the grants were agreed by the Remuneration Committee according to
the assessed performance and potential of parhicipants

The exercise of options is conditional upon a performance target based on the growth in the Company’s underlying earnings per share
("EPS"} relabive to inflation over a three-year penigd EPS 15 measured against a fixed starting point over the performance period beginning
with the year in which the option was granted To the extent that the condition 1s not satisfied in full after three years, it will be retested on
a fixed-point basis over four and then five financial years To the extent the condition 15 not met after five financial years, the option

will lapse

Once the options vest, participants remaining in the Group s employment or leaving for certain reasons, are entitled to exercise the options

between vesiing date (normally at the end of the three year performance pertod) and the option expiry date, which is ten years from date
of grant

It 15 intended that there will be no further optians granted under this plan

A reconcihation of option movements 15 shown below

2008 2007

Weighted Weighted

2008 average 2007 average

Number of exercise Number of exercise

options price optians price

milhen pence mullton pence

CQutstanding at beginning of year 20 4 362 368 358
Forfeited 63 332 (05 400
Exercised (59 405 (11 5) 356
Expired (41) 294 4 4) 343
Qutstanding at end of year a1 411 204 362
Exercisable at end of year 35 437 122 420

The weighted average share price during the paned for options exercised over the year was 546 pence (2007 460 pence)

Details of options at 22 March 2008 are set out below

Optlens Optrons

Exercise outstanding outstanding

price 2008 2007

Date of grant Cate of expiry pence mitlien miltion
20 May 1997 19 May 2007 367 - o7
11 November 1997 10 November 2007 489 - o1
10 November 1998 9 November 2008 545 10 24
2 August 1999 1 August 2009 378 04 18
2 June 2000 1 June 2010 272 03 11
7 June 2001 6 June 2011 427 09 29
26 July 2001 25 July 2011 407 09 32
25 July 2002 24 July 2012 287 - 37
22 May 2003 21 May 2013 257 04 31
20 May 2004 19 May 2014 275 02 14
41 204
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32 Share-based payments continued

(d} Performance Share Plan {“PSP")

The Performance Share Plan was a long term incentive scheme through which shares were awarded to senior managers on a conditional
basis Under the PSP participants remaning in the Group's employment or leaving for certain reasons, were entitled to receive a grant of
options after a performance period of three years to acquire the shares awarded to them, at any trme during the ten years following the
date of grant

The participant’s entitlement to receive the grant depended on the Company's Total Shareholder Return { TSR ) - being the increase in the
value of a share, including remnvested dividends, compared with a peer group of 11 companies (namely Ahold, Alhance Boots, Carrefour, Casine,
DSG International, Kingfisher, Loblaw, Marks & Spencer, Morrisans, Next and Tesco), over the three-year perfgrmance period

If the median performance of the TSR against the comparator group was not achueved at the end of the three-year performance period,
the entitlement to receive the grant of options lapsed At median level, shares to the value of 30 per cent of salary would be released and
the award will be pro rated at every position between the median and first position in the comparator growp The maximum allocation for
Directors was a conditional grant of shares equal to 75 per cent of salary

No further allocations will be made under this plan

A reconcihation of the number of shares conditionally allocated is shown below

Number Number

ol shares of shares

2008 2007

million millien

Qutstanding at beginning of year o9 22
Forfeited - 02)
Released to participants omn 06
Lapsed ©2) (05)
Cutstanding at end of year - 09

Details of shares conditionally allocated at 22 March 2008 are set out below

Shares Shares

condltionally conditionally

' allocated allocated

2008 2007

milllon milion

20 May 2004 - 09
- 09

Conditional awards of shares that have fulfilled a! conditions at the end of the performance peniod are represented by options granted to
participants to acquire the shares awarded to them Details of the options outstanding at year end are set out below

2008 2007

Shares Shares

Ezercise inrespect In respect

e 2008 of options 2007 of options

Date of grant Date of expiry pence Cptions granted Options granted
17 May 2006 16 May 2016 - - - 1 13 187
16 May 2007 15 May 2017 - Z 37.627 - -
2 37.627 1 13,187

1 Options granted in respect of shares conditionally allocated on 22 May 2003,
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Notes to the financial statements continued

32 Share-based payments continued

(e} All-Employee Share Ownership Plan

In June 2003, under the All-Employee Share Ownership Plan, free shares were awarded to UK employees with more than 12 months’
conbinugus service The free shares are being held in a trust on behalf of participants and will be forfeited if participants cease to remain
in the Group’s employment for a period of three years Shares are released to participants waithin the first three years for certain reasons
After the three year penod, the shares continue to be held by the trust for a further holding peried of two years unless they are released
to participants upon cessation of employment with the Group

A reconciliation of shares held in the trust 1s shown below

Number Number

of shares of shares

2008 2007

million erullion

Outstanding at beginning of year 15 17
Forfeited - on
Released to participants 01) cn
Qutstanding at end of year 14 15

{f) J Salnsbury plc Share Plan 2005

Under the J Samnsbury pic Share Plan 2005, shares were awarded to participants on the conditional basis thal the performance targets
are achieved within the four year performance pertod, from the finangial year beginmng 27 March 2005 untit the financial year ending
March 2009 The levels of awards are scaled according to seniority and there s an opportunty for Executive Directors and eligible
Operating Board members to make a personal investment of up ta 50 per cent of salary in the plan

The awards will vest if stretching sales and earnings per share ( EPS ) targets are achieved, as shown in table 1 below The relevant
performance multiplier, which 1s on a shiding scale up to a maxtmum of five times, will be calculated and appled to the core award of
shares, as well as the personal investment of shares 1e shares acquired by Executive Directors and eligible Operating Board members
Further, there1s an opportunity for partial vesting of up to half the award, iIf the accelerated performance targets have been met at the
end of year three O e Hinancial year ended March 2008) as shown in table 2 No awards will vest unless threshold levels of growth in
both sales and EPS are achieved

Once performance targets have been achieved, options will be granted to participants remaining 1n the Group s employment or leaving
for certain reasons to acquire the shares awarded to them, at nil cost The options will expire within a year after the end of the four year
performance period Dividends will accrue on the shares that vest in the form of addtional shares

In order to participate in the plan, partioipants agreed to surrender options granted to them under the Company's Executive Share Option
Plan i 2002, 2063 and 2004

Table 1 — Maturity vesting (multiplier applied to the shares)

4 year EPS growth {compound annual}

Sales growth tn £ billign <5% 5% 10% 14% 17% 21%
250 00 10 20 30 45 50
225 00 10 15 25 40 50
200 00 co 15 20 30 45
175 00 00 15 20 25 40
150 00 oo 10 15 20 30
125 (V2] 00 o0 10 15 25
100 0o o0 00 00 10 20

Table 2 - Interim vesting (multiplier applied to 50% of the shares)

3 year EPS growth (compound annuat}

Sales growthn £ illion <5% 5% i0% 15% 20% 25%
250 oo 10 20 30 45 50
225 00 10 15 25 40 50
200 o 00 15 20 EX) 45
175 00 00 15 20 25 40
150 00 00 10 15 20 30
125 00 00 00 10 15 25
100 00 00 Q0 oC 10 20
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Notes to the financial statements continued

32 Share-based payments continued

A reconcibation of the number of shares conditionally allocated 15 shown below

Number Number

of shares of shares

2008 2007

milion toulbon

Gutstanding at beginning of year 65 70

Forferted {0 9) @5

Cutstanding at end of year 61 65
Details of shares conditionally allocated at 22 March 2008 are set out below

Shares Shares

condltionally conditionalty

allocated allpcated

2008 2007

Date of conditional award million multlon

13 July 2005 61 65

{g) Long-Term Incentive Plan 2006

Under the Lang Term Incentive Plan 2006, shares were conditionally awarded to the top 1,000 managers in the Company, from the
Chief Executive to the supermarket store managers The core awards are calculated as a percentage of the participants’ salaries and
scaled according to grades

The awards will vest of the threshold levels of two co-dependent performance conditions = Return on Capital Employed ("ROCE' ) and
growth in cash flow per share, are achieved over the three-year performance pertod As set out in {able 3 below, the core award can
grow by up to four times, dependeni on the level of performance Straight ine vesting will apply if performance falls between two points

Performance will be measured at the end of the three-year performance pertod If the required level of performance has been reached, the
awards vest and 50 per cent of the award will be released Subject to participants remaining in emplayment for a further year, the balance
will be released on the fourth anniversary of the date of award Options granted to acquire the award of shares will expire two years from
vesting date Dividends will accrue on the shares that vest in the form of additional shares

Table 3 — Level of awards

3 year cash flow per share growth (compound annual}

RQCE 6% 9% 12% 15% >18%
»=14% 15 25 30 35 40
13% 10 15 20 30 35
12% 05 10 15 20 30
11% 00 05 190 15 25
10% g o] 05 10 15

A reconciliation of the number of shares conditicnally allocated 1s shown below

Number of Number of

shares shares

2008 2007

miilion mithen

Outstanding at beginning of year 25 -

Conditionally allocated 21 26

Forleited o1 {01

OQutstanding at end of year 45 25
Details of shares conditionally awarded at 22 March 2008 are set out below

Shares Shares

conditionalty conditionally

aliacated aliocated

2008 2007

Date of conaitional awarg millien millign

13 July 2006 24 25

20 June 2007 21 -

45 25
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Notes to the financial statements continued

32 Share-based payments continued
Options to acquire the award of shares were valued using the Black Scholes option-pricing model No performance ¢onditions were included
in the farr value calculations The fair value per option granted during the year and the assumptions used in the calculation are as follows

2008 2007
Share price at grant date (pence) 558 335
Exercise price (pence) - -
Expected volathty (%) 190 290
Option life (years) 42 41
Expected dividends (expressed as dividend yield %) - -
Risk-free interest rate (%) 56 47
Fair value per option {pence) 558 335

The expected volatility 1s based on the standard deviation of the Group's share price for the period immediately prior to the date of
grant of award, over the period identical to the vesting period of the award, adjusted for management'’s view of future volatihty of the
share price

(h) Deferred Annual Bonus Plan

The Deferred Annual Banus Plan, applies to the top levels ol management including Executive Directors and currently comprises around
40 parbicipants in total The first deferral took place in June 2007, in respect of the bonus awards for the financial year ended 24 March
2007 The next deterral will take place in June 2008

The Plan measures the Company’s TSR performance over a three-year penod against a bespoke UK and European retail comparator group
comprising Ahold, Carrefaur, Casino, Delhaize, DSG International, Home Retail Group, Kingfisher, Marks & Spencer, Metro, Morrtsons, Next
and Tesco Alhance Boots was removed from the comparator group following its de listing

Up to two matched shares may be awarded for each share deferred depending on the extent to which the TSR measure 1s achieved No
shares are awarded for below median performance, and the full match will only apply where the Company achieves first place within the
comparator group At median position the match will be ¢ 5 shares for each deferred bonus share and the share match will be pro rated
at every position between median and first place

To the extent that the performance conditien 1s met at the end of the three year performance period, the matched shares will be added ta
the deferred bonus shares The deferred bonus shares and half of the matched shares can be accessed immediately while the remainder
will be held over for a further year Dividends or the equsvalents will accrue on shares that vest

A reconciiation of the number of shares conditionalty allocated 1s shown below

Number of Number of

shares shares

2008 2007

million mulkon

Outstanding at beginring of year - -

Granted during the year 06 -

Outstanding at end of year 06 -
Details of shares allocated at 22 March 2008 are set out below

Shares Shares

ditionally ¢ v

allocated allocated

2008 2007

Date of award mittlon mittion

20 June 2007 06 -

33 Acquisition of subsidiary
On 27 November 2007, the Group acquired 100 per cent of the shares in SW Dewsbury Limited for a total cash consideration of £3 mithion,
net of cash acquired (note 13}
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Notes to the financlal statements continued

34 Related party transactions

Group

{a) Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group comprise members of the J Sainsbury pic's Board of Directors and the Operating Board

The key management personnel compensation 1§ as follows

2008 2007
£m Em
Short-term employee benefits 7 7
Post employment employee benefits 1 1
Share based payments 9 7
17 15

Details of transactions, in the normal course of business, with the key management personnel are provided below For this purpose key
management persennel inciude Group key management personnel and members of their close family

Credit Saving

card deposit

balances accounts
Number Credit Number Saving
ol key card of key deposit
management batances  management accounts
personnel £000 persannel £000
At 25 March 2007 4 3 2 280
Amounts advanced/(receved)' 3 113 4 (722)
Interest earned/(paid) 1 - 1 -
Amounts (repaid)/withdrawn? 4 (111) 3 392
At 22 March 2008 4 10 2 (617}
At 26 March 2006 4 9 2 {1)
Amounts advanced/(received)' 4 115 1 (769)
Interest earned/(paid) 1 - 2 3
Amounts (repad)/withdrawn? 4 (116) 1 486
At 24 March 2007 4 8 2 (287

1 Includes existnig balances of new appontments.
2 inchodes existing balances of resignations.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

34 Related party transactions continued

(b} Jeoint ventures

Transactions with jeint ventures

For the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008, the Group entered into various transactions with joint ventures as set out below

2008 2001
£m £€m
Sales of inventories 6 4
Management services provided 20 3
Interest income receved in respect of interest bearing loans 3 -
Sale of assets 74 -
Rental expenses paid {4) -
Year-end balances arising from transactions with joint ventures
2008 2007
Em Em
Receivables
Other recevables 7 B
Loans due from joint ventures
Floating rate subordinated undated loan capital’ 25 20
Fleating rate subordinated dated loan caprtal® 30 30
Payables
Loans due to joint ventures {5} (5}

The undated subordinated loan capital shalt be repait on such date as the Financlat Services Authority shall agree i writing for such repayment and in any event not less than five vears and one day frem

the dates of draw down in the event of a winding up of Sainsbury s Bank plc, the loan is subordinated to ordinary unsecured Rablfities. Interest Is payable three months in arrears at LIBOR plus 2 margin of

1.0 per cent per annum for the duration of the loan,

No repayment of dated subardinated debt prior to its stated maturity may be made without the consent of the Financial Services Authority in the event ol a winding up of Sainsbury’s Bank plc the logn Is
o ordinary Babilities. interest s payable three manths in arrears at LIBOR phus 8 margin of 0.6 per cent per annum tor the duration of the Joan.

Y

{c) HBOS plc group

In the prior financial year up to 8 February 2007, Sainsbury's Bank plc was a subsidiary of the Company and had as shareholders
the Company and Bank of Scotland (part of the HBOS plc group), which held S5 per cent and 45 per cent respecuively of the tssued
share capital

Transaction with the HBOS plc group
Companies within the HBOS plc group provided both management and banking services to Sainsbury's Bank Sainsbury's Bank also entered
inte financial transactions with and earned commission frem companies within the HBOS plc group all under normal commercial terms

2008 2007
£im Em

Loans given to, and commlission received from HBOS plc group
Tota! leans and advances made during the year - 5 589
Net interest recerved in respect of interest rate swaps, loans and advances - 490
Commussion income earned - i8
Services and loans provided by HBOS plc group
Management and banking services - [E1s))
Interest expense pad in respect of subordinated loan capital - {2)
Deposits by banks

Fixed term berrowing - (79}
Net interest paid in respect of interest rate swaps, loans and advances - (36}

Annual Repert and Financial Statements 2008 J Salnsbury ple
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Notes to the financial statements continued

34 Related party transactions continued

Company

(a) Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Company comprise members of the J Sainsbury ple's Board of Directors The Directors do not
recerve any remuneration from the Company (2007 £nil) as therr emoluments are borpe by subsitharies The Company did not have any
transactions with the Directors during the financiai year (2007 £mb)

{b) Subsidiaries

The Company enters into loans with its subsidiaries at both lixad and floating rates of anterest on a commerciat basis Hence, the Company
incurs interest expense and earns tterest income on these loans and advances The Company also receved dividend income from its
subsidharies during the ftnancial year

Transactions with subsidiaries

2008 2007
Em Em
Loans and advances given to, and dividend income received from subsidlaries
Loans and advances given 284 69
Loeans and advances repaid by subsidianes {360) 1802}
Lecans and advances disposed of with part disposal of Sainsbury’s Bank - {5Q)
Interest iIncome received in respect of interest bearing loans and advances 11§ 127
Dividend Income received 250 270
Loans and advances received from subsidiaries
Loans and advances received (321) (1,559}
Loans and advances repaid 202 2,167
Interest expense pard in respect of interest bearing lvans and advances (277} (224)
Year-end balances arising from transactions with subsidiaries
2008 2007
Em £m
Receivables
Loans and advances due from subsidiares 1,279 1,243
Payables
Loans and advances due to subsidianes {5,315) (5,203}
(c) Joint ventures
Transactions with joint ventures
For the 52 weeks to 22 March 2008, the Company entered into transactions with joint ventures as set out below
2008 2007
Em £m
Services and loans provided to joint ventures
interest Income received in respect of interest bearing loans 3 -
Year-end balances arising from transactions with joint ventures
zoo8 2007
£m Em
Receivables
Other receivables 1 1
Loans due from joint ventures
Floating rate subordinated undated loan capitait 25 20
floating rate subordinated dated loan capital 30 30
Payables
Loans due to joint ventures (5) {5)

1 7he undated subcrdinated loan capital shall be repart on such date a3 the Fananclal Services Authority shall agree n writing for fueh repayment and in any event not less than five years and one day from
ihe dates of draw dawn. In the event of a windmg P of Sansbury's Bank pie, the ioan s subordmated Lo ofdmary unsecured Labitities. Interest s payable three months in arrears at LIBOR plus & margin of
1.0 per cent per annum for the duration of the kan,

2 Norepayment of dated subordinated debt prior ta its stated maturty may be made without the consent of the Financial Services Authonty Ln the event of 2 winehing up of Sainsbury’s Bank pic the kan Is
subordinated to ordinary unsecured Kabilities. Interest o paryalie theee months n arrears at LIBOR plus a margm of 0.6 per cent gt annum for the duration of the loan.

-L ]
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Notes to the financial statements continued

35 Operating lease commitments
The Group leases various retail stores, offices, depats and equipment under non-cancellable operating leases The leases have varying
terms, escalation ¢tauses and renewal nights

Land and Land and

bulldings bulldings  Other leases Qther leases
2008 2007 2008 2007
Em Em £m Em

Commitments under non cancellable operating leases payable as follows
wWithin 1 year 305 291 48 42
Within 2 to 5 years inclusive 1,187 1,125 B2 B2
After 5 years 4,686 4,679 2 7
6,178 6,095 132 131

The Group sublets certain leased properties and the tota! future minimum sublease payments to be received under non-cancellable
subleases at 22 March 2008 are £254 million (2007 £262 millton)

The Company does not have any operating lease commitments (2007 £nil}

36 Capital commitments
During the current financial year, the Group entered inte contracts of £316 mill:on (2007 £305 million) for future capital expenditure not
provided for in the inancial statements

The Company does not have any capital commitments (2007 £nul)

37 Contingent liabilities and financial commitments

Contingent labilitles

Operating lease commitments (note 35) include payments in respect of 26 supermarket properties sold (16 supermarket properties sold
In March 2000 for £325 milhon and ten supermarket properties seld in July 2000 for £226 millien) and leased back to the Group for

a period of 23 years Under the arrangement, the Company has provided a residual value guarantee of £170 million for the 16 supermarket
properties and £39 mullion for the ten supermarket properties at the end of the lease period

In view of the relatively low amount of the guarantees when compared to the present market vatue of the freehold interests the Directors
keligve that the ikehhood of the guarantees being invoked 1s remote, therefore no provision has been recognised in these financial statements

Financial commitments
The hinancial commitments of Sansbury s Bank pic, a 50 per cent Joind venture of the Group, are set out below

The amounts notad below ichcate the volume of business outstanding at the batance sheet date in respect of the off-balance sheet
financiat mstruments that commit Sainsbury s Bank tc extend credit to customers The priar year figure has been adjusted to remove
undrawn lines on credit cards This credit line may be revoked at any time and i1s not considered {o meet the defintion of a commitment

2008 2007
£m Em
Commitments to extend credit 24 6 182

38 Post balance sheet events
On the 26 March 2008, the Group announced aninvestment of £273 mullion to create a E£12 billion property joint venture with The British
Land Company PLC

as
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Five year financial record

IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS UK GAAP UK GAAP
2008 2007 2006 2005 2005 2004
Financial results (Em}
Revenue' 19,287 18,518 17,317 16,573 16,573 18,239
Revenue {(Inc VAT) — continuing operations 19,287 18,518 17,317 16,364 16,364 15,517
Underlying operating profit
Sainsbury's Supermarkets 535 429 352 308 321 564
Sainsbury s Bank - 2 (10} 17 13 26
535 431 342 325 334 590
Underiying net finance costs? (45) (513 (75} {88) (92} 60}
Share of post-tax {loss)/profit from joint ventures (2} - - 1 1 -
Underlying profit from continuing operations? 488 380 267 238 243 530
Increase on previous year (%) 284 42 3 122 n/a
Underlying profit from discontinued cperations - - - 11 11 145
Underlying profit before tax* 488 380 267 249 254 675
Increase/f{decrease) on previous year (%) 28 4 42 3 T2 n/a (62 4) 29}
Earnings per share
Basic (pence} 191 19 2 38 41 35 207
(Decrease)/increase on previous year (%) (0 5) 405 3 (7 3) n/a (B3 1) (127
Underlying basic {pence) 196 147 105 83 90 23 4
Increase/(decrease) on previous year (%) 333 400 265 n/a {61 5) 3 3)
Proposed dividend per share {(pence)® 12 00 975 B8 00 780 780 15 69
Retail statistlcs for UK foed retailing
Number of outlets at financial year-end including
checkout space®
Sainsbury's Supermarkets
over 60,000 sq fi sales area 25 21 16 16 16 i4
40,001 - 60,000 sq it sales area 165 157 i50 142 142 143
25 Q01 - 40,000 sq it sales area 155 163 i68 176 176 i63
15,000 — 25,000 sq it sales area 94 91 88 79 79 77
under 15,000 sq ft sales area 384 356 330 314 314 186
B23 788 752 727 727 583
Retail statistics for UK food retailing
Number of sutiets at financial year-end excluding
chechkout space®’
Sainsbury’s Supermarkets
over 55 000 sq ft sales area 24 20 15 15 15 14
40,001 - 55,000 sq ft sales area 130 124 115 110 110 109
25 001 - 40,000 sq it sales area 161 167 177 182 182 173
15 000 - 25,000 sq ft sales area 100 98 92 83 83 78
under 15,000 sq ft sales area 408 379 352 337 337 209
B23 788 752 727 727 583
Sales area including checkout space (00D sg ft)®
Samsbury's Supermarkets 17,901 17,364 16,725 16,370 16,370 15,570
Net increase on previous year
Samnsbury's Supermarkets (%) ED ] EX:] 22 51 51 24
Sales area excluding checkout space (000 sq )%
Sainsbury s Supermarkets 16,191 15,715 15,166 14,891 14,891 14,132
Net ingrease on previous year
Sainsbury's Supermarkets (%)%’ 30 36 18 54 54 28
New Sainsbury's Supermarkets openings®’ 35 40 34 36 36 35
Saipsbury's Supermarkets’ sales intensity
Excluding checkout space (including VAT) &7
Per square foot (E per week) 19 69 19 30 18 40 17 99 i7 99 18 25
1 Ingciydes VAT at Salnsbury's Supermarkets and sales tax at Shaw s Supermarkets.
2 Net hinance costs pre Lnancing fair value movemnents and ane-of! items that are material and infrequent in nature
3 IFRS - Prolit betore tas from continuing operations befors ary gain or loss on the sale ol properbes. imparment of goodwil, talr vatue 2nd one-off iterns that are material and

wfrequent i nature
4 UK GAAP ~ Underlying profit before Lax 15 stated before exceptional items.
% Tatal propotéed dividend in relation to 1be Hnancial pear
6 Includes all £ lence stores and ¢ * acqAsh

7 Restated to measure space exchuding ¢heckouts, contistent with the rest of the market
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Additional shareholder information

End of year information at 22 March 2008

Number of shareholders

123,214 (2007 127,354}

Number of shares in issue

1,747,013,518 (2007 1.734,239,672)

By size of holding

Shareholders  Shareholders Shares Shares
% % % %
2008 2007 2008 007
50C and under 67 90 67 62 054 057
501 to 1,000 12 64 12 59 066 069
1001 to 10,000 1813 18 31 315 334
10,001 te 100,000 090 085 168 186
100,001 te 1,000,000 028 036 696 8 68
Over 1 000,000 015 017 87 01 84 86
100 00 100 00 100 00 100 00

By cateqory of shareholder
Shareholders  Sharehalders Shares Shares
» % % %
2oos 2007 2008 2007
Individual and other shareholders 95 64 96 04 1812 2191
Insurance companies 004 005 002 Q03
Banks and Nominees 393 352 70 27 69 71
Investment Trusts 003 003 001 001
Pension Funds 001 001 008 013
Other Corporate Bodies 035 0 35 11 50 821
100 00 100 00 100 0O 100 00

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Annual Report and Financial Statements 1s pubhished on our
website at www [-sainsbury co uk/repert2008 and has onty been
sent to those shareholders who have asked for a copy Shareholders
who have not requested a paper copy of the Annual Report have
been not:fred of 1ts availlability on the website

A paper copy of the Annual Report i1s available by writing to the
Company Secretary. J Samnsbury ple, 33 Holborn, London ECIN 2HT
or you can email your request to investor relations2®@sainsburys co uk

Annual General Meeting ("AGM™)

The AGM will be held at 1 00am on Tuesday 15 July 2008 at The
International Convention Centre, Broad Street Birmingham B1 2EA
The Notice of the Meeting and the proxy card for the meeting are
enclosed with this report

Company website

J Sainsbury ple Intenm and Annual Reports and results
announcements are available via the internet on our website
{www ) s5ainsburyco uk) As well as providing share price data and
financial history, the site also provides background information
aboul the Company regulatory and news releases and current
issues Shareholders can recesve email notification of results

and press announcements as they are released by registering

on the page called Emarl news service in the Investor section

of the website

Registrar

For information about the AGM, shareholdings, dwvidends and to
report changes Lo personal detalls, shareholders should contact
Computershare Investor Services PLC, PO Box B2 The Pawvilions,
Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 7NH

Telephone 0870 702 0106 (www computershare com)

Dividend Relnvestment Plan ("DRIP™}

The Company has a DRI?, which allows shareholders to reinvest
their cash dividends 1n the Company’s shares bought in the market
through a specially arranged share dealing service No new

shares are allotted under this Plan and some 32,580 shareholders
participate in it Full detai!s of the Plan and its charges, together
with mandate forms, are availlable from the Registrars

Key dates for the hinal dividend are as follows

Last date for return or revocation of

Plan mandates 27 June 2008

18 July 2008

Plan shares purchased for participants

Plan share certificates 1ssued 31 July 2008

Individual Savings Account (ISA"}

A corporate I1SA 15 avalable from The Share Centre Ltd and offers
a tax efhcient way of holding shares in the Company Both a

Maxi and Mini [SA are availlable For further information contact
The Share Centre, PQ Box 2000, Cxlord Read, Aylesbury,
Buckinghamshire HP21 8ZB

Telephone 01296 414141 or freephone OB000 282812 and quote
Sainsbury s’

Low cost share dealing service

The Company offers a low cost share dealing service {or

J sawnshury plc ordinary shares through The Share Centre Ltd
For further infermation contact The Share Centre, PC Box 2000
Oxford Road Aylesbury Buckinghamshire HP21828

Telephone 01296 414i4i or freephone 08000 282812 and quote
‘Samnsbury’s
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Additional shareholder infermation continued

ShareGitt

Shareholders who wish to donate shares to charity can do so
through ShareGitt, the independent chanty share donation scheme
{registered charity no 1052686} Further information about
ShareGift may be obtained from Computershare Investor Services
PLC or from ShareGtft on 020 7930 3737 or at www shareqift org
There are no implications for capital gains tax purposes (on gam

or loss} on gifts of shares to chanity and it 1s alse possible to claim
income tax relef

Tax information ~ Capital Gains Tax ("CGT™)

For CGT purposes, the market value of ordinary shares on

31 March 1982 adjusted for all cap:tal adjustments was 2199 pence
and B shares 10 941 pence

Share capital consolidation

The ortginal base cost of shares apportioned between ordinary
shares of 28*"pence and B shares Is made by reference to the
market value of each class of shares on the first day for which a
market value 1s quoted after the new hotding comes inte existence
The market value for CGT purposes of any share or security quoted
on the Stock Exchange Daily Official List ts generaily the lower of
the two quotations on any day plus one quarter of the difference
between the values

On Monday 19 July 2004 the values were determined as {ollows

New ordinary shares 257 5 pence
B shares 35 pence

Investor relations

For investor enquirtes please contact Ethot Jordan Head
of Investor Relations, J Satnsbury pi¢, Store Support Centre
33 Holborn, Lendon ECIN 2HT

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2008

American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs™
The Company has a sponsored Level | ADR programme for which
The Bank of New York acts as depositary

The ADRs are traded an the over-the-counter ( OTC ) market in
the US under the symbol JSYNSY, where one ADR 15 equal to four
ordinary shares

All enguirigs relating to ADRS should be addressed to

The Bank of New York Investor Relations, PO Box 11258,
Church Street Station, New York, NY 10286 1258 Toll Free
Telephone # for domestic callers 1-888-BNY ADRS
International callers can call +1-610-382-7836

Ematll shareowners@bankofny com

General contact details
An audio tape of the Chairman’s statement and the Business review
can be obtained by calling 01435 862 737

Share price information 15 avallable gn the Company's website,
in the financial press and the Cityline service operated by the
Financial Times (Telephone 0906 003 3904}

For general enquiries about Sainsbury’s Bank call 0500 405 060
For any customer enguines please contact our Custemer Careline
by calling 0800 636 262
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Additional shareheclder information continued

Electrenic communications for shareholders
The Company has set up a faciity for shareholders to take
advantage of electronic communicabions

If you would like to

- view the Annual Report and Financral Statements on the day
1t 15 pubhished

« register your email address so that future sharehglder
information can be sent to you electronically

+ check the balance and current value of your shareholding
and view your dividend history

«  submit your vote online prior to a general meeting

Log on to (www j-sainsbury co uk) and complete the

foltowing steps

1 chckon Investors”

2 click on "Shareholder Services

3 click on ' Computershare

4 enter the required wnformation and click on "submit
You will need your 11 character shareholder reference number
located on your latest tax voucher

5 c¢hck on “Electronic Sharehotder Communication
and register oenline

Registered office

J Sainsbury plc

33 Holborn

London ECIN 2HT
Reqistered number 185647

Selicitors
Linklaters

One Silk Sireet
Londan EC2Y 8HQ

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1 Embankment Place

London WC2N 6RH

Stockbrokers
uBs

1 Finsbury Avenue
Leondon EC2M 2PP

Morgan Stanley
25 Cabot Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 404

Financial calendar 2008/09

Dividend and Interest payments
Ordinary dividend

Ex dwvidend date 21 May 2008
Record date 23 May 2008
Final dividend payable 18 July 2008
intenim dividend payable January 2009

Other dates

Annual General Meeting - Birmingham 15 July 2008
Intenim results announced 12 November 2008
Interim report avallable November 2008
Annual General Meeling - Londan 15 July 2009
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Glossary

‘Active Kids’ — Qur natienwide scheme to
help inspire schoo! children to take more
exercise and to eat mere healthily Launched
in 2005, Active Kids 1s open to all nursery,
primary and secondary schools as well

as Scouts and Girl Guides in the UK

www salnsburys co uk/activekids

AGM = Annual General Meeting — This
year the AGM will be held on Tuesday 15
July 2008 at The International Convention
Centre Broad Street, Birmingham B1 2EA
at 100am

B shares - Preference B shares 1ssued on
12 July 2004 as part of the Return of Capital
scheme in 2004/05

‘basics’ — Sainsbury’s core sub brand range
of products

'‘BGTY' - 'Be Good to Yourself' -
Sainsbury s healthier alternative sub brand
range of products Products are either
those with less than three per cent fat or
those with less calones, salt and saturated
fat than standard lines

CMBS - Commercial Mortgage Backed
Securitres

Company - J Sainsbury plc

CC = Competition Commission — An
independent public body which conducts

in depth Inquines tnto mergers, markets and
the major requlated industries The CCos
vndertaking an investigation into the supply
of grocenes by retaillers in the UK

www competition-commission org uk

CR - Corporate responsibility — The need
to act responsibly in managing the impact
on a range of stakeholders customers,
colleagues, investors, suppliers, the
community and the environment

‘Different by design’ — Sainsbury’s general
merchandise brand which marrars the
prermium ‘Taste the difference food range

"Different values' — Campaign launched

In 2007 to emphasise the higher quality
specifications and great vatue of Sainsbury's
own brand products

Dividend cover — Underlying profit after tax
from continuing operations attributable to
equity shareholders divided by total value
of dividends declared duning the year

DRIP - Dividend Reinvestment Pian -
Allows shareholders to reinvest their cash
dividend in shares of the Company through
a specially arranged share dealing service

EBITDAR - Earmings before income tax,
depreciation, amaortisation and rent

EPS - Earnings per share - Earnings
attributable to erdinary shareholders
divided by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares wnissue during the year,
excluding those held by ESOP trusts which
are treated as cancelled

Easter adjustment ~ To adjust for the
timing of Easter falling on 8 April 2007
and 23 March 2008

ESOP trusts - Employee Share Qwnership
Plan trusts

Falrtrade - The Fairtrade label i1s an
independent consumer label that
guarantees a fair deal for marginalised
workers and small scale farmers in
developing countries Praducers receive
a menimum price that covers the cost of
praduction and an extra premium that
15 invested in the local commumity

www falrtrade org uk

Fair value - The amoun! for which an asset
could be exchanged, or a rability settled,
between knowtedgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length transaction

‘freefrom’ — Sainsbury’s range of products
guaranteed to be wheat, gluten or dairy (ree

FSA - Food Standards Agency
www food gov uk

FTSE4Good — The FTSE Group an indexing
company runs the FTSE4Good index series
to measure the performance of compamnies
that meet CR standards, and to facilitate
mmvestment in those companies

www ftse com/ftsedqood

GDAs — Guidgline Daily Amounts
Gearing - Net debt divided by total equity
Group - The Campany and its subsidiaries

IFRIC - International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commatiee

IFRS - International Financial Reparting
Standard(s}

1GD - Institute of Grocery Distribution
www [gd com

Income statement - formerly known as the
profit and loss account under UK GAAP

ISA — Individual Savings Accaunt

JV = Joint venture — A business jointly
owned by two or more parties

Like-for-like sales - The measure of year
an year same store sales growth

LTIP - Long-Term Incenbive Plan

‘Mtdd’ = ‘Make the difference days' -
Launched in Aprit 2007 to raise awareness
and action around different social,
envirgnmentat and ethical issues and
working partnership with customers Lo make
a sustained difference

MTL - Muttiple traffic lights — Nutritional
labels which provide effective at-a-glance’
information customers need to make
healthier choices when shopping Around
5,000 Sainsbury's products carry our Wheel
of Health MTL label

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report and Financlal Statements 2008

OFT - Ofiice of Fair Trading

Organic - Organic farming prohibits the
use of artificial fertisers, pesticides, growth
regulators and addhtives in livestock feed
The International Federation of Organic
Agniculture Movements (IFOAM) accredits
national erganic certifying bodies

Pipeline — Sites which the Group has
an mterest in developing in the future

ROCE - Return on Capital Employed
RP1 - Retall Price Index

'Sainsbury’s SO organic’ - Sainsbury’s
orgamic sub brand range of products

SORIE - Statement of recogmsed income
and expense

TSR - Total Sharehotder Return - The
grawth in value of a sharehelding over a
specified period, assuming that dividends
are reinvested to purchase additional unsts
of the stock

‘Ttd' - 'Taste the difference’ — Sainsbury's
premium sub brand range of products

Try semething new today’ — The marketing
campaign in support of Making Sainsbury s
Great Agamn

'TU' — Sainsbury's own labet clothing range

‘TWU home' - Sainshury s sub brand
nomeware range of products

Underlying basic earnings per share —
Profit after tax from conlinuing operations
attributable to equity holders before any
gain or loss on the sale of praperties,
impairment of goodwill impairment of
properties held within joint ventures,
fimancing far value movemenis and one-off
items that are material and mfrequent in
nature, divided by the werghted average
number of ordinary shares inissue during
the year, excluding those held by the ESOP
trusts, which are treated as cancelled

Underlying profit befare tax - Profit
before tax from continuing operations
before any gain or loss on the sale of
properties, impairment of goodwill,
impairment of praperties held within joint
ventures, financing fair value movements
and one-off items that are matenal and
infrequent in nature

Underlying operating protit/(loss) -
Underlying profit before tax from continuing
operations before finance mcome and
finance costs
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Our annual report can be found online
at www.j-sainsbury.co.uk/report2008

Providing information in this way has sigmificantly reduced
the amount of paper printed and dristributed and s 1n keeping
with our principle of ‘respect for our environment’

We hope you agree this 1s a change for the better

The FSE Logo identifies products which
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J Sainsbury plc 33 Holborn London ECIN ZHT
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